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L. C. ¥. Well, Anfwer that? when he dif-
courfed to you of the King’s landing, did he
name the late King Fames 2 or did he fay the late
King Fames ? .

Furym, Was he mentioned in the Difcourfe ¢

Swee:. He never ufed to mention King Faies
to me, but only the King, which I underftood
always of King Fames,

Mr. Ast. Gen. Pray what time was 1t that he
fpoke of the King’s landing ?

Sweet, It was about Chriftimas.

- Mr, Ait. Gen. Therefore no other King could
be meant but King Fames, for there was no other
King to land at that time; and he faid he had
the King’s Word for it. 1 fuppofe he can’t pre-
tend he had King 27illiain’s Word for it.

Parkyns. 1hope, to talk of the King’s Janding
1s no ‘Lreafon; 1ris but Words: If I el an idle
Story of what I think may come to pafs, fhall that
be reckoned Trealon? Then for him to fay, I
had it from the King’s own Mouth, it 1s impofii-
ble to be true, and is no Overt Act, being only
Words, and cannot be reputed Treafon. And
then as to the other two Parts of the Charge,
the Confultations with my Lord of Aileséury, and
thofe other Perfons, there is but one Witnefs;
no Body but Porfer; neither 1s there any more
but he for the Affaflination; his Evidence 15 but
a fingle Proof, and there ought to be two pofi-
tive Witnefles, by the Law, to each Overt
Act.

L.C.F. Helt. No: There ought to be two Wit-
nefles to each Species of Treafon, that'sall.

Parfyns. There ought to be two Witnefles to
both thefe Parts of the Treafon.

L. C.§. Holt. T muft tell you, Sir William Par-
ks, if any Perfon does defign and contrive that
the Realm fhould be invaded, or the King depo-
{ed, and another fet upon the Throne, that con-
{piring to invade the Realm, or depofe the King,
are Overt Alts of High-Treafon, within the
Statute of 25 FEd. 2. and the fame Species of
Trealon as defigning to affaffinate him 5. It s
compafling, deligning, imagining his Death and
Deftruction, Now the Queftion is, whether there
15 not another Witnefs, beflides Captain Porter, to
prove another Overt At of this Defign ¢

Parkyns. T don’t find there 15, forall the reft is
only Difcourte.

L.P.F. Holt. Ycs, for what, do you think
providing Arms for that Purpofe, is only Dil-
courfe ?

Parkyns., The Witnefles don’t fay for what
Purpofe the Arms were bought.

L. C.%. H Nordoyou tell us of any other
Purpofe.

Parkyns. My Lord, 1t docs not appear when
they were bought.

L. C.5. Holt. Ay, but what Occafion had you
for fuch a Quantity of Arms?

Parkyns. My Lord, I did not buy them after all.
] found them. If I had had Liberty to have fent

down for Witnefles, I could have proved that
thefe Arms were in Boxes all rufty in my Houfe

when 1 firlt came to 1t.

L. C.¥. Holt, Ay: But why were they buried,
" juft at the Time when the Plot was broke out,
and the whole D:fign difcovered ?

Parkyns.  1can’ttell, my Lord, how to helpit,
if they will make an ill Interpretation.

L.C.¥. Holt. 'What_Interpretation would you
have us make?

Parkyms, My Lord, it is very eafy to imagine,

People don’t care to be found with Arms at fich
a Time; but, however, the Having of Arms is
no Treafon. They are as much a Commodity as
any thing elfe. |

Mr. At Gen.  And then the Horfe coming to
Town juit at fuch a Time, and the Saddles, -

Parkyns. 1 have not bought a Horfe this two
Years, and I travelled in no other Manner than
ufed to do, So the Groom tells ye, Iufed tocome
to Town with threce or four Horfes always, I ne-
ver kept lefs than fix or feven Horfes this twenty
Years; fometimes a great many more; and they
were very little Horfes, Pads, no Way fit for
the Service they are prefumed to be for.

L.C. 7. Holr. Have you any thing more to
fay, Sir?

Parkyns. T hope, my Lord, as to the Affaflina-
tion I am clear: Perhaps the World would ima-
aine, I have had fome Inclinations to King Fames’s
Service, and perhaps they may not think amifs s
but Inever did any thing, nor had anOpportunity
to do.,

L. C. 7. Holt. God be thanked you had no Op-
portunity.

Parlyns, And 1 hope my Life fhall not be
taken away without Proof; T hope 1t will be ra-
ther thought, that every one fhould be taken to
be innocent; and it would better pleafe the
King, that I fhould be acquirted, than to let
me be found guilty upon {light Grounds, and
Imaginations, of which little or nothing can be

‘made,

L.C. ¥, Holt, No queftion of it; It will pleafe
the King and every Body elfe, that you fhould be
found innocent.

Parkyns, Then, I hope, my Lord, you will not
ftrain the Law to take away my Life; according
to the Rule, That it is better five guilty Men
fhould efcape, than one innocent Man fuffer : For
the Blood of a Man may lie upon every Body, if
it be caufelefly fhed 5 and 1t 15 very fevere to ftrain
the Law to take away any Man’s Life.

L.C. 7. Holt. Look ye, Sic William Parkyus, 1
muft tell you, you may be under a very great
Miftake : You may think it neceflary to have two
Witnefles to every Overt Aét, but that is not fo;
for if there be one Witnefs to one Overt A€,
and another Witnels to another Overt A¢t of the
fame Species of Treafon, that is all thac the
Law requires.

Parkyns. Here are two Species of Treafon,
levying War is one Species, and Aflaflination is
another,

L.C.J. Holf, Your Defign was, originally,
the reftoring of King Fames, and in order to that
the dethroning of King Willam.

Parkyns, 'That appears but by one Witnefs,
which is not according to Law, which requires

two.
L.C.J. Holt, One Way of effecting your De-

fign was by Aflaffination, the other by Invafion,
or by Force.

Parkyis, Stll, my Lord, here is the fame Wit-
nefs, and that 1s but one.

L.C.f. Holt. Yes, there are two,

Pearkyns. None bat Capt. Porter,

L. C. }. Holt. What, not as to the Reftoring of
King Faises, which tends to the Dethroning

- King Williain ¢

Parkyns. In what Particulars, my Lord ?
~ L.C.¥. Holt. Your providing Arms, and go-
ing t0 Leiceflerfbive, and fending Charnock on that

Errand into Fraice. As to the Affafination, in-
deed,
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deed, there is but one pofitive Witefs, befides
other Circumftances, which have their Weight ;
but as to the other, you faid the King wonld
CO s

Parkyns., Tt was my Opinion, that’s all;

L. C. ¥. But you faid you had his Word for it.

Parkyns, Does not that anfwer it felf, my
Tord? Is it poffible it fhould be true, thatI who
was in England, fhould have the Word of .one
that is at fuch a Diftance beyond Sea ?

L. C. ¥. And then your buying of Saddles, for
what Purpofe were they?

Parkyns. My Lord, does he fay it was in order
toit? Iam fure he does not, and I hope I fhall
not be prefumed out of my Life.

L. C. . When you talk’d of the King’s Land-
ing, and faid, you had his Word for it; you
likewife faid, your Troop was made up of old
Soldiers, befides Volunteers that had been Officers.

Par. Still there is nothing done; he does not
fay there was one Man raifed.

L.C.¥. And your going into Leicefterfbire up-
on fuch an Errand, as you told him you went
LpON.

Par. Well, my Lord, I muft leave it to your
Lordfhip, I hope you will confider well of 1t,

L.C. ¥ We muft do that which 1s right be-
tween the King and his Subjects,

Par. And, [ hope, my Lord, the Converfion
of Subjedts is more acceptable than the DeftruCtion
of them ; and the Government is more concern’d
to fave the Innocent, than to firetch the Law to
punifh the Guilty,

L.C. % It will be more acceptable, and In-
deed, the King and Kingdom are very much con-
cerned in this Matter, and at this Time, Sir
Williamy and the Government ought to take
Care to preferve itfelf. Have you any more to
fay, Sir? if you have pray fpeak it

Par. 1 have no more. I fubmit it to your
Lordfhip: I think there i but none Witnefs, and
all the other is but Conjefture and Nonfenfe;
and one Witnefs 1s not fufficient, by the Law of
Eugland, for by the Statute there muft be two.

L. C. 7 I have told you my Opinion.

Par, Befides, your Lordfhip has known me
this many Years, and you know that my Educa-
tion was not to War, and Fighting, but the
Gown; and your Lordfhip knows how peace-
ably I have lived.

L.C. 7. T have known you heretofore, Sir
William, while you kept your Profeflion and
your (zown.,

Par. And now in my old Age, my Lord, I
am grown lame, and have loft the Ufe of my
Hands with the Gout, and fcarce able almoft to
2o on my Feet. Therefore it cannot in Reafon
be thought probable, that I fhould engage 1n fuch
a Bufinefs as this; and therefore I hope you will
interpret all Things in a milder Senfe, m Favour
of Life, rather than for the Deftruttion of i,
and the Ruin of a Man’s Fortune and Family.

L. C.¥. Ttell you, You have had my Opinion
concerning the Number of Witnefles. I fuppofe
my Lord and Brother will declare theits,

L.C. 7. Treby. My Lord Chief Juftice, it feems,
does pleafe to have us deliver our Opintons; I
think_we ought to be very tender in a Cafe of
Blood : I think the Life of Sir William Parkyns 1s
at Stake, and we ought to be careful that he have
no, Wrong done him.  But I think in the Cafes of
Treafon, efpecially of this Nature, the Life of
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thé King; and the Lives of all the innocent Peg-
ple of the Kingdom are alio at Stake; and we
muft be indifferent in this Cafe, and by.the Grace’
of God we will be fo. The Queftion that Sir
William Parkyns propofes, is, Whether there are
two Witnefles upon this Evidence, to this Matter
of which he is indifted, which is, the Compafting:
and Imagining the King’s Death. One Witnefs,
at leaft, does pofitively prove, That you Sir 7iL-
liam Parkyns did agree to the Defign of Affaffi-
nating the King’s Perfon, and promife to provide
and contribute Horfes and Arms to that Purpofz.
Now fuppole this is prov’d but by one Witnefs,
and the Evidence had gone no farther, then your
Objection would have had a very good Ground,
that this could not be a legal Proof of Treafon s
but I muft tell you, That this Treafon of Com-
pafling and Imagining the King’s Death may be
made evident by other Overt Aés, befides that
of Affaffination: To confpire with a Foreign
Prince, to invade the Realmy to provide Arms;
to join with Invaders, and to make an Infurrec-
tion again{t the King, thefe are Overt Aés of
Imagining the King’s Death. For it cannot be
fuppofed, but that he that would have an Inva-
fion and an Infurrection againft the King’s Per-
fon, does intend the Deftruction of the King;
he that would take away all his Defence, which
he might have by the Affiftance of his Subjefts,
and leave him expofed to his mortal Enemies,
cannot but be prefumed to defign the King’s
Ruin and Murder, Therefore, Sit William, fuch
Things being in their Nature 2 Compaffing and
Imagining the King’s Death; your providing
Arms and 2 Troop are Evidences and Overt Alts
of this Treafon; and {fo will your going up and
down and meeting People In order o nfe, if
that were your Bufinefs in Leiceffesfbire, ¢, as
it feems by the Evidence it was.

Par. But that 1s not faid, my Lord, I humbly
beg your Pardon for interrupting you ; it is not
faid, That I met them to rife, by no Evidence
whatfoever ; and therefore, pray my Lord, do not
inforce it beyond what the Evidence has proved ;
he faid, I went to meet my Friends: Was there
any thing faid 1t was in order to a Rifing ?

L.C.¥. Treby. 1 think you miftake your own
Words, as you fpoke them to the Witnefs, if I
did take them, as T think I did, right, for they
were feveral Times repeated. I will do you no
Wrong, Sir Willias, 1 aflure you. You went
into Leicefferfbire, and you- fay, It was to meet
your Friends; the Witnefs fays, It was to meet
the King’s Friends; by the King, it is very plain,
you meant not King #lliam, but King Fames ;
for you {poke before of the King’s Landing, which
was at Chriftmas laft, when every body knows
King William was in England, Thefe coupled
together s

Par, I beg your Pardon, my Lord; thofe two
Things are not both to be join’d together, the
Difcourfe of the King’s Landing was at Chrif-
mas, as he fays, the other thing, my Journey in-
to Leicefferfbire, was a Month afterwards, and
therefore they cannot be coupled together.

L. C.F. Tredy. The Coupling of them, that I
meant, was only to fhew who was underftood to
be fpoken of by you, when you named the King s
fo the Queftion is, Whether you did not mean
the fame Perfon in Fanuary that you meant in
December, by the Word King, efpecially fince as
a Difcovery you had made, you fud farther, th;t
tne
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the et was as well inclined to the King’s In-
tereft as the North, and a Lord’s Brother was
concerned init. If by the King you had meant
King Williosm ; how impertinent and infenfible
had been all this Difcourfe, that the Weft was as
wellinclined as the North, and that a Lord’s
Brother was concerned in ity concerned in what ?
In being inclined to King /¥iliiam ; to what Pur-
pole could that be fad ?

Par. Tt may as well be interpreted that Way
as the other.
" L.C ¥. Treby. T muft leave that to the Jury.
And I conlefs, if there was not fomewhat more
in the Cale, you might the better argue upon
this, as to the Interpretation.  But laying afide the
Confideration of your Riding into Leicefterfbire,
&3¢, here is this Providing of Arms, proved by
four or five Witnefles, and the Serving of them m
that Manner; and there is no Account given by
you; that they were provided for the Service of
the Government, or that you were employ’d {o
to do. Certainly it is not lawful to provide
Armns, efpecially for a whole Troop, as for ought
I perceive here was, though mdeed I am not
skilful enough in thofe Buhnefies, to krow how
many make up a Troop; but it’s plun here was
an Infurreion intended, when the Invafion was
made ; and that is an Evidence, that thele Arms
were 1o be employ’d upon that Account, for no
other Ule was to be made of them, nor is preten-
ded. If you had found thofe Arms in your Houfe
(as you fay) it had been your Duty to have deli-
ver’d them up, or difpofed of them to the Ule
and Service of the Government, which Service
too, could only be when you had a Commuflion
from the Government, and not of your own Head.
And then, befidesall this, you acknowledg’d that
you had a Troop of old Soldiets.

Par, Tt is but flidingly that, for hie only tells
you, that a Troop would be compoled of oid
Soldiers. -

L.C.F. Trehy. How - a that be 2 when he fays,
he repeats your own \Words, My Troop conlifts
of old Soldiers; can any Body fry, that his
Troop confifts of old Soldiers, without having a
Troop?

Par. Pray, Mr, Sweet, fpeak; my Life is at
Stake, Did I fay to you, 1t did confift, or 1t was
to confift? recolleét your felf, and confider well
before you fpeak.,

L. C. ¥. What was it that he did fay? 1t did
confift, or it would confift ?

Sseeet, He faid, his Troop was compofed all
of old Soldiers.

Par. But does it appear by any ILwidence,
that T had a Troop; 1t [ had, who were they?
none ol thefe Men do appear. Docs this Troop
confift of Menin the Air? that I fhould hit Men
that arve all /# Nubibus, and not one of them to
be known. Suppofc 1 fhould tell him a Lye, or
make fome Biags, 15 this Treafon ¢ here 1s no
Perfon proved to be lifted or mamed.

L.C.¥. But Arms were found in your Houfe
for a Troop.

Par. But where they were bought, and when
they were bought, and made ready, it does not
appear ; and I afiirm to your Lordthip, 1t you
would give me but one Day’s Time, I would
prove, that they were at my Houfe in W arwick-
fhire, when I firlt came down thither, which 1s

two Years ago. And Pl fully make it out to

your Satisfaction, or Pl be crucify’d, or any thing

in the World, I can prove it by a great many
Witnefles, by my Friends, and all the Servants
that belonged to me, they were there Jong before
this Difcourf was had or thought of,

Mr. Juft. Rokedy. f your Lordfhip expeéls that
I fhould deliver my Opinion, 1 am ready to do it
As to this Matter of Law that S 77liam Par-
kyns has propofed, he fays, There are not two
‘Wimefles to the fame Overt A¢t, and therefore
no Evidence of Treafon; truly, I take it, and
always did, that the Law s, there need not be
two Witnefles, to the fame Overt A¢ 5 but if
there be two Witnelles, one whereof fpeaks to
one Overt A&, and another to another Overt
A& of the fame Species of Treafon, thefe are
two Witnefles wichin the Law, Now, I think,
there are two Overt Acls 1n the Indi¢tment of
this Treafon. The Trealon s Compafling the
Death of the King ; the Overt Alts are firft, the
particular Defign of the Affaflination upon his
Perfon, and the other 15, the bringing in of a
foreign Force, and preparing Horles and Arms
to meet that foreicn Force here: All to the fame
Intent and Purpofe, the Compafiing and Imagin-
ing the King’s Death.  Now befides that of the
Affaffination, there are a great many Witnefles
that prove there were Arms prepared ; for thire
were found 2 great Quantity, when they opened
the Boxes, which Boxes, .t 1s plain, he hunfelf
fent down to Hayweod’s Houfe: For the’ Char-
aock wrie a Letter, yet 1t was by his Direftion,
as he own’d to Hevicoed, when he was here in
Town. And ther his Servant fetched them away
from this Place, and this I take to be another
Overt A&, and proved by feveral Witneffes.
Sir 7¥illiam Parfyns ipeaks of his being a Gown-
Man, but I do not know what a Gown-Man has
to do with fuch a Quanuty of Arms.

Par. If you will give me Leave to fend for
fome People, 1 will demontlrate it to you as clear
as the Sun, that they were 1n the Houlfe two Years
ago, when I came frft thither. |

Mr, Juft Rokchy, There were Preparations
two Years ago, it appzus, for the Deftruion of
the King and Kingdom 5 however, the Men that
were accufed of 1t, had the Luck to clcape and
be acquitted.

Par. My Lord, T hope I fhall not be interpreted
out of my Life, I defire the Statuee may be read.

M. Juft, Reledy. What Statute do you mean?

Par, The 25th of Fdw. I, and the new Sta-
tute too, let them both be read to the Jury, that
they may confider of it

The Statute of the 2 5th of Edw. 111 cwas read.

Par. There 1s nothing of two Witnefles there.

L.C.¥. No, but there is another Statute of
the 5th of Zdw. VI cap. 11, that may be more
for your Advantage ; Will you have that read ?

Par, Yes, if you pleale, I know there is ano-
ther Statate that does dire&t it, and I expected
to have {found 1t in, this Statute,

Cl of A= This is an A& made in the 5th and
6th Years of King Edw, V1.

The Statute was read fo thefe Words, Unlefs
without Trial he thall contefs the fame.

Par. Therd’s enough.

L.C.¥. You have heard the Statute read,
would you infer any thing from it?

Parkyns, T infer that there ought to be two
Witnefes, and here s but one.,

L. C. ¥. There are two Witnefies,

Perk. Not dirett to the fame Thing.

L.C.Y.
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L. C. #. 1 fhall leave 1t to the Jury, whether
this Evidence does not prove an Overt-Aét, to
demonftrate 2 Defign againft the King; if the
Defign be to depofe him, and that’s manifelted
by two Overt-Acts, undoubtedly that 1s Trea-
fon within the Statute of 25 of Edw. 3.

Par. That T agree, but yet there muft be two
Witnefles of it.

L. C. #. Suppofe Dethroning the King be the
main Delign that ftrikes at his Life, and you re-
folve it fhall be done one Way or other, One
Way by Affaflination, the other by I[}furre&ion;
or by Invafion and joining with a foreign Army.

Par. My Lord, I conceive there ought to be
two Witnefles for each.

L.C. 7. No, no; for that very laft Aét that 13
to take LEffect in a few Days, declares 1t 1s foflici-
ent, if there be one to one Overt-Act, and ano-
ther to another; but ftill it muft be of the fame
Head or Specics of Treafon; and depofing the
King and aflaffinating of him, and preparing to
raife an Army againft him, or to excite an lnva-
{ion, are but one Sort of Trealon.

Par. Tt may be fo, if they were Overt-Acts of
one Sort of Treafon; but rifing in Arms, and
Affallination are as different Things as can be in
the World, and therefore there ought to be two

Witnefles to each of them.
Mr. J. Rokeby. That which I deliver’d as my

Opinion was, that one Witnels proving one Overt-
Act, and another Witnefs proving another Qvert-
Al of the fame Sort of Tiealon, are two good

Witnefles, according as'the Law requires, And [am
the more fully confirm’d in 1g, by the Claule that

is in this new A& of Parliament, made for Trials
in Cafes of Treafon, that a Man fhall not be con-
viGted of Treafon, but by and upon the Oaths and
Teftimony of two lawtul Witnefies, either both of
them to the fame Overt-Act, or one of them to
- one, and the other of them to another Overt.
Act of the fame Treafon.

Par. Of the fame Treafon, aye.

Mr. Juft. Rokeby. And here 1t is the imagining
the Death of the King, that 1s the Treafon.

Por. Then you may fay every Thing elfe 1s {o;
but if you pleafe to let the whole Statute be read.

L. C. % You fhall have it read if you will;
but this is all that is in it concerning this Matter.
Now a Defien to depofe the King, which is mant-
fefted by fome Overt-Ad, 1S an Ovet_'t'A& to
prove the Defign of the Death of the King,

Par. Then it mult be manifeft, and not by
Interpretation ; and all thefe Things are by In-
terpretation, cxcept it be what Porter fwears.

L. C. ¥ It by Overt-Act it be proved, that
you defigned his Depofition, that is an Overt-
Act to prove your Defign of his Deach.

Par. They are very different Things, Death
and Depofitions. We have feen a King depoled,

and yet he 1s alive. |
L. C. F. Trehy. T am fure we have feen a King

agreed to be affaflinated, and yet, (od be thank-

ed, he 1s fhll alive. o
L. C. ¥. ltisnot the Succeeding 1n the Defign,

but the Defign itfelf that is the Treafon. God for-
bid that it Mhould have Succefs to make 1t Treafon.

L. C. ¥. Treby. But whenever People will agree
together to bring in foreign Forces, or to prepare
Men and Arms againft the King that 1s in Poflel-
fion, this is reckoned ap Overt-Alt of a Delign
againft his Life, and has always been reckoned fo

by my Lord Chief Juftice Hales, my Lord Chief
Juftice Coke, and by all thofe Men that have been
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reputed the moft tender 1n Cafes of this Nature
For any Act that exprefles an Intent of dethron-
ing the King, by Means of an Invafion by a fo-
reign Force, and an Infurreftion againft the King,
is 2 proper Proof of a Defign of his Deftrultion 3
and 1f not, then agreeing to thast him is not an O-
vert-Act. Men may fay alfo, that there need be ac-
tual Shooting to makeout theOvert Act inthat Cafe,

Par. 1f your Lordfhip pleafes to have the A&
read, I fhall fubmit to your Lordfhip’s Judgment.

L. €. J. Let it be read,

Par. 1t you pleafe to read the A&, the Pre-
amble of 1.

Cl. of Ar. This 1s an At made in the 7th Year
of our Sovereign Lord the King: Is that the A&?
Itis an A& for Regulating of Trials in Cafes of
High-Treafon, and Mifprifion of Treafon. Is that
the AGt?

Par.  Yes, yes. (The At wwas read,)

Mr. J. Rokeby. 1 believe if you look into the great
Cafe n Parliament, the Cafe of my Lord Srafford,
you’ll find it wasdeclar’d for Law, that one Witnefls
to one Overt-Act, and another Witnes to another
Overt-Act of the fame Treafon, they were two
Witnefles within the Law, and this was a {olemn
Relolution in Parliament in the Houfe of Lords.

Par. 1 believe 1t has been doney but here is a
beneficial Law made, which if my Trial had been
pucoff a few Days, I thould have had the Benefitofit.

L. C. J. Itwould have been the fame Thing
as to this Matter, for this At declares the very

fame Thing, as to the two Witneflts.

Par, And then, my Lord, I could have had Wit-
nefles to have taken off a great Part of this Evi-
dence, and the Law comes to take Effeé within
one Day, and 1t turns here upon this Matter of
Sweet, who 1s not a good Evidence ; for it is mani-
feft he has contradi€ted himfelf, and it is mani-
felt he has {worn what cannot be true.

I..C. J. Wheremn?

Par. ‘That 1 fhould fay the King would land
here, for I had his Word for it.

Mr. Jult. Rokeby. You might have hisWord, and
not delivered by his own Mouth ; there are other
Ways to convey a Man’s Word belides fpeaking.

Par. But then we don’t call 1t his Word, that’s
Hearfay.

Mr. Juft. Rokeby. It a Man write hisNote that
he will do fuch a Thing, we may very well fay,
we have his Word for 1.

L. C. J. Itis not impoffible but that you might
fpeak with him.

Par. It is impoffible I fhould fpeak from hence
to France, .

L. C. J. You might have been over with him,
I believe a great many others have, and it’s pro-
ved Mr. Charnock went over,

Mr. J. Rokeby, 1f any Man fhould have faid at
the latter End of the lalt Month, I believe that
there was an Affaflination intended againft the
King, becaufe I have his. Word for it, meerly from
reading his Speech to the Parliament, wheremn he
affirms that he had feveral Proofs of it, that had
been a proper Expreffion, though he did not hear
the King fpeak it.

Pai, Yes, if he had the Speech to produce.

M. J. Rokeby, Then if it come by Letter, or
Meflage, or common Fame, he might lend you
Word by particular Meflenger.

Par. Yes, if there was any fuch Authority as that
itweretrue, But hehas manifettly contradicted him-
felf, and Capt. Porter iwears for hisown Life, and I

muft leave it to you,whether theyare to be believed.
| Mr,
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Mr. J. Rokeby, Capt. Porteir’s Teftimony has
been fufficiently confirm’d by the Acknowledg-
ment of dying Perfons, | _

L. C. ¥. Well, have you any more to fay, oW
itliaiin Parkyins ? |

Perfyns. No, my Lord, I fubmit 1t to your
Lord(hip’s Direction, '

L. C.F. Then what fay you to ir, Mr. Attor-
ney, “or Mr. Sollictior ? _

Mr. 8z Gen. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, T am of Council for
the King in this Matter, and itis my Turn to fum
up the Evidence agiinft the Pnjoner at the Bar:
He ftands mdicted for compafling the Death of
the King, for deligning to depofe the King, for
promoting a forcign [nvafion, for intending an
InfurreCtion here at home, and for aiding and
abetting the King’s Enemies, and for doing what
he could to procure the Subjeltion of his own
Country to Forcigners and Strangers,

Gentlemen, fome of thefe Crimes vun mnto ong
another 3 defigning the Death of the King by_Ai-
faffination, and defighing to depofe the King,
amount to ore and the fame Thing with com-
pafiing and imagining the Death of the king.

My Lords the Judges have given you thelr Opi-
nion in that Point of Law, and I think it isagreeable
to all the Refolutions that have been fince the Ma-
king of the Statze of 25 of Edw. 3d. T think
that it has been explained fo in the Time of R
chard the Sccond ; but this 1 am fure of, that it
was {0 refolv’d in the Time of Zary the Fourth,
when there was a Defign to fet up Richard the Se-
cond again, and it was adjudged to be Fligh-
Treafon in compafiing and imagining the Death
of the King. For depofing the King, is deftroy-
Ing him in his politick Capacity, as much as Al-
faflination and Murdering of him is deftroying him
m his natural Capacity, and the. Confpirators in
fuch Cafes know whart the great End is they aim
at, to {ubvert the Government as it 1s eftablifhed
by Law, whereby every Man enjoys his own Pro-
perty, and the Freedr of his Perfon, and thofe
that will be quict may have their Liberty aad
Property preferved entire to them 5 but fome Peo-
pleare fo very impatient of fubmitting to the Law,
that they cannot be content to be in Servitude
themiclves, but they mult needs do all they can,
to bring 1t upon their Fellow-Subjeds.  And it
were very wellaf that thole who are in“Love with
Shvery, would but go to fome other Places, where
they may have enough of it, and not bring it upon
thofe who are {o lietle defirous of fuch a Thing,
as we are, and I hope always fhall be. :

Gentlemen, to prove Sir W llicin Parivis Guilty
of this Treafon, whereof he frands indiéted, we
have produced feveral Wieneffes; and firft there
is Mr. Peizeiy and he telis you Sic /Falliain Parkyns
told lim he had feen a2 Commiflion from K.
James, written with his own Hand, for making
War againtt the Perfon of K. 77/ iains.

Parkyns.- Sir, 1 beg your Pardon for interrupt-
ing you, but there was not one Word of that faid 5
heve 1s Mr, Porter, pray ask him, if ever I faw a
Commiflion from King Faies.

L.C.F. Portor did fay fo, if I remember any
Thing Porser faid, you told him you had read the
Comnuffion, and it was written with his own Hand.

Par, All that T heard of 1t was, that when 1
was delired to make one in the Affaffination, T re-
fufed it becaufe T faid T was bufy about the Mat-
ter of my Regiment,

Mr. A, Ge. Pray call Porier again,
Porter came in.)

( CHP.",

Mr. Sol. Gen. Pray Capt. Porter, will you give
the Court and the Jury an Account what yoy
heard Sir Hilliain Parkyns {ay about the Com-
miflion that came from King Fanes ?

Capt, Porter, Task’d Mr, Charnock why T might
not fee the Commiffion, and he told me he had
never feen 1t himielf, but Sic 277l am Parkyns had.
U did ask Sir Walliom Parkyns, whether he had
fecn 1t, and he told me he did fee i, and read ir,
and 1t was to raife War againit the Perfon of the
Prince of Orange.

Mr, At, Gen. Whofe Hand was it in, did he {5 ?

Capt, Porter. It was written with K., Faires’s own
Hand,

Par, This was my Miftuke, T thought he had
fard I rold him I had a Commiflion for a Regiment,

Mr, Mouittagne, Did he give any Reafon, why
it was written with King Fames’s own Hand ?

Capt. Porter. We uled to fay amoneft ourfelves,
it was, becaufe he would not waft any of his Mini-
fters with 1. |

Mr. Sof. Gen. T would not do Siv 77iliam Parlyus
any Wrong, but only fum up what is maecrial
1n the Lvidence given againft him. I remembey
very well Mr, Porier ind, Lr. Clharnock cold him
Str IVilliaim Paikyis had feen the Commiflion, but
I would not offer that as Evidence againft the
Prifoner what another told him, but he fays be-
lides that Siv 77illiain Porlyus told him himiclt,
that he had feen 1, and that 1t was writen with
King Fames’s own Hand. e fiys that they had
feveral Meetings together, Siv /Filliain Perlas,
and a great many others 5 and he names the Places,
the Naga’s-Ilcad \n Covent-Garden, the Swir Ta-
vern In the Stiand, and the Glke Tavern in ar-
ton-Gardenr 5 he tells you particularly, that it wuas
agreed that King (who was executed) and  Kijghy-
ky, and himfldf fhould go and view a Place that
fhould be proper for the Affaffination, and to give
a Report to the Prifoner, and the reft of the
Confpirators, what they thought the moft proper
Place; and that accordingly they did view the
Place, and came home at Night, and met the
Company, whcereol Siv 7Villiair Parkyits was one
and they gave an Account how the Plice was
viewed, and which was thought molt proper, and
then all the Company agreed  it.  He fays in-
deed, that Sir 7¥illigin Payl:us was not one that
was to execute it in his own Perfon, but one Sex-
daiigie was to be the Man imployed by him, and
he did fay it was a Thing that was very neceffi-
ry to be dore, and would factlitate the Introdue-
ticn of King Fawes, and the Lringing him back
agamn: And there 15 likewlie this concurring Evi-
dence of Mr. Porter’s with what I fhall obferve by
and by, that Sir I¥illiain Parkyis was o procure
five Horles, three whereof he was to mount him-
felt, and two he was to fend Captain Porter to
mount, and 1f there were further Occafion he could
procure more from Mr. Lewss, Gentleman of the
Forfe to my Lord Feverfbam, and accordingly we
have produced to you two Witnefles, Freemanr and
Tuiten, the one a Tapfler, the other an Hoftler
that lived at the Gegige-Tnnn in Holoonrn, who give
you an Account that upon Fyiday before the firlt
Day that was defigned for the Affaffination, there
did come three iHorfes o Town, for Sir /77 an
Leityis, but it being put off upon the Difappoint-
ment, they were fent out of Town again,  Up-
on the Friday afterwards, the Day before the
Difcovery, then there were four Horfes brought
to Town, and a g5th wasof Mr. Lawss, which was
a Roan Gelding,

Paikyns,
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Parkyns. Pray, Sir, will you pleafe to obferve
what Sort of Horfes they were 5 and particularly
the Heighth of them, that it may be known how
fic they were for this Bufinefs, =~ -
Mr. Sol. Gen. 1 will do you no wrong Sir Filliam,
if I can help it The Jury have heard the Evi-

dence; and by and by they will hear my Lord’s
Directions: But they do fay there were 4 brought

-
-

to Town, and a 5th was fent, a Roan Gelding

firft the Witnefs faid the Horfe came from Moun-
tagre Houle, but then prefently he recolleéted him-
felf, and acknowledged the Miftake ; and after-
wards faid it was from Somerfet-Flonfe,  So there
were the 5 Horfes, 3 whereof Sir Willia Parkyns
was to mount, and 2 Captain Porter, as he himfelf
fays; and thefe Falts I inftance in as making a
concurring Evidence, and very near to two Wit-
nefles to prove this Pare of the Confpiracy.

Then, Gentlemen, Captain Porter goes further,
and fays, that he had heard (but Sir William Pay-
byis did not tell him fo himfelf) thae Sir Williain
Parkyns had a Commuflion to ratfe a Regiment of
Horfe, and was preparnng {0 to do, agamnft the
Time of the Invafion, to join with¥the Forces that
were 1o come from abroad. To confirm which,
we have called Mr. Sweet to give you an Account
that he had been acquainted wich Sir 7277l iain Par-
kyns for three Years, and that he had often talke
with him about the King, that is his prefent Ma-
jefty, whom he called the Prince of Orange, and
the hittle Gentleman ;3 and abont King Fenes,
whom he ufed to call always King 5 and he faid
the King was to land very fpeedily, and that he
had a Troop which confifted of old Soldiers, and
that there were feveral Volunteers that were Ofh-
cers ; he faid he was to take a Journey into Lei-
ceerfbive, and accordingly he went; and when
he rerurned back again he faid, the Welt and the
North were very well inclined to the King’s Inte-
reft, or to that Purpofe. And to ftrengthen his
Iuvidence we prove, that he did go accordingly 1n-
to Leicifterfiiie, and we prove it by his Servant that
went with bim, where he met with feveral Per-
fons, particalarly one 2urborongh, and a Parfon ;
what they did tranfaét the Servant cannot prove,
but he is a concurring Witnefs to prove, that he
went Into Leicefferfbire 3 and we have all the Rea-
fon in the World to belicve that he went on that
Errand that he {poke of before, that 1s to meet the
King’s Friends, as he called King Fames. And
then there is a further concurring Evidence of his
having a Regiment, or a Troop, it is not mate-
rial, whether 1t be one or the other 5 and that
15 the Matter of the Arms, 4 Dozen of Swords,
22 Carbines, g5 Cafes of Piftols, that were hid
in the Garden of his Houfe : And thefe Arms
we have traced further, he fent them from his
Houfe to Heywooa’s Houlfe, there he thought they
would not lie fafe, and therefore Sir #illtam Par-
byns fends for them privately ; they were to come
away at Night, and be brought back to his Houfe,
and they were accordingly brought back in the
Night to his Houfe, and there they were buried ;
and the fame Perfon faw them taken up afterwards,
which brought them to Sir2Villiain Parkyns’s Houfe,
and proves they were the fame Boxes that were
buried, and which upon Opening proved to be
thefe Arms, that were firft fent to Hayweod’s, and
afterwards brought back to his awn Houfe,

So that this, Gentlemen, 1s a concurring Evi-
dence both to what Sweet fays, and to what Porser
fays, and thofe are the Two Witnefles to this Part
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of the Treafon, that there wasa Provifion of Arms
and Men for this Purpofe, which he faid he had
a Commilfion for.,

Now, Gentlemen, againtt all this he makes but
a very Imall Objection.  As to the Matter of two
Witneffes to every Overt-A&, that has been over-
ruled by the Court ; and as to the Arms, he fays
he found them at his Houfe when he firft came to
it; and then they were old rufty Arms, but of
this he gives you no Manner of Evidence. But if
they were there when he came to the Houfe, how
came he at this Time of Day to hide chem, and fe-
crete them ? ' Why might they not be as publick
now as they were before he came, which he has
had Time enough to prepare to prove fince the
Finding of them ?  And he does not give you fo
much as any colourable Reafon why he o fecreted
then].‘ And therefore *tis a moft quft and violent
Sufpicion, that they were for the Purpofes that the
Witnefles have given you an Account of 5 and you
have Reafon to helieve they were provided for
to arm that Number of Men, which he was to
rale to affift the Franch when they came to land
here. So that if you believe what the Witneffcs
have fworn, you cannot fay but that he is guilty
of the Treafon charged upon him; and we doubr
not you’ll find him fo.

Mr. Cowper,  May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury; Iam of the fame
dide of Council for the King.  Sir William Par-
%yis has given us a good Caution, which I fhall
take care to obferve: And that is, not to ftrain
either Fact, or Law, to his Prejudice.  But, my
Lord, When fuch 2 Matter as this, a Crime of
this Nature, is fo far proved againft the Prifoner
at the Bar, that no Body can in his private Judg-
ment reafonably acquit him ; then I think ita
good Piece of Service to the Publick to make the
Matter fo plain, that it may be put beyond all
Manner of Doubt, both for the Eafe of the Ju-
rors, and for the Satisfaction of all others that

hear this Trial.

My Lord, Sir 77lliam Parkyns has truly divided
his Indictment 1ato two Parts, the one that accufes
him of being concerned in the Affaffination, and
the other that accufes him of being concerned in
Inviting the French into the Kingdom, and In-
gaging to meet them with an armed Force.

My Lord, As to the firfk Part, T moft do Sir
William Parkyns that Right, that there 1s but one
pofitive Evidence as to the Affaffination ; but that
Evidence tells ye he agreed to 1t at {everal Meet-
ings; nay, that he was one wiio faid 1t was neceffary
to be done, 1n order to the other Defign he was
ingaged in, the facilitating the Landing of the
French, and King Fames his Defcent and Reftau-
ration, ‘There 1s, I fay indecd, but one Witnels
of that Matter, but the Evidence of that one
Witnefs 1s confirmed by many concurring Circum-
ftances ; by his fending for Horfes to Town the
Day before the firft Sazurday, when this execrable
Treafon was to have been executed ; by fend-
ing them out of Town again that Day upon the
Difappointment 3 by fending for them again the
Friday before the fecond Salurday that the King
was to have been affaffinated ; by his having
more Horles than were ufual with him that Day ;
by his taking care then of three Horfes that were
none of his own, and one of them brought very
fufpicionfly from Somerfet-Houfe 5 and that all thefe
eight Horfes fhould be imnediately hurried and
carried away upon the Difappointment the fecond

4 O Saturday,



6534 155. Zhe Trial of Sir Willlia'm Parkyns,

Saturday, and nothing ever heard of them after-
wards. I fay one of them was brought very fufpi-
cioufly 3 for, my Lord, you obferve it came from
Somerfet-Houfe, and was fent by Lewwis according
to the Prifoner’s Promife to Capt. Porser, which
Lzwis, it is apparent by all the Witneflis of this
Matter, was privy to this Defign.

My Lord, There is another Circumftance be-
fides this, which, I think, has not been obferved ;
and that is, his fending for Sweet up to Town be-
fore the fecond time that the King was to have
been Afizflinated ; he came upindeed before both
the times: The firlt time he was told by the
Prifoner, he had once defigned to have ufed him
ina Bufinefs ; bur upon fecond Thoughts he had
Compaflion for his Family. And when he came
the fecond time, he was firlt asl’d what Condi-
tion he had left his Family in, whether he had
provided them Money. He faid, No; and
thereupon he was chid: And the Prifoner faid, he
might then as well have ftand at home. Al thefe
Circumftances, befides the one pofitive Evidence,
favour fironely of his having a great Hand in the
Defign of AflafTinating the King.

But then, my Lord, As to the other Part;
his Inviting the Fiench, and prepaving to raeet
them, that is politively proved by two Wirnefles,
Capt. Porter tells you, That the Prifoner was at
the two Meetings in Leadenballfircet, and St
Fainess-flrzct, where it was expredsly relolved by
all that were prefent, and the Prifoner among the
reft, to fend Charmock over to nvite the Ficuch
to invade this Kingdom, and to promife to meet
King Fames at his Landing with Two thoufand
Hlorfe. He fwears, That Sir Z7llian Periyas did
particularly agree to what was fo refolved upon
ac both the Confulis. And Swees tells you that
he had p?:::p:u'ed for the fame Dcfign 5 for that
Sit Williain Parbwes told him, the King would
land, he had his Word for 1t 5 and he himielf
had a Troop of old Seldiers, A% Tieop does coufift
(h: {poke it in the prefent Teale s for 1t beng a
Doubz, Str AW adizm I +"viis did himielf that Righe
as to examine the Witnels again, and be repeated
it as his Words, Ay Troop confits of old Soldiers,
or 15 coipofed of oid Soldicrs.  And he was to have
feveral Volunteers that had been Othicers.

My Lord, Thelt two pofizive Witnefles are
Lyidence that gos to the fame Species of Treaton,
nay to the fime Defian, the railing a Rebelhion,
and the Depoling the King, which is Killtag him
in his politick Capacity; 1 fay, thele Two go
home to the fame D.fign,

And, my Lord, This Evidence upon this Branch
of the Indictment, 15 corroborated too by very
itrong, Circumitances.  There 15 4 Journey to
Loicefber, which Sweet fpeaks of, that Sic William
FParens told him he would underiake : Ths
Journey 1t 1s proved by his Scrvant that he did
undertake; that he met there with feveral Per-
fons, and came back and made his Report to
Savzet of the Saccets of his Journey, and how well
difpofed the King’s Friends were, by which Name
he aiways meant King Faiies; for when he fpoke
of our prefent King, he callzd him the Listl: Geutlz-
wan, or fometimes King Williain, and fometimes,
as the Witnefs at laft faid pofitively, the Prince
of Oraige : But when he {poke of the King, with-
out any thing elfe, he always meant King Faiires 5
and befides, he {poke of a King that was beyond
Sea at Chiiftmas lalt, ewhich could not be King
[Villiam, who was then, and had been in Englaid

fo long before,
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My Lord, the Prifoner in his Defence fays,
‘That this Servant of his that went with him into
Leicefierfbire, had been formerly Charnock’s Ser.
vant, and was fent by Charzock with the Me[-
fage to Kenfington, and not by him. Yet I muft
obferve, that the Evidence {wore pofitively he
was fent by Siv #illiam Perkyns, his Maiter, and
brought the Note in the Almanack lack to the
Perlon to whom he was dire&ed to carry i, who
lodged at the Confedioner’s Houfe s and when
he had fo done, that the Perfon that lodged at the
Confectioner’s did not remit him to Chariack, byt
to his Multer Sir 77dliain Parkyns, with a1 Mef
lage.that he would be at Home, and ftay there
ready, whenever he thould have Occafion for Lim -
and this was vpon the very Satwrday the Kipe
was to have been aflaffinated. 7

My Lord, Siv /7iliicin Parkyns has comphined
that 1if ke could have had his Evidence here, h::
could have proved the Arms had Leen two Years
in his Foufe, and that he found them ther. when
he came thither fielt,  If we thould admic thas
Matter, we might confels, and avoid it ; for it
15 apparent, that thele Arms were on this O
calion pat up in a ffpicoss Manner in Boxces
and fent to Hovioess, (who is a fulpicious Per-
fon, by Realon of his Relation to Chaiaeck,
upon whtfe Lettor and Recommendation they
were received) and concealed dll the Plot was
difappointed 5 and then” they were carried away
from that Place, and buried in Sir /7:/5am Par-
!5;';:5"5 own Garden.  This was juft after the Break -
ing out of the Plot; and they were buried for the
better fecuring them 2s choice Goods, And where-
as the Prifoner fays they were old and ruity when
he found them, 1t now appears they were clean
and new-furbithed Avms, and the Hilts were off
the Swords, and packed together.

My Lord, he has Recowrfe to another Argu-
ment In the lalt Place, the moft moving, I muft
confefs of all, and that 15 the Argument of Pty :
He has {poke of his Education m the Profellion
of the Gown, of his Infirmities, his Agae, and his
Family, Arguments of Pity I am very uniie o
aive an Antwer to, and fhould be very unwilling
to extingutfh any Motions of 1t but this T mut
oblerve even by Way of Anfiver to that Argu-
ment, That the Time was when he fhould have
prtied himfelf, and not engaged in fuch an abo-
minable and meretlefs a Delien; Thac he thould
have had Puy upon his Country, which he plot-
ted to bring under the greatelt Confufion and
Daolatior. 5 That he fhould have had Pity up-
on the beit of Kings, and the beft of Men; but
then there was no Piey, when they thoughe they
had laid their Defigns fo that they had him in
thar Power, but they refolved barbaroufly to
murder him, and perlifted in the Refolution of
Affaflimuing him after they were once difappoint-
ed 3 That, it feems, did not difcourage them, bur
they undertook 1t a {econd Time, and it does not
appear that they ever had any Remorfe ar lat
for 1t bur the Plot broke out, and fo their whola
Defign was fruftrated,

My Lord, This is the Sum, T think, of his De-
fence 5 1 have as well as I was able given an Anfiver
to the Objections made to it, and T muft now
leave 1t with you, Gentlemen of the Jury : And
tho’ thefe Confiderations that T have mentioned
may not quite remove all Compalfion, yet they
may ferve to confirm you in & Refolution of dojne
the King, and Kingdom, and yourfelves _]u{’ticctf
and that 1sall we ask of you. L.C, j‘t
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L.C. ¥. Gentlemenof theJury, Sir #William Par-
kyns 1s indicted of High-Treafon, for Defigning,
Imagining, and Compaffing the Death of the pre-
fent King, There have been feveral Witnefles
produced that have given Evidence upon this In-
di€tment ; the firlt of them is Mr, Porter, who has
been a Witnefs heretofore againlt feveral upon the
like Occalion ; and he gives you this Account,
That about the latter End of May, or the Begin-
ning of Fune laft, there was a Meeting of divers
Perfons at the O4 King’s Head Tavern in Leaden-
hallflreet 1n the City, where they dined together,
and there was Sir William Parkyns, Captain Por-
ter hunlelf, Sir Fobn Fenwick, Sic Fobn Freind, and
divers others that he has mentioned to you, At
that Meeting they did confult together, which
Way the late King Fames might be reftored, and
1t was thought very neceflary that there fhould
be a French Force fent over hither to join with
others for his Reftoration. And they did among
themiclves agree, and determine what Number
of Forces might be convenient for that Purpole,
they did propofe 10000, 8ooc Foot, 10co Horfe,
and 1000 Dragoons: And that a Meflage fhould
be fent over to King Fames, to perfuade him
to follicit the French King, to furnith him with
fuch a Number of Men to be fent over into Eng-
land, Mr. Chariock, that was then in the Com-
pany, was the Perfon agreed vpon among them
to be the Meflenger to be fent upon this Errand,
which Employment he did undertake, upon their
Promufe, that they would raife among themfelves
2000 Horle for to meet the late King at his Land-
ne,

nThis being at that Time determined, and Mr.
Charnock having accepted this Employment, he
did make Preparation to go upon this Errand.
In fome Time after, (a Week or 2 Fortnight, ot
thereabouts) there was another Meeting at which
were feveral of the fame Perfons, that were prefent
at the former, and among them Sir #illiam Par-
kyns was one : And this Meeting was at one Mrs,
Mountjoy’s, that keeps a Tavern in St. Fanes's-
Sireet, where they did difcourfe of what they had
formerly agreed upon, and did again confider whe-
ther they fhould proceed to fend Mr, Charnock
with that Meffage ; to which they all agreed, that
Mr. Charnock thonld go, and he accordingly went ;
and Captain Porier met Ium about five or fix
Weeks after the Meeting at Mrs, Mouirtjoy's, and
Charnock told him he had been in France, and that
fince his Return he had been with the feveral Per-
fons who had fent him, and had acquainted them
with the Anfwer of K. Fames, which was, That
at that Jun&ture of Time the French King had
fuch Occafion for his Forces, that he could not
{pare them, or furnith him with {o many to come
over here. This is the firft Matter that Porser
oives you an Account of.

But then Captain Porter tells you farther, how
the Defign of Affaffinating the King was fet on
Foot about the latter End of Faumary, or the Be-
ginning of February laft,  About which Time Sir
George Barcley was fent over with a Commiffion
from the late King Fames s which feems to have
given great Encouragement to that Party of Men ;
For Sir George Barcley, Captain Porter, and Sir
William Pariyns, with divers others, had feveral
Meetings at the Glode Tavern.in Hatton Garden,
the Nagg’s-Head ‘Tavern i Covent Garden, the Sun
Tavern in the Strand, and other Places. And at
thele Meetings they entred into Confideration,

Vor. IV,
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what was the beft Way to reftore the late King
James to the Throne; and it was agreed among
them, that the beft Means for the Effeéting that
Reftoration, would be to kill King ##illiam, which
they refolved to undertake; and at thefe Debates
and Refolutions, Sir William Parkyns, the Prifoner
at the Bar was prefent, Captain Porfer being
asked whether Sir William Parkyns, at thefe Con-
fults, did confent to the King’s Murther, he faid
they did all agree to the Affaflination of the King,
and Sir Welliam Parkyns faid, he thought it was
very neceffary to be done, to facilitate the Refto-
ration of the fate King,

Gentlemen, This Defign of Affaflinating the
King being thus refolved upon, the next Thing
confidered among them was, how it might be ef-
tected ; there were feveral ways propofed : One
was by an Ambufcade; for the King having a
Houle in the Country by Richiiond, his Majefty
ufed to go once a Week a Huating thereabou,
and to return at Night; and therefore an Am-
bufcade on that fide of the Water, near the Houfe,
was propoled.  Then another Propofal was made-
to fall upon the Guards on this fide the Water,
and at the fame Time that the King’s Coach was®
to be fet upon.  And thefe two Places being pro-
pofed, there was fome Difference of Opinion
among them, whereupon it was agreed that fome
Perfons fhould be fent to view the Ground on both
[ides the Water, which Perfons were Captain Por-
fer, King that was executed, and one Knightley
and fo fome Days before the 15th of February they
did go on borh fides the Water; and viewed the
Ground, and returned in the Evening tothe Nagp’s-
Head Tavern, according to Agreement, where
were mct together Sir George Baicley, Mr. Char-
nock, and the Prifoner at the Bar, Sir William
Parkyns.  And there they made their Report
of their View of the Ground, upon which both
the Propofals were debated, and at laft they.
did all agree that the Attack fhould be made upon’
the King on this fide of the Water, in a Lane
that was between Brentford and Turubam Green s
and the Atitack upon the Guards was likewife to
be made thereabouts.

Sir Willian Parkyns was to furnifth five Horfes,
whereof three of them were to be mounted by
Men of his own providing, the other two were to
be mounted by Men of Captain Porter’s provid-
ing 3 Mr. Porter, Mr. Charnock,and one Rookwood,
were to be principally ingaged in Attacking the
Guards, The Number of Men agreed upon for
the whole, were about Forty or few more, and
Sir George Barcley was to have a Party out of
themall, of about Eight, and as thofe others went
to fall upon, and charge the Guards, Sir George
Barcley, with his Party of Men, was to attack the
King in his Coach, and by fhooting into the Coach
to kill the King and all that were with him.

The Time agreed upon for putting this Defign
in Execution was on Saturday the 15th of February,
That Day 1t was expected the Xing would go a
Huntung, And two Men were planted at Ken-

Jfington to give Notice when the King went, and up-

on fuch Notice, thefe Men were to march out in
fmall Parties, and to lodge in the Inns, and pub-
lick Houfes about Brentford, and Turnbam Green,
upon Notice of the King’s Return from the othes
fide of the Water, and Sir George Barcley was 1o
be in Readinefs to fet upon the Coach in the Lane

and the other Party to attack the Guards.

40 2 But
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But this horrid Defign was very happily difco-
vered, which prevented the King’s going Abroad
on that Day ; and though they were difappointed
for that Time, yet the Defign was notat an End :
But their Refolutions continue to make the like At-
tempt when they could have another Opportu-
nity. And for that Purpofe there was another
Meceting, as Captain Porter tells you, upon the
Friday tollowing at the Suz Tavern in the Strand,
at which Sir #illiain Parkyns, Sir George Barcley,
Rookevood, and Charnock, and Captain Porter, were
prefent, and they did agree to attack the King
and the Guards, the next Day, in the fame Place
and Manner that they had formerly agreed upon.
But by good Providence the King had Notice of
it, fo that he did {orbear to go Abroad that Day,
whercby thefe Confpirators were totally difap-
pointed of their barbarous and villainous D:fign
which they had refolved upon, and had made fuch
Preparations to compafs.

It is true, Captain Perfer doss tell you, Sir
IVilliam Parkyns was not to be one that fhould be
actually prefent at the Affaffination ; but he was to
furmfh five Horfes, three of them to be mounted
by Men of his own Providing, and two by Men
that Capiain Porter was to provide. And youare
told pofitively that Captain Porter, atr this Laft
Meeting, did complamn that two of his Horfes
were fallen lame, and acquainted Sir William Par-
kvns with 1t, and he promiled ro help him to two
more by the means of one Lewis that was Gentle-
man of the Horfe to my Lord Feverfbam,

Then you are told, that St 7William Parkyns

fent to Szoect to come to Town the 11th of Febru-
ary, and Sivcet comes to Town accordingly, on

Wednefday the 12th of Felruary, and then he had
Difcourfe with Sir Williaiir Parkyns at hus Lodgings,
where Sir /7iliam told him, that becaufe of his
Family, he would not imploy him in the Bulinefs
he intended for him, and therefore bid him go
home again 3 and wichall, direfted him to return
to Town the Fiidey following, and order his
Groom to bring his I {urles to Town 3 he menti-
oned three Horles which fhould be theftrongeft he
had ; the Groom broughtup the three Horles, and
Sweet came to Town with lum, and ftad all Sz-
tiday, Sic Hidliam Pardyvas faid he thought to go
out of Town in the Afterncon, but did not, but
ftayed tll Monday, when he went out of Town,

But upon the Fridy following, the Horfes of
Sir Iilliam Pariyns were brought to Town again,
which now were Four, and were fect up at the
George Lin v Hefosurn sy and 1t appears that Mr.
Leeors furnithed one Florfe, for there were five
Horfes upon the Account of Sir 7¥illianr Parkyus,
of which a Roan [orfe was one which came from
Soricrfct-Houfe, 'This 1s proved by the Hoftler;
and that Lzwss himfelf came in on Saturday in the
Alfterncon to inquire for Siv IVilliam Parkyns, but
he was gone and the Horfes were taken away, and
he once came with Sir 2illiam Parkyns to the Inn.
Thefe are Circumftances that do concur with, and
confirm Captain Perser’s Evidence concerning the
providing Horfes for this Defign.

Then there is another Particular of Captain
Porter’s Evidence concerning the Commiffion from
King Fames, which 15 remarkable: It was told
you, that he aske Charnock whether he had feen the
Commuffion: He faid, No, but Sir William Pay-
kyns had: And Sir /7illiam Pardyns was askt by
Porter, as they were fitting by the Fire-fide, whe-
¢cher he had feen the Commiflion; and Sir 777/ian;

Parkyns anfwered, that he had feen it, and had
read 1t, and 1t was written with King Fames’s own
Hand ; and that the Subftance of it was to make
War upon the Perfon of the Prefent King, who
was called in the Commiiffion, as you may fuppofe,
the Prince of Orange. So that, Gentlemen, asto
the Defign of the Aflaffinating the King, and of
this Commufiion which was underftood by them to
be for that Purpole, this is the Sum and Subftance
of Perter’s Evidence fo attended wich, and con-
firmed by thefe Circumitances, as you have heard.
Belides the other Witnefs, Sweef, who was a
areat Acquaintance of St William Parkyns, tells
you, That about Chriftmas lalt, he was informed
by Sir #illiass Parkyiss, that the King would come,
which he underftood to be meant of King Fames.
He asked Sir 27illian Paikyns how he knew it ? and
he faid, He had s Word for it; and that his
Troop confifted of Old Soldiers, and he had thir-
ty Saddles ; and befides, there would be fome Vo-
lunteers, which were Old Officers.  Then he faid,
He was to go into Leiceflerfhire, and he did go with
one Scudamore 5 and thiswas 1 Fannary, about the
latter End, as ] remember,  They lay that Night
at Stony-Stratford, and the next Night at Leicefer,
and Scwaamore went with him; and afterwards
one Jurborongh, and 2 Parfon, came to him out of
Forkfbire : And when he came back he faid, He
tound all there to be very well; and the Welt was
as well inclined to the King’s Intereft, as the
North ; and a Lord’s Brother was concerned.
Then in the next Place you are told, Thatat
Michaelmas 1att, Mr, Charnock did write a Letter
to one Haywood, who had married his Sifter, and
lived near Sir Z77lliam Parkyns in I arwickfbire, to
defire him to reccive fome Goods into his Houfe
that were to come from Sir #illiam Parkyns’s, and
lay them up very carefully y for they were choice
Goods, which Str 7Villiam durft not leave in his
own Houfe, becaufe he had lefrit.  And accord-
ingly there were thefe Boxes and Chefls fent to
Heywoeod’s, and recetved by him into his Floufe,
where they continued till the latter End of Fe-
bruary, Hayiwood about this Time, when the De-
fien of the Afeffination was on foor, met wich Sir
IWilliam Parkyns in Town, and asked him how he
would difpofe of thofe Goods? Thereupon Sir
IVilliam Parsyns fent his Servant Into the Country s
and Noiice was given on Ap-TWednefday, the
Wednefday after the firft Proclamation thar iffued
upon the Difcovery of this Confpiracy, that thefe
Goods fhould bz removed: And a Man, in the
Lvening, went to Haywoos’s Honfe with a Cart
and Horles, and removed thefe Chefls; they were
three in Number; and thofe being opened, there
were eight lefler ones taken our, and carried away
about Nine or Ten a Clock at Night, to Sir
William Partyns’s Houle in Warwickfeire, where
they were buried in the Garden, and afrervard
were dug up, which was ar the Scarching Sir
Williaw’s Houle upon the Breaking out of the
Plot; and wher they were opened, it did appear
what fort of Goods they were: They were Arms,
a confiderable Quantity of them; Four Dozen of
Swords withiout Hilts, Twenty-five Pair of Piftols,
and a great Number of Carbines, Thirty.two
as I remember, and a Parcel of Hilrs pack’d up
in a Box by themfelves, This, Gentlemen, is
fworn to you by the Perfons that were prefent at
the Digging them up, and Opening the Boxes.
Then, Geatlemen, you are told, That though
Sir William Parkyns pretends they were Arms that

he
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~ he found in the Houfe when he came thither, yet
they were not old ruty Arms, as he pretends,
but they were very bright, and it for Ufe and
Service,

There is one Circumnftance more that feems to
affeét Sir William Parkyns, about the Bufinefs of
the Affaflination; and that is proved by Eundank,
Sic Williaw’s own Servant. There was a Note
fent upon Saturday, the 22d of February in the
Morning, to one Brown at Kenfiugton, by Siv
IWilliain Parkyns’s Man; and this Brows writ 1n
the Servant’s Almanack, that he would be m
Town himifclf in a little Time, and bid him carry
it toa Man that lodged at a Confetioner’s over-
againft Grays-Inn Gate in Holbourn : Siv Williaws
Perkyns’s Man accordingly goes to this Con-
feCtioner’s, and fpeaks with the Perfon there that
he was direted to go to; and he fays he was a
Scotch Man, and talked broad like a Scosch Man,
and he bid him go and tell his Mafter, That he
would ftay within for him tll he came; and he
did accordingly.

Gentlemen, This 1s the Sum and Subftance
of the Evidence that is given againft Sir
William Parkyns, Now you are to confider what
Siv William fays for himfelf: He does admit,
and agree, That what Perter fays is very pofitive
and full; but that is but the Evidence of one
Witnefs: For, fays he, by the Law no Perfon
ought to be convicted of High-Treafon, upon the
Teftimony of one Witnels, As to the Matrer
of Law he is in the right; No Man ought to be
convicted of Treafon upon the Teftimony of a
fingle Witnefs, Now firft fuppofe the Defign to
affaflinate the King had not been proved; con-
fider then whether there be not Two Witnefics
befides.  Porter proves, That Charnock was fent
into Frauce, by Str William Parivis, and others,
upon that Errand; to which, if you add the
Tefltimony of Sweet, that fivears, That Siv Wilhan
Parkyns told him the King would come, and he
had a Troop, and had bought Saddles; and
what is faid concerning his going into Lesceffer-
fire, and his having a Quantity of Arms: lf all
which be underftood in Purfuance of the Defign
againft his prefent Majelty, then there are at
Jeaft Two Witnefizs of feveral Overt Acts of the
fame Treafon.

For, Gentlemen, I muft tell you, tho’ there
had been no Evidence of a Delign to Affaffinate
the King, but the Defign and Purpofe had been to
Depofe him, and fer the late King upon the
Throne, or join with a I‘orce to mvade the
- Realm, that is High-Treafon within the Statute
of 25 Edw. the Third, as being a Deligning the
Death and Deftruttion of the King.  There hath
been a full Proof by Two Witnefles, 1f what
Sweer, and the other Witnefles befides Porser fay,
to prove Sir /Williain Parkyns to be concerned n

that Defign, which fhall be confidered further of

by and by.

But in the next Place, fuppole that the Meet-
ings at the Awg’s-Heed 1n Leadenball-Stieet, and
at Msuntjoy’s, had not been proved; but the De-
fion to Affaffinate the King 13 proved by one
Witnes, and the providing Men and Arms to
fight againft him 1s proved by onc other Wit-
ne(ss thisis a Proof of the fame Treafon: For
though the Overt Aéts be feveral, yet they both
tend o the fame End, the Deftruction of the
King, though ina different Manner ; and though
the Law requires two Wiinefles to the fame Sort

for High-T'reafon.
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of Treafon, yet it dots not require two Wit-
neffes to any one Overt Aét, For if one Witnels
prove one Overt Act at one Time, and another
Witnefs prove another Overt A¢ atanother Time,
thefe are two Witneffes wirthin the Meaning of
the Law ; and fo it has been always pra&ifed,- and
never denied to be Law that I know of.

Befides it is obfervable upon this Point, which
my Brother has mentioned, That this new A& of
Parliament, which does not yet take Effect, pro-
vides, that there fhall be either two Witnefies to
one Overt A&, or one Witnefs to one, and ano-
ther to another of the fame Species of Treafon 3
and you have had the Opinion of all of us now
that are here, that thefe are Overt Ats of oneand
the fame Species of Treafon. | |

But then Sir #lliam Parkyns objefls, That Sweet
does not prove any Overt A&, Now for that,
you are to confider the Force of Sweer’s Evi-
dence, who tells you the Difcourle of Sir William
Parkyns, about Chriftinas laft, of the King’s Co-
ming, of his Saddles, and of his Troop confiftin
of old Soldiers, and Volunteers that were old Offi-
cers, But fays Sir 77, Parkyns, this 15 only Words,
and Words are not Treafon. But then confider,that
they are Words that relate to Acts and Things.
You hear he had a great Quantity of Arms, be-
yond what he, asa private Man, could have Oc-
cafion for, or would ufe. He does not give you
any Account what he was to do with thofe Arms,
or to what Purpofe he fhould keep them, nor why
he caufed them to be removed in the Night, after
they had lain privately in Hayweed’s Houle, and
caufed them to be carried back to his own Houfe,
and buried them in the Ground, and at fuch a
Time when there was a Plot, and after the Plot
was difcovered, and a Proclamation out for his
own Apprehenfion. |

Sir Willians Parkyns's Difcourfe with Sweer, of
King Fames’s Coming, and his Trocp confilting
of fuch Men, plainly fhews what thofe Arms were
for. For, Gentlemen, Men’s Difcourfes and their
Words explain their Actions; and an indifferent
A&ion in itlelf may be fo explained by Words,
that it will be unlawful, It is Jawful for a Man
to buy a Piftol; buc if it can be plinly proved
from his Words or his Speeches, that the Defign
of Buying it was to ufe it againft the Perfon or
Life of the King, that will be an Overt Act.
Now when Sir #illiam Parkyns faid, The late
King would come, and that he had a Troop which
confifted of fuch Soldicrs; then thefe Arms being
found in that Manner, I muft leave to your Gon-
{ideration whether it is not a Proof, for what
Purpofe he did provide them, and to what Ute
he intended to put them; efpecially fince he
gives you no Account, what Ule or Occafion he
had for them. He fays, indeed, he found them
in the Houfe two Years ago, how probable that
is, you may confider. ,

Then there is another Thing, his Going mto
Leicefterfbire with Scudamore, and his Meeting
there with Yarborough, and other People In that
private and hafty Manner. He went out on the
Thurfday, and came Home again upon Monday
Night ; and then he meets with Sweet, and tells
him that all was well ; and the Welt was as well
inclined to the King’s Intereft as the North, What
King muft he mean? he had no Commiffion from
King William to go into Leiceferfbire to difcourfe
with People, to fee how they ftood affected to his
Intereft. Sweet comesand tells you, that when Sir
William
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William Parkyns {poke of the King, he underftood
he meant King Fames, 1 muft leave it to your
Confideration, how you will interpret thefe
Words.

. 1t 1s true, Gentlemen, it is not fit there fhould
be any ftrained or forced Conftrution put upon a
Maw’s Words or Actions, when he is tried for
hus Life.  You ought to have a full and fatisfacto-
ry Evidence to convince you, that he is Guilty,
before you pronounce him o3 but however, you
are to conflider the Nature of Things, and the
Circumftances that attend them.  If you can fup-
pole that he went into Leiceflerfbire to King Wil-
lands Friends, and that he was of Opinion, the
Well was as well Affe@ed to King William, as the
North ; then you make a different Conftruction
from Sweet, who tells you, that always when he
fpake of the King, he underftood it of King Feames s
and at Chriftmas, when he fpoke of the King’s
Coming, it muft be meant King Fames 5 for King
IVilliain was here before, and he pretends not he
had any Authority to raife a Troop for King
IWill:ain,

So that, Gentlemen, I muft leave it to you up-
on the whole Matter ; if you are fatisfied, that Sir
Wiliiam Parkynsis guilty of the Matters of which
he ftands charged, you will find him guilty 3 you
have heard the Evidence, and will confider of it;
and 1f, upon the Whole, you are not fatisfied,
that he Is guilty of the Matters charged in this
Indictment, then you are to acquit him.

Tweir an Officer being froorn to keep the Jary
according to Cuftom, they withdrew to coi-

- Juder of their Verdil?, and in lefs than Half
on Hoar, returned into Court,

Cl. of drr. Gentlemen of the Jury, Anfier to
your Names,  IVulliam Northey, e
Mr. Noithey,  Here.
(Asd fo of the Refl.)

Cl.of Av. Gentlemen, are you all agreed on
your Verdict ?

Ty, Yes,

CL. of drr. Who fliall fay for you?

Jury. Our Foreman,

G of diy. Sic William Parkyns, hold up thy
Hand, (wbich be did.) Look upon the Prifoner;
how fay ye, is he guilty of the High-Treafon where-
of he {tands inditted, or not guilty?

Fereman.  Guilty, my Lord.

Cl. of Arr. What Goods or Chattels, Lands or
Tenements, had he at the Time of the High-Trea-
lon committed, or at any Time fince?

Foremen. None to our Knowledee.

L.C. J. Jaylor, look to him, heis found Guilty
of High-Treaton. -

Cl.of Ar. Then hearken to your Verdi&t as the
Court has recorded it.  You fay that Sir #illiam
Parzyns 15 guilty of the High-Treafon whercof he
{tands indicted, but that he had no Goods or
Chattels, Lands, or Tenements, at the Time
of the Figh-Trealon committed, or at any Time
fince, toyour Knowledge, and fo you fay all?

Fury., Yes.

C. of dr. Gentlemen, the Court dilcharges you,
and thanks you for your Service.

While the Fury was withdrawn to confider of the
Verdici, Sir John Freind was brought from
Newgate fo the Bar, in order to bis betng
called to Fudpment, and after the Verdi&l, be
sddiefs’d bimfelf to the Conrt thus,

Freind, My Lotd, I humbly befeech your

Lordfhip to give me leave to read this Paper.
(To which the Court gave no Anfwer.)

Freind, My Lord, will your Lord{bip give me
eave to read it.

L. C. }. Ay, if you will,

(Reads.)
Freind, My Lord, I humbly move in Arreft of

Judgment, that I am not conviéted of Treafon
by Two Witneffes, as I ought to have been with-
in the Statute of the 2 5th of Edward the Third :
For Mr, Porter fwears, That I, with others, in
May or Fune laft, fent to the Fremch King to
invade England; he is the only Witnefs to that
Matter. Mor., Blair fwears, That I thewed hima
Commiffion in Surrey-fireet, about two Years fince,
hgn’d by King Fames, and counterfign’d Mzl
ford, to be a Colonel of Horfe, and that I gave
him fome Moneys for the Cherifhing of the Men.
My Lord, here is no Levymg of War, fworn by
Mr, Bleir ; and Confpiring to levy War not being
Treafon, I am convicted by one Witnefs, and

theretore I pray Council may be affigned me, to
plead this Matter.

L.C. 7. Sir Jobu Freind, that which you move
now, 1s not in Arreft of Judgment, it is Mat-
ter that does arife upon the Evidence, and what
you now fay, arraigns the Verdict, and the Pro-
ceedings upon your Trial, There were Two
Witneffes againt you, that is plain. You were
not indicted for Levying War, but for Com-
paffing and Imagining the Death of the King;
and we told you the Defign of the Invaficr, and
Confpiring to depofe the prefent King, and reftore
the late King, was an Overt A& of that High-
Treafon. The Commiffion was not fo much
ftood wpon, but the Advancing Moneys upon
this Account, to Blair your Lieutenant Colonel,
to give to the Men, that was a plain Overt A&,

and fo there were certainly Two Witnefles againft
yolr.

Freind, My Lord, T hope, I can clear my felf :

I thank God, I am as Innocent as the Child un-
born, of the Affaffination of the King, I would

not have the People think, that I am fuch a
Man,

L.C.F. But you remember, it was fworn
you knew of 1, and we have told you, that
the Defign of Reftoring the late King by Force,
and Depofing the King, are Overt Aéts of ima-
gining his Death, if fuch an Intention be proved,
as 1t was in your Cafe, and the Jury have found
1t {o.

Freind. My Lord, I humbly befeech you, be-
cafe I do not underftand Matter of Law, and
am advis’d to move this in Arreft of Judgment;
I defire my Council may be heard to it.

L.C.}. We cannot hear Council, but upon a
Matter that arifes upon the Record itfelf, that is,
the Indictment. We cannot enter into any Exami-

nation of this Matter, that you now fpeak of, you
had a long Trial Yefterday.

Freund. My Lord, Iam forry to give your Lord-
fhip anyOccafion of Trouble ; but T humbly befeech
you, if it may be,that I may be heard by my Coun-
cil, for the Satisfaction of the World ; pray, my
Lord, hear what they can fay.

L.C. 7. They cannotfay any Thing ; no Coun-
cil in the World that underftand themielves, can
argue any Thing againft what has been o often

fetcled and always practifed,

Freind, |
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Freind. My Lord, if it be to be granted, I be-

{zech your Lordthip to grant it
L. C. J. Itcannot be granted ; befides the Mat-

ter you NOW Move upon, IS improper; it was all
confidered upon your Trial. It was told you, we
did all agree, that a Confpiracy to levy War to
depofe the King is Treafon, or to mvade the
Realm is Treafon. All this was confider’d at
your Trial, and that IS OW Over.

Parkyns. My Iord, it your Lordthip plea-
fes, 1 defire I may have the Liberty of fome
Friends and Relations, and a Minifter to come to
me.

L.C.J. Yes, yes, by all Means.

Parkyns. 1f your Lordfhip pleafes, that they
may come and be private with me, and pray let
me have a Rule of Court for 1t, otherwile I fhall
not have any Benefit of 1t

L. C. J. Yes, yes, itis very fit you fhould have
it: there fhall be an Order of Court for it:
See that the Keeper take Care it be done with
Safety.

Freind, My Lord, I defire the fame Liberty
of a Minifter, and my Relattons and Friends
to come to me; that for what Time I have to
to live, I may make the beft Ule 1 can of 1t
for my Soul, which T hope God will enable me

to do.

Then the Court weas asjorined witil Five a Clack
on the Afternoon, and chout Six the Fuftices
returied, and the Court <was refuined,

Cl of A, Set Sir Jobin Fieind to the Bar:
(I7hich <was done.) Siv JFobu Freind, hold up thy
Hand s (which bz cid) Thou ftandeft convit-
ed of [1igh Treafon, for trareroully Compafling
and Imagining the Death of our Sovereign Lord
King IFilliar the Third.  What canit thou fay
for thy felf why the Court fhould not give thee
Judement according to the Law ?

(Ther being wrcde to Lieely be afterwards flood

ip, )

Lieind, 1 have faid already, what I have to fay
in Arreft of Judgment.

Mr, Com. Serjeant. Sir, you have heard the
Judgment of the Court, as to what you have
faid 5 if you have nothing elfe to offer, the Court
mult proceed to Judgment.

Cl. of v, for Middlefex. Siv Villiain Parkyns.
hold up thy Hand ; (which be did ) Thou ftand-
elt convicted of High Treafon 1n Compaffing and
Imagining the Death of the King, and adhering
to the King’s Enemics.

What canft thou fay for
thyfelf, why the Court fhould not give thee Judg-
ment to die, according to the Law ¢
(He <oas wade to kizél, aind vife up egain.)

Parlyis. ] have nothing more to offer.

Cl. of Arr. Then Cryer, make Proclamation.

Cryer. O yes; all Manner of Perfons are com-
manded to keep Silence, while Judgment isin gi-
ving, upon Pain of Imprifonment.

Jhich Preclainetion wwas ode oin both Sides
the Couity and ther M. Cominon Serjeant
Sitting with the Reft of the Court upon the
Beich, prononnced ibe Seutence,

M, Coin. Seif. You the Prifoners at the Bar, Sir
Yobu Freind, and Sir IWilliow Perkyis, you have
been indiGted for High Treaton, tn Compaffing
the Death and Deftruction of the King: For

for High=Treafon.
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your Trial, you have put your felvés upon the
Country, which Country has found you Guilty.
The Offence is the greatett in the Judgment of
_tlle Law, that a Man can -commit; and it is
Jultly and reafonably fo. For Robbery and Mur-
der are Injuries to private Perfons, but Compaf-
fing the Death of the King, is Compaffing the
Deftruction of the Father of your Country,
and letting in Rapine, Death, and Defolati-
on upon Thoufands of People. And even this,
the heinoufeft of Offences, is capable of Aggra--
vation; for there have been always Excufes, and
fometimes Juftifications for Rebellion: And as
to Murder and private Revenge, there may be
fomewhat faid in Mitigation from the Violence
of Men’s Paffions. But to fit, and confpire, and
confult, and debate the Daftruction of a Prince
no Man yet ever had the Confidence to make an
Ixcufe for it. I would not add to your Aflicti-
on; I am fenfible of the fevere Judgment that
1s to follow, and which you have brought upon
your felves, and cannot but pity you for the
great Burden of Guilt, that you have laid your
fclves under. I only fay this to offer it to your
ferious Confideration, in the few Moments you
have to prepare for anotiier World, and another
Judgment,  All that remams for me, 1s to pro-

nounce the Judoment of the Law in thele Cafes,
and the Court does Award 1,

That you, aid each of you, go back to the
Place from wheice you caie, aud from:
thence be drawi on a Hurdle, to the Place
of Execution, where you [fball be fevirally
Hanged np by the Neck, and cwt down
alive 5 your Bodies fhell dz ript open,
your Privy-Members cut off, your Bowels
taken out, and Burnt before your Faces s
sotr Heads fhall be  fevered from  your
Bodies, your Bodies wefpeciively to e di-
vided inte Four Quarters, and your Heads
aird Quarters are to be at the Difpofal of
the King : Aid the Lord bave Mercy vpom

your Sonuls,

Then the Prifoners weie

carried back the NVew-
gale, ,

On Fridry April 3. 1696. Sir John Freind and
St William Parkyns were drawan on Sledges from
Newgate /o Tyburn, where they defliver’d the
following Papers to the Sheriffs.

Sir JouN FRE1xD’s Paper,

Nowing that I muft immediately give an

Account to God of all my Acions, and
that I ought to be elpecially careful of what I fay
in thefe laft Hours, I do folemnly profefs, that
what I here deliver is from my very Soul, with
all the Hearunels and Sincerity of a dying Chri-
{tian,

The Caufe I am brought hither to fuffer for, I
do firmly believe to be the Caufe of God and
true Religion, and, to the beflt and utmoft of my
Knowledge and Information, agreeable to the
Laws of the Land, which I have evermore heard
do require a firm Duty and Allegiance to our So-
vereign 5 and that as no foreign, fo neither any
domeftick Power can alicnate our Allegiance. For
it is altogether new and unintelligible to me, that

the
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the King’s Subjelts can depofe and dethrone him
on any Account, or conflitute any that have not
an immediate Right in his Place, We ought, 1
think, not to do this; and furely, when it 1s done_,
to aflift him in the Recovery of his Right, 1s
juflifiable, and our Duty. And however T'hings
may feem at prefent, I do believe, I am fure |
heartily pray, that he fhall be one Day reftored
to bis rightful Throne and Domintons.

" As for any fudden Delcent of his Majefty up-
on thefe his Dominions, in order to the Recovery
of them, I declare I had no certain Knowledge of
it; nor can I tell what Grounds there was to te-
lieve it, fo little Reafon had I to be in a prefent
Preparation for it, I fuppole it 1s not expeéted I
fhould here endeavour to clear myflf of thé Af-
faffination, which was not the Thing alledged
againft me ; however, 1t was mention’d, through
what Means I know not.  As it was infinvated to
my Difadvantage, I forgive fuch as were therein
inftromental 3 and I do alo, from the very Bottom
of my Soul, freely forgive, and beg of God todo
fo too, fuch as were any ways acceflary towards
the taking away my Life, which I really look up-
on to be their Misfortune more than mine.

I profefs myfelf, and I thank God [ am {o, a
Member of the Church of England, though, God
knows, a moft unworthy and unprofitable Part
of it 3 of that Church which fuffers fo much at
prefent for a {triét Adherence to Loyalty, the
Laws and Chriftian Principles 5 For this I fuffer,
aid for this I die.

Tho’ I have a perfe& Charity for People of all
Profeffions, and do heartily wifh well, and would
endeavour to do fo to all my Fellow-Subjets, of
what Perfuafion foever. And indeed 1 have met
with a great deal of Upnghtnels and Sincerity
among fome People of very different Opinions in
religious Matters.

And I hope and defire it may not be taken as
an uncharitable Cenfure, or undue Reflettion, that
I objected to the Legality of Popifh Evidence,
being advis’d {o to do for my better Security, up-
on the Foundation of a4 Statute-Law.

Having owned myfelf a Member of the Church
of England, T muft take this Opportunity, and I
do it for God’s Glory, to apply myfelf to you
that are Royalifts of that Church, and of the
fame Faith and Principles with myfelf: And I
beg of you, for God’s fake, and the Love of
your Souls, to be very conftant and ferious 1n all
religious Offices, and holy Duties, of divine
Worlhtp and Service, which I have too much
negleted, as I own to my great Sorrow: Let no
Excufe, no Dangers, prevent or hinder you In
thefe moft neceflary and ferious Matters; and be,
I beleech you, very careful and circumf{pect in all
your Actions, Behaviour, and Converfation, as
I earneftly exhorted all that came to me.

I have, I thank God, a great deal of Satil-
fiction m my prefent Sufferings, and have found
it fo ever fince I have been under them : And

bleffed be God it doth continually increafe upon
me. And I do now lay down my Life with all
Chearfulnefs and Refignation, in fure and certain
Hope of a Refurrection to cternal Life, through
our Lord Jefus Chrift; through whofe Merits a-
lone 1 hope for the Pardon of my Sins, and the
Salvation of my Soul.

And fo, O Lord! into thy Hands I cominend mr-
Spirit 5 for thor baft rvedeeined me, O Lord! thoy
God of Truth.

Jor~x Frizwb.
Sir WirriaMm Parkyns's Papir,

T hath not been my Cuftom to ufe many

Words, and I {hall not be long upon this Oc-
calion, having Bufinefs of much greater Confe-
quence to employ my Thoughts upon, 1 thank
God I am now in a fuil Dilpofition to Charity,
and therefore fhall make no Comphints, either
of the Hardfhips of my Trial, or any other Ri.
gours put upon me. However, one Circumftance
I think myfelf oblig’d to mention. It was fivorn
againlt me by Mr. Porter; That I had own’d to
him that I had feen and read a Commiffion from
the King to levy War upon the Perfon of the
Prince of Oraige.  Now, I muft declare, that the
Tenour of the King’s Commiffion, which I faw,
was general, and directed to all his loving Sub-
jects, to raife and levy War againft the Prince of
Orange, and his Adherents ; and to feize all Forts,
Caftles, &c. which, I fuppole, may be a cuftoma-
ry Form of giving Authority to make War; but
[ muft confefs 1 am not much acquainted with
Matters of that Nawre: But as for any Com-
miffion particularly levell’d againft the Perfon of
the Prince of Orange, I neither faw nor heard of
any fuch,

It’s true, I was privy to the Defign upon the
Prince, but was not to a& in 1t 3 and am fully fa-
tisfied that very few, or none, knew of it but
thofe who undertook to do it

I freely acknowledge, and think it for my Ho-
nour to fay, that I was entirely in the Intereft of
the King, being always firmly perfuaded of the
Juftice of his Caufe; and I look’d upon it as my
Duaty, both as a Subject, and an Euglifbinan, to
affift him in the Recovery of his Throne, which
I believe him to be depriv’d of contrary to all
Right and Juftice; taking the Laws and Confti-
tutions of my County for my Guide,

As for Religion, I die in the Communion of the
Church of Englend, in which I was educated.

And as I freely forgive all the World, {0 whe-
ever I may any ways have injur’d, I heartily ask
them Pardon.

Wirriam Parxvws,

Jereny Collier, a Nonmuring Minifter, publick-
ly abfolv’d them at the Gallows.

After which they were executed according to
thelr Sentence,

CLV. The



CLVI. The Trial of AMBROSE Rookwoob, for High-
Trealon, the 21ft of April, 8 Will. III. 1696. 4 he
Seffrons of Oyer and Terminer for the County of Middlefex
fitting in the Court of King’s-Bench 2z Weftminfter.

W HE Court being fat, at which were

prefent the Lord Chief Juftice Fol,
2ol the Lord Chief Juftice Trely, Mr.
el Juftice Newil, Mr. Jultice Pewell,
4 and Mr. Juftice Eyre; the Court

proceeded In this Manner. ‘

Cl. of Ar. Cryer, make Proclamation,

Cryer. Oyez, Oyez, Oyez: All Manner of Per-
fons that have any Thing more to do, at this
Seflions of Oyer and Zerminer, holden for the
County of M:dd:fix, draw near and give your

Autendance,  God fave the King.

Thein the Grand Fury werve called every and the
Appearaitces narked, and Witnelfes  befug
fizorn in Courty to give Evidence to them
wpon a Bill of Indiflment agamft Alexander
Knightlc‘y, they i a little Time after with-
drcew to bear the Evidence,

Then the Keeper of Newgate was oraer’d to
bring bis Prifoners to the Bars (wbich be
did,) to wit, Robert Lowick, Ambrofe
Rookwood, aird Charles Cranburne 5 svbo

cwere thus arieigied.

Cl. of dr. Rebert Lewick, hold up thy Hand.
(1which he did.)

Ambiofe Reoksocod, bold up thy Hand. (wbich
be did.)

Chailes Cranbuyne, hold up thy Hand, (sobich
be did )

You fland indi¢ted 1n the County of ALdd:-
fix, by the Names of Rebert Lowick of the Pa-
rifh of St. Paul Covent-Garden, 1n the County of
Middlefex, Gentleman ;5 Ambrofe Rooxwosd of the
fime Parith, Gentleman, and Charles Crauburne
of the fame Parifh and County, Yeoman ; for that
you, together with one Chriflapher Kuightley, of
the fame Parith and County, Gentleman, not yet
taken 3 not having the Fear of GOD 1 your
Hearts, nor weighing the Duty of your -Allegi-
ance, but being moved and feduced by the Infti-
aation of the Devil, as falfe Traytors againft che
moft ferene, moft illuftrious, moft clement, and
moft excellent Prince, cur Sovereign Lord 777/-
air the Third, by the Grace of God, King of
England, Scotland, France, and Irelond, Defender
of the Faith, &c. your {fupreme, true, rightful,
lawful, and undoubted Lord, the cordial Love,
and true and due Obedience, Fidelity and Al
leciance, which every Subjet of our fad Lord
the King that now s, towards him our faid Lord
the King fhould bear, and of right ought to
bear, withdrawing, and utterly to extingnifh in-
tending and contriving, and with all your Strength
refolving, defigning, and confpiring the Govern-
ment of this Kingdom of Englend, under him
our faid Sovereign Lord the King that now is,

You IV, ‘

of Right, duly, happily, and well eftablifh’d,
altogether to fubvert, change, and alter, as alfo
our faid Lord the King to Death and final De-

[truction to put and bring, and his faithful Sub-

jects, and the Freemen of this Kingdom of Eng-

land, into intolerable and moft miferable Servi-
tude to Lewis the French King to fabjugate and,
inthral, the 1oth Day of Febreary, in the feventh
Year of the Reign of our faid fovereign Lord the
Kmng that now 15, and divers other Days and
Times as well before as after, at the Parifh of St
Panl Covent-Garden, aforefaid, in the County
aforefud, falfely, malicioufly, devilithly, and
traiteroufly, did compafs, imagine, and contrive,
refolve, delign, and intend, our faid Lord the
King that now 15, to kill, {lay, and murther, and
a mifcrable Slaughter among the faithful Subjeéts
of our fard Lord the King, throughout this whole
Kingdom of England, to make and caufe, and
the fame your moft impious, wicked, and de-
vililh Treafons, and traiterous Compaflings, Con-
trivances, and Purpofes aforefaid, to fulfil, per-
fect, and bring to cffect, you the faid Robert Lo-
wick, Aibrofe Rookwood, and Charles Cranburne,
together wich the faid Chriflopher Knightley, and

. very many other falfe Traytors, to the Jurors un-

known, afterwards, to wit, the fame roth Day of
February, in the Year abovefaid, at the Parifh
aforefaid, In the County aforefaid, and divers
other Days and Times, as well before as after,
there and elfewhere 1n the fgme County, Falfely,
Malicioufly, Advifedly, Sccretly, Traiteroufly,
and with Force and Arms, did Meet, Propofe,
Treat, Confult, Confent, and Agree, him our faid
Lord the King that now is, by lying in wait, and
Guile, to Aflaffinate, Kill and Murder ; and that
execrable, horrid, and deteftable Affaflination,
and Killing the fooner to execute, and perpetrate,
afterwards (to wit) the fame Day and Year, and
divers other Days and Times, at the Parifh
aforefaid, in the County aforefaid, Traiteroufly
did Treat, Propofe, and Confult, of the Ways,
Manner, and Means, and the Time and Place,
where, .when, how, and 1n what Manner, our
faid Lord the King, fo by lying in wait, the more
ealily you might kill ; and did confent, agree, and
affent, that forty Horfemen, or thereabouts, where-
of the faid Chriffopher Knightly, you the faid
Robert Lowick, Ambrofe Rookwood, and Charles
Cranburre, fhould be four; and every one of you
traiteroufly took upon himfelf to be one, with
Guns, Muskets, and Piftols, charged with Gun-
powder and leaden Bullets, and with Swords,
Rapiers, and other Weapons, being Armed,
fhould lie in wait, and lie in Ambufh, our faid
Lord the King in his Coach being, when he
fhould go abroad, to invade, and that a cer-
tain and competent Number of thofe Men, o
armed, fhould fer upon the Guards of our faid

4 P Lord
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Lord the King then attending him, and be-
ing: with him, and fhould Bghr with them, and
overcome them, whilt orhers of the fame
Men o armed, our fuid Lord the King fhould
affafinate, flay, kill, and murther; and you
the faid Rebert - Lowick, Ambrofe Rookwood, and
Charles Gramburue, together with the faid Chriffo-
pher Kuightlzy, the Treafon, and all the traite-
rous Ingentions, Dedigns, and Contrivances afore-
fiid, to cxecute, perform, fulfil, and bring to
Effet, afterwards (to wit) the aforefaid Tct}th
Day of -Febinary, in the feventh Year abovefaid,
at the Parifh. aforefaid, in the County aforefaid,
divers Horfes, and very many Arms, Guns, Pi-
ftojs, Swords, Rapiers, and other Weapons,
Ammunition, and warlike Things, and military
Inftruments, falfely, malicioufly, fecretly, and
traiteroufly did obtain, buy, gather thE:EhEI',
and procure, and caufe to be bought, obtained,
oathered together, and procured with that In-
tention, then in and about the deteftable, hor-
rid, and execrable Affaffination, Killing, and
Murder of our faid Lord the King that now 1s,
as aforefaid to be ufed, employed, and beftow’d ;
and the fame Premiffts the more fafely and cer-
tainly to exccute, do, and perform, the aforefad
Chiiffopher Knightley, with one Edward King, late
of High-Trealon, in contriving and confpiring
the Death of our faid Lord the King that now 1s,
duly convited and attainted, by the Confent
and Agreement of divers of the Traytors and

Confpirators aforefiid, the faid Tenth Day of

Febutary, in the feventh Year abovefad, went
and came to the Place propofed, where fuch -
tended Affafination, Killing, and Murder of our
faid Tord the King by lying in wait, fhould be
done, performed, and committed, to fee, view,
and obferve- the Conventence and Fimefs of the
fame Place for fuch lying in wait, Affaffination,
and Killing, there to be done, performed, and
committed : And that Place being fo viewed and
obferved, afterward:. (to wit) the fame Day
and Year, their Obicrvations thereof to feveral
of the faid Traytors and Confpirators did relate
and impart, {to wit) at the Parifh aforefaid, In
the County aforefaid : And you the aforefad
Charles Crowderne, the fame Day and Year there,
in order the fuid exccrable, horrid, and detefta-
ble Affaffination, and Killing of our faid Lord
the King, by the Trayrors and Confpirators
aforefaid, the more readily and boldly to exe-
cute, perform, and commit, advifedly, know-
ingly, and traiteroufly did bring and carry be-
tween divers of thole Traytors and Confpirators,
forward and backward, from fome to others of
them, a Laft of the Names ot divers Men of thole
who were defigned and appointed our fud Lord
the King {o as aforefaid by lying in wait to kill
and murder ; againft the Duty of the Allegiance
of the faid Chriffepher Kulghiley, you the faid
Robert Lowick, Ainbrofe Rookiwoed, and Charles
Cresburie, and againft the Peace of our faid Lord
the King that now is, his Crown and Dignity,
and againit the Form of the Statute 1n fuch Cafe
made angl provided.

How fay’ft thou, Robert Lswick, "Art thou
Guilty of the High-Treafon whereof thou ftandeft
Indicted, or Not Guilty ¢

Lowick. Not Guilty.

CL of Ar. Culpiit, How wilt thou be Try’d?

Lrwick. By God and my Country.

Cl.of Ar, God fend thee good Deliverance,

186, The Trial of Ambrofe Rookwood, 8 Will. I1I,

How fay’ft thou, Ambrofe Reokwood, Art thoy
Guilty of the High-Treafon whereof thou ftandeft
Indiéted, or not Guilty ?

Rodkwood. Not Guilty.

Cl. of Ar. Culprit, How wilt thou be Try’d ?

Raokiwosd. By God and my Ceuntry.

Clof Ar. God fend thee good Deliverance.
Charles Cranburne, How fay’lt thou? Art thoy
Guilty of the High-Treafon whereof thou ftandeft
Indicted, or Not Guilty ?

Cranburne, Not Guilty.

Cl.of Ar. Culprit, How wilt thou be Try’d ?

Cranburne. By God and my Country.,

Cl.of 4r. God lend thee good Deliverance,

Cranburne. My Lord, I defire your Lordfhip
would grant me the Favour for my Wife to come

to me in private, and that T may have Pen, Ink,
and Pnper.

L.C.F. DPen, Ink, and Papu, you Sir Fobn
muft have ; but as to the other, we -
muflt confider of 1t. Keeper of Newgate, What
has been ufual 1 thofe Cafes ?

Keeper. My Lord, we let no Body come to them
in private, but their Council.

L.C. 7. That’s provided for by the Aé that
allows them Council ¢ But has 1t been ufual here-
tofore to permit any Body elle to be with them
In private; the Wife, or any other Relations ?

Keeper. 1t has not.

L.C. 7. It is very dangerous if 1t thould; there-
fore let him have his Wife come to him in the
prefence of the Keeper.

Cranburne. And Pen, Ink, and Paper, T hope,
my Lord ¢

L.C.¥. Yes, yes, that you fhall have.

Cranburne, You don’t deny me, my Lord, that
I may have my Wife come to me !

L.C.¥7. No, we don’t, but fhe muft not be
private with you, for fear of an Efcape.

Rookwwoed. T beg the fame Favour, my Lord, to
have my Broth.r come to me, and Pen, Ink; and
Paper,

L.C. 7. You fhall have the fame Rule 5 but you,
Keeper, mult have efpecial Care whom you do
perinie to come to them, and be private with
them ; for 1t is fhill ar your Peril if any 11l Accident
happens by your Indulgence to them : And yet
it 15 fic they fhould have all that 15 reafonable for
preparing for their Defence at their Trials,

Lowick, And I defire, my Lord, I may have
my Silter come to me, and ‘the Liberty of her

eing In private with me.

L. C.¥. Your Friends may come to you at {ea-
fonable Times, in the prefence of the Keeper ;
you fhall have any thing that is reafonable, but
the Safety of the Government muft be look’d
after. Therefore, Keeper of Newgate, take back
your Prifoners, and bring them here this Day
fevenmight at feven a Clock in the Morning, with-
out any other Order.

Thev. flaid at the Bar about balf an Honr, the
Fudges confulting among themfelves about the
Precept for the Petty Fuiy upon o late A
of Parlioment which bas appointed fix Days
for the Fury to be fumnmon’d before they ap-
pear to.try any Caufe, and upon the. lafp A% i
Regulating Trials in Cafes of High-Treafon s
which requires. that the Prifoner fball have a

Copy of the Panuel of the Fury duly veturw’d,
at kaft two Days before bis Trial,

Then
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Then the Prifouers were cavvied away, and the
Grand Fury withdrew to confider of the Evi-
deirce againft Knightley, and in a Quarter
of an Howr came back, and being called over,
delivered iin a Bill to the Court,

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen, you are content the
Court fhall amend Matter of Form, or falfe Latin
in this Indi¢tment, without altering any Matter
of Subftance without your Privity.

Fury. Yes.

Cl. of Arr. Then, Gentlemen, you may go for
this Time 3 and you are to take Notice if there
be Occafion at any Time to call you together,
you fhall have fufficient Warning gtven to you be-
forchand. This 15 Billa Vera agamlt Alexander
Kiightly for High-Trealon.

Then toe Fudges refuned the Dibate aimong thein-
[felves, and at loff refoleed that there foonld
zo thiee fevcral Venires for the Petty Jury,
Fetuinable 1his Day fovemnizhts cite 1o tiy
belzycen the King eind Robert Low vick, 1he
fecond 1o 17y betcoen the Kizg and Ambrofe
Rookwood, aid a third berwecen the King
aid Charles Cranburne 5 decanfe, tfwf"rh the
Lidiient be againft thow joiisdy, ye! it ¢
¢ feveral O;mra in every oie of thon, and
2':.?:,] ?:Lg:f?f ja vei i ther Ciﬁffdsg_1 Giid
that wooild be  trowllefeine, and thicfore i
ceas thonght bt to fivor their i ther Tii-
els s aind therefore the C st adiottied for ait
Homir or fomoching nicre, while the Precepts
for ihe fuiy ccere 0;*519:1;';'::5;‘, and accordng 1o

the A jor et wety and figied and f alﬂd
the Preceptsy and then adjouried the § ﬁaﬂs
of Over and Terminer wizil this Day foocn-
signty €2 Seven it the Meinnis.

D.e Mavits Fieofamo piiina Apiilis, Ao Regani Re-
Fis Willtelon Ter2ii OZave, Aniegs Daiiz., 1696

T HIE Court fit about Eighta Clock, at which
B were prefenta areat Number of Noblemen,
and Perlons of QHII[}" who were 1 the Com-

miffion, and Seven of the Judges; to wig, the

Lord Chiet Jaltice Helr, the Lord Chief Juﬁicc

Ticoy, the Lord Chicf Baron Ward, Mr. Juitice

Newd, M. Jaltice Powsl, My, Jultice Eyre, and

Mr. Baron Powrs,

Cl. of Ar. Cryer, make Proclamation,
O}L., , O vyes, Oyes.  All Manner of
Perfons that have an*r Thlnf:r more to do at chis
Seilinns of Oy and 1*-”..-? 2, ourned over to
this v, araw nexr and give your Ateendance,
And Gad I...u, the King.

Cl of Av. Cryers make Proclamarion,

Coyer. O Sy Sheriils tor the County of ALid-
difox, retarn the liLCCPfS to you direted, 1pON
Patn and Zenl widl fall thereon,

iiiiii

-I" 'H.J

f:‘f” "f?..'." QJH :ﬁrﬂ“:‘fﬂ’ui ff.?r,’ P; ;,L.LP”'

Cl of Av. Mr. Baker, pray, Whom do you
intend o begla with ?

Mr. Bater, With Aibrofe Roatwood,

Cl. of dri. Cryer, ma]w Protlamation,

Cryer. O yes, You good Men of the County of
MLrdelefex, fammoned to appear here this Day,
1o try between our Sovercign Lord the King,

Vot IV.

Jor High-Treafon,
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and the Prifoners that aie, and fhall be at the
Bar, anfwer to your Names, as you fhall be
called, every one at the firft Call, and fave your
I{Tues.

The whole Paniel was called over, and the Ap-

pearances  of  thofe that anfwered recorded s
and the Defanltzrs weie cgain colled over,

ClL of Air. Keeper of Newgate, fet Auliofe
Rookwood to the Bar. (Which was done.) You
the Prifoner at the Bar, Ambrofe Rookwood, thofe
Men that you fhall hear called, and perfonally
appear, are to pafs between our Sovereign Lord
the King and you, upon Trial of your Life and
Death ; i therefore you will c!ﬂlla_nm., them, or
any of them, your T:m“ 1S 10 ipLaL. unto them
as they come to the Book to be fivorn, before
they be {worn.,

Sir B, Shower. 1f your Lordthip pleafs, We
have a Doubt or two to propofe to Your Lord-
fhip, in refpect of the Tral this Day: But be-
fore I oifer ir, we beg Your Favour for a Word
in behalt our felves.

My Lord, We areafligned of Council, in’ Pur-
fuance of an A& of I’nrllﬂmcnt, and we ho » that
nothmg which we fhall fay in Dofence of our Cli-
ents, fhall be imputed to our fclves. I thought 1c
wonld have been @ Reflection upon the Government
and Your Lordfhip’s Jullice, 1f being afligned we
fhould have refuted to appear; “rwould have bzen
a Publication to the World, That we diftrafted
Your Candour towards us in our future Pradtice
upon other Occaftons,  Bar, my Lord, there can
be no Reaton for fuch a Fears Iam fure I have
none; for we muft acknowledge, we who have
been Practifers, at this Bar ¢fpecially, that there
was never a Reign or Government within the,
Memory of Man, wherein fuch Indulgence, fuch
Eafinels of Tumper, hath bee 1 fhewn from the
Court to the Council, as there always hath been in
this. Never was there fuch Freedom and Liberty
of Debate and Argument allowed fo the Bar, and
we thank Your Lordfhip for the fame,

My Lord, We come not here to countenance
the Practices for which the Prifoner {rands accu-
fed, nor the Principles upon which fuch P actices
may be prefamed to be foundcd for we know of
none, etcher Religious or Civil, that can warrant
or excufe themy, Bt the Adt of Parliament hav-
ing warranted the dpD...'lI'InU of Council for Per-
fons accufed to make Defence for them, we hope
Your Lordfhip will give us Leave to make what
Objections we can on “their Behalf.

L. C.F. Holt. Look ye, Sir B. Shswer, go on
with your Objeclions ; let us In:ar what you have
to lay.

Sir B. Shewer., My Lord, It appears tobea
Doubt to us, upon this Aét of Parliament, whether
this Caufe can be tricd this Day: And if 1t bea
Doubt, we hope, though it fhould not have that
Weight with the C{)urt that we apprchend 1¢ has s
yet Your Lﬁrdﬂllp will excufe us, and fettle 1t ac-
cording to your’ Judgment. The Act requires,
That all that fhail be Accufed and Indiéed for
High-Treafon, whereby any Corruption of Blood
may, or fhall be made toany fuch Offender or O
fenders, or to any the Heir or Heirs of any fuch
Ofender or Oftenders, or for Mifprifion of fuch
Treafon, (hall have a true Copy of the whole In-
di@tment ; and afterwards fhall have Copics of the
Pannel of the Jurors who are to try them, duly

4 P2 returned
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returned by the Sheriff and delivered unto them.
And every of them fo Accufed and Indicted re-
fpectively two Days at the leaft before he or they
fhall be Tricd for the fame. Now if your Lord-
fhip will pleafe to caft your Eye upon this Fuire
facias, and 1t will appear to be returned but this
Day, and that is not according to the Intent of
this Law.  And it is impoffible then, if it be as
we apprehend it, and put it, that this Trial fhonld
go on at this Time; and that this Conftruction
thould be fo as we fay, not only the Words, but
as we takeit, the Intent and Meaning of the Al
of Parhament too are for us, that there ought to
have been a Copy of the Pannel after the Return
two Days before the Trial, For in the firft Place,
My Lord, the Words are plam: Itmuft be a
Copy of the Pannel Guly returned by the Shenff.
Now though 1t be a Copy of the Array of the
Pannel which we have dcelivered to us, yet it 1s
not 1 Copy of the Pannel of the Jurors returned ;
for 1t is no Return ull 1t come mro Court.  And
the King’s Council muft admit, that in the Cafe
of all Writs returnable, 1t caanot be faid that
there 1s a Return, where there is a Writing up-
on the back, or a Label annexed, ull 1t be
aCtually retarned into Court.  As in the Cafe of
a et Facies, or a Mawdainns, an Acton for
a falle Return cannot lie wll the Writ be ac-
tually returned. Ior {uch Adtion muft be brought
into the County of Aiddlefex, where the Court
refides, before whom the Return 15 made, and
not 1 the County where the Sheniff lived that
made the Return; for it 15 not a Return il filed
m Court. Now here the Words of the Act are 5
He fball have a Copy of the Pannel of the Furors
who are to try bim, duly Returned by the Sheriff
wo Davs before the Trial.  Now we humbly infift
that the Words duly Returned mult be antecedent
to the having the Copy, orelfe e cannot be faid
to have a Copy of the Pannel duly Returned.
The Altof Pailiament doess not {ay which hall
be duly Retuned 5 and therefore there docs arife
1 Doubt, whether v .o Lordfhip will not direct
us to have a Copy aiter the Return made, which
15 but this Pay,

Mur. Poipps. I your Lordthip pleafes to fpare
me a Word of the fume de: We take 16, that
by this A& of Parliament the Jury mutt be duly
retuined before the Pannel is delivered o us.
Now the Retarin 15 the Anfwer that s Indorled
upon the Wit with the Pannel annexed, and
deliver'd into Cowrt; for the Rewrn 15 to the
Courr, and tll 1t be delivered 1nto Court, it can-
not properly be faid to be a Return, We ac-
knowledge the Copy of this Pannel has bzen de-
hvered unto us, two or three Days ago,  Bur the
Venire being not returned till to Day, we think
we have not a Capy of the Pannel within tlie
Intent of, and according to the At of Parliament.
And I delire to put your Lordfhip this Cafe:
This At of Parliament doces likewtfe provide,
that the Prifoner thould have a Copy of his In-
ditment fve Days before his Trial, to enable
him to confult with his Council how to plead and
defend himfelf; fuppofe then a Copy of a Bill
that s intended to be prefented to the Grand
Jury, be deliver’d to the Perfon accufed five
Days before the Grand  Jury are to meet, and
they afterwards meet, and find 1t, and the Party
s brought immediately, and arraign’d upon 1t:
This isa true Copy of the IndiCtment, yet cer-
tainly the Intent of the Act of Parliament is no:

anfwered, for it wasnota true Copy of the In-
dictment at the Time it was deliver’d. And |
take this Cafe to be under the fame Reafon. This
ts not a Pannel duly returned, till now; and
therefore by Confequence we have not that Ad-
vantage that this A¢t of Parltament meended to
aive us 3 for which Reafon we humbly appre-
hend we ought not to be tryed to Day; whicl,
we fubmit to your Lordfhip.

L.C. J. What fay you to 1it, Mr. Attorney.

Mr. 4. General. My Lord, with  $ir Thomas
Submiffion, this Objection will reccive  Trevor.
a very plan Anfwer. If I underftand it aright,
they fay that they ought to have a Copy of the
Pannel after it is returned, and that it cannot be
faid to be duly delivered, according to the Provi-
fion 1 this A& of Parliament, tll after the Peuire

facias be duly returned into the Court, and then

they are to have it two Days before they are tried,
LThey {ay the Venire facias is returned but to Day,
and fo the Copy dchivered to them, is not purfu-
ant to the Al of Parliament 3 and fo they cannot
be tried to Day : This I take to be the Obyettion.
Buat with Submiflion, My Lord, it will be phin
both by the Words of the A&, and the Reafon
and Intention of it, that there is no Occafion at
all, nor no Neceflity of having the Writ returned
before the Copy of the Pannel be delivered.  The
Words of the A& of Parhament are thefe ; That
eveiy Peifon and Perfons who fhall be accufed, iu-
aicted, and tried for Treafon, or Mifprifion of Ties-
s after the 25th of March, 96, fhall bave Copies
of the Pannel of the Furors who are to try them, du.
ly returned by the Sheriff, and delivered to them ro
Days Lefore they be tried. Now, firft, My Lord,
I think 1t 1sapparent what the Meaning and De-
fish of the Aét of Parliament was, that the Pri-
foner (hould know two Days before the Trial, whe
were the Jury that were to pals upon hun, that
he might have an Opportunity to confider hiow
he fhould make his Challenges as he thought f,
and Time to enquire nto the Qualifications of
them, that il there were any parccular Ground
of Challenge, he might not lofe that Benefic; fo
that if he hasa Copy of the Pannel array’d by
the Sheriff, which is afterward returned by the
Shenft into Court, and there is no Variation of
that Pannel afterwards 5 then certainly the End
and Intent of the Act is entircly purfued : For by
that Means the Prifoner has the Names of all the
Jury returned, and are afterwards called, and has
2 full Opportunity of making fach Challenges as
he thinks fit.  And as the Reafon and Intent of
the Act is anfwered by this Conftruion, fo the
very Words of the Aét are anfwered : For it is
not faid in the Act, that he fhall have a Copy of
the Pannel after it 1s return’d, but it is faid a Copy
of the Pannel duly returned by the Sheriff; that
15, when the Shenff has arrayed a Pannel, then
he 1s to have a Copy of that Pannel ; and if af-
terwards the Shernift return the fame Pannel into
Court, is not this a Copy of the Pannel duly re-
turn’d ¢ With Submiffion it is, and fufficient to
anfwer both the Words and Intention of the A&
of Parliament.  Itis true, My Lord, if the A&
of Parliament had faid he fhould have a Copy of
the Pannel after it was retorn’d, then we cow’d
not have faid but that the Objeftion wou'd hold.
But when the Words are general, and it is moft
reafonable to be interpreted that the Copy is ta
be delivered when the Array is made, becapfe
that anfwers the Intent and End of the A& of

Parliament,
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Parliament, which was to enable the Prifoner to
make his Challenges, we take that to be fuffici-
ent ; and if another Interpretation fhou’d be made,
it wou’d render the Tral in fuch Cafes liable to
all the Mifchiefs in the World, and make it 1m-
practicable that any Perfon fhow’d be tried 5 at
lealt it wou’d introduce a new Method of Pro-
ceedings that never was practifed, nor ought to
be introduced, unlefs this A¢t of Parliament by
- exprefs Words, had appointed and conftituted
fuch 2 new Method; and we {uppofe your Lord-
fhip will never make any fuch Conltruétion, that
the A& intended a new Mcthod, unlefs exprefsly
declared 5 for if it were, as they would have 1,
that the Copy of the Pannel was not to be deli-
vered tll after the Return of the Writ, then the
Prifoner cannot be tried upen the Return of the
Writ; for upon the Return of the Writ, the Jury
muft be brought to the Bar, the Prifontr muft be
brought to be Bar, and adjourned over to a fur-
ther Time, that in the mean Time a Copy may
be deliver’d to them. I believe that they can
never thew any Precedent that there was fuch an
Adiournment of a Jury of Life and Death, over
to another Day, for a Perfon to have a Copy of
the Pannel, toenable him to his Chailenges; and
citcher that muft be the Confquence, or elfe the
Jury maft not come upon the Return of the /-
wire facias, but there muft goa Habeas Coipore,
and the Prifoner tried upon that Hebeas Coipora :
For fiflt there-muft be the Return of the Wi,
then the Copy of the Pannel dehivered, then the
Habees Corpora returnable another Day 5 and upon
that the Trial mult be had : But I believe there
can be no Inftance given of a Tial for Treafon
upon a Habeas Corgere. Now if the Parhament
had intended that they would not have the Copy
of the Pannel deliver’d oll afrer the Return of
the Venire facies, they would certainly have ex-
pref’d and provided how the Method of Trial
fhould have Dbeen; thatis, that excher the Jury
fhould have becn adjourn®d over ull another Day,
or elfe brought to the Barupon a Habzas Corpora
vhich is the only way that can be thought of.
Indeed, My Lord, T do aguee, that if the Sheniff
fhould give a Copy of the Pannel, a_nd afterwards
fhould vary that Pannel, tho® but 1n one Name,
that would not anfwer the End of the Alt of
Parliament, becaule the Prifoner 15 deprived of
the Opportunity of knowing the Name of the
Perfon that he foaltered, in Order to his making
his Challenges againft him: But 1f the Shenff do
return the fame Perfons that are in that Copy de-
livered to the Prifoner, then we do, to all In-
tents and Purpofes, anfwer the End of the A& of
Parliament, and avoid the abiurad Conitruftion
that they would make of this Act for the Chang-
ing the Method of Trials, and no Body can well
tell what Method fhou’d be pusfued : But certam-
ly if the A& of Parliament intended 2 new Me-
thod fhow’d be purfued, they wow'd have defcri-
bed and fettled what 1t fhou’d be.

Sir John Hawles. M. Sollicitor Generaly, If your
Lordmhip pleafes to fpare me a Word of the fame
fide; My Lord, this 1san Objection that has been
forefeen, and I think has been prevented ; for,
with Submiffion, I take it, the Act has been fuffi-
ciently anfwered both as to the Words, and as to
the Intent of it in the Prifoners having the Copy
of the Pannel before the Jury bereturned 5 there
muft be fuch a Thing as a Pannel array’d before
the Jury be fummen’d, and therefore it 1s fuffici-
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ent that the Prifoner have a Copy of that Pannel
fo many Days before his “I'rial 5 which was only
intended for that particular Reafon, that he might
be provided {ufficiently to make his legal Chal-
lenges. Certainly within the Intent of the At of
Parliament it 1s well enough if ke had but a Copy
of the Pannel two Days before the Return of the
Writ, provided the Jury was not alter’d that was
array’d, nor any other Names put in but thofe
that he had a Copy of before: Now, my Lord,
I think this A& of Parlament muft be taken ac-
cording to the Intent and Meaning of it, or elfe it
will bear hard wvpon the Prifoner, and harder
fure than 1t was deligned 1t fhould : This At
fays, he fhall have a Copy of his Indi@tment fo
many Days before his Trial 3 now I would fain
know whether they would have it conftrued,
that the Copy does not need to be be delivered till
after Iffue joyn’d, which muft be if their Doctrine-
hold true, that the Aétisto be conftrued accord-
ing to the finct Letter of it, for Trial is the
Trial of the Iflue; what if the Indictment be de-
livered five Days before the Trial, tho’ after Iffue
Joyn’d, it i1s well enough according to fuchan Ex-
polition, for, the arraigning of the Prifoner is no
Part of the Trial, and yet 1t was the Intent of
the Parliament that he fhould have a Copy of the
Indictment five Days before he was arraigned, and
that for this Reafon, becaule he might have feve-
ral Pleas to plead and Objections to make before
he pleaded the General Ifue ; he might have Pleas
in Abatement, which after Plea pleaded of Not
oullty he could not have the Advantage of, nor
could he afterwards move to quath the Indictment,
which he might otherwifc have good Reafon for,
if he had the Cony before he was pur to plead s
fo that I take it the A& is to be interpreted
every where according to the Intentton of 1,
and the Prifoner at the Bar, according to the
Intention of the Act, has had a Copy of this In-
diétment five or fix Days before his Arraignment,
and therefore we have acted according to the Pur-
pole and Meaning of the Parliament, and likewife
he has had a Copy of the Pannel of the Jurors
that are to try him, which is duly returned by
the Sheriff, which is likewife according to the
Act of Parhament, As for what they_fay that
even a Copy of the Indictment before it be found
would not be good according to this Act; that’s
true, but the Cale 15 not the fame, nor the Rea-
fon of the Cafe alike between that and the Pan..
nel of a Jury, becaufe it is. fufficient I Law to
make it a good Pannel if it be array’d by the
Sheriff’ before the Jury be fummoned, for the
Sheriff muft array and compleat his Pannel to
let his Baibff know who muft be fummoned ;
but in the Cafe of an Indi¢tment, tho® a Bill be
firft form’d by the Clerk, yetit is not look’d
upon as a formal Indictment 1n point of Law,
till it be found by the Jury as their Verdiét, and
preferred to the Court 5 and it is not neceflary
that this Indiétment fhould be formed for the Jury
before they find it, for they are properly to make
their own Prefentments themfelves; and the an-
cient Practice was, that they only prefented the
Faé, and the Martter was put into Form aftet-
wards by the Court, and in many Cafes it is fo
at this Day, as we have had fome Inftances late-
ly 5 but as to the arraying of a Pannel it always
was fo, and- always muft be {o array’d by the
Sheriff’ before the Jury fummoned, and there’s

the Difference between the giving a Copy of an
Inditment
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of a Pannel, the one amended and altered: by the Sheriff, and it was ne-

Indi¢tment and the Copy
is taken Notice of in Point of Law to be ne-
ceflary, the other is not. This giving a Copy
of the Pannel, my Lord, we fay is withia the
Intent of the A&, which was only to cnable
Perfons accufed to make their jult Challenges,
and that they may as well do whena Copy Is
delivered after it is array’d by the Sherift, as,
when it is return’d by the Sheriff, and beng fo
done, with Submiffion, it is well done within
the Words, and within the Intent of this Act
of Parliament.

Mr. Conyers. My Lord, the Words of this Act
of Parliament, are, that they fhall have a Copy
of the Pannel of the Jurors whoare to try them,
duly recurned by the Sheriff, and delivered to
them, and this, two Days before the Tril : My
Lord, that this is thic Pannel of the Shenft of
the Juros that are to try them, affoon as it 1S
array’d, has been oblerv’d already 5 now it would
be a forc’d Conftruction to conflrue thel Words
that follow, duly retuned by the Sherir, to be
meant, that 2 Copy fhould be delivered after
the Jury is returned, Lecaufe that would bea
Delay of Jutiice, and keeping off the Trial longer
than was mtended by this Act of Parliament, and
more than will anfives the End of this Law 5 tor
the End of it was o give the Prifoner all B.ue-
fit and Advantage of Exceptions againt any of
thofe that were to try him, and if he has this
Pannsl two Days before his Trial, he has thar
B:neht the Law intended him,  Now, my Lord,
as to what has been faid of an [adictment, which
by this Law he is to have a Copy of too, that 13
plainly quite another Cafc s for 1t is not an In-
dictment 0il i be found, and {o anfwers not the
Words nor Intention of the Act tll founa by the
Grand Jury; ull chen it is not a Copy of his
Charge, and thercfore by no Conftrudtion can it
be called a Copy of the Indictment. 1 think 1
need not trouble Your Lordfhip any further in
this Matter, becaufe this Objection was foreleen,
and has been already  fidercd of by the Court
upon the Priioner’s Arrnignment,

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, in Anfwer to what
Mr. Sollicitor has faid, that there 15 as mach Rei-
fon to expect that the Copy of the Indiétment
fhould not be delivered til afeer Plea pleaded, as
that the Pannel fhould not be delivered ull adrer
the Jury retorn’d, becavie m the Cale of the
Indictment 1t 15 faid fo many Days before the
Trial, and the Trial cannot be till fue joyn’d,
there can be no Weighr n that Obicclion at all
for the Words of the Act are quite differently
penned 1 the Cale of the Indiztment, from what
they are in the Cafe of thie Pannel 5 for tho” 1t be
fa:d 1t fhould be dene five Days belore the Trial,
yet 1t 1s added, in Order to the advifing wih
Council how to plead, which muft be before
Plea pleaded, and therefore 1t maft be abfoluzely
neceffary to be done before the Arraignment. My
Lord, I have propoled my Doubt, it may have
Confequences on the one Side and the other, we
fubmut trely unto your Lordfhip’s Judgment; it
1s a new Law, and never has received any Opi-
nion 3 the Words of 1t are, duly returid Dy the
Sheriffy and the Queftion 1s, Whether a Copy of
the Pannel upon the Array before it be return’d
be a Copy of the Panael duly return’d, tho’ the
fame Pannel be afterwards duly returned.

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, Mr. Atorney General

owns, that the Pannel after it is arrayed may be

SW.III.

ver intended by this A&*of Parliament, that any
Copy of the Pannel fhould bedchverced to the Pri- -
foner but of thofe Men that were really returned 4
fo that we take it we ought to Lave 1t two Days
after the Return and before the Trial 5 for cer-
tunly it mult be a Copy of the Men returned,
which if the Sheriff may aleer at any Time before
the Return, the Intent of the Act of Parhament
can never be anfwered by any Copy but what 1
a truc Copy of the Return, M., Conyers would
anfwer the Objeltion that I made about a Copy
of the IndiCtment by this, that it 1s not an In-
dictment till it be found by the Jury; but I think
it 15 no Anfwer to our Objeclion at ally though 1t
be but a Copy of the Bill intended to be pre-
fented to the Grand Jury, yet if the Grand Jury
att.rwards find it, 1t is as true a Copy of the In-
ditment, a$ this is @ Copy of the Jury intended
to be retarned, and afierwards returned,  As o
what they fay, that this will mntroduce a new
Mucthod of Trial, conwarv to all Form er Pro-
ceedings, that can be no Obection acidiary fer
if it be fo, we can’t tell how to help i, the Par-
hament have thoughe it to have it fo, and we
muwt fubmit ro take i oas the Taw has made 10: .
I there be a Newefuty for o Hlideas Ceipira upoi
the Provifion made i this Act, fo it maft bo, tor
we il ke the Low asicis, We fubmii our

bjection to your Lordthip i we tamk we have
not had the Benefit of this #

Nir, Cozper, Surely, my Lord, what My, Phipps
has now f1kd has po Weight 110y that becandte
the Sheritt had 1t i his Power 1o alter the Panndd
before it was rewirned, that therefore this 1s not
now a truc Copy of the Pannel of the Jarors
wito are to try the Prifoner, duly retarned by
the Sherifl 5 which are the Words in the Ast, 1o
15 true, if the Sherii had in fact altered the Pan-
nel from what 10 was, and return’d 1t {o aleorod
into Coutt, no doubt of 1t the Prifoner would be
very well innted to make this Goettion, that he
had not a Copy of the Panncl, or the Names of
the Jurors that were fummoned to try him 5 bug
jow we can aver, that we have puriged this Act
of Parhamont liwerally 5 for in Anlwer to their
Objection, we may ask thus Queflion of them up-
on the Words of the ASt, FHave you not had a
true Copy of the Names of thofe that are to
try you, and are doly returned by the Shoriff
for that Purpade 5 and was not that Copy deli-
vered unto you above two Days ago? They can-
not fiy they have not had it fo, and iIf they can-
not fuy fo, then both the Words and Meaning
of the At ot Parliament are n every relpet an-
fwered ; 1f when the Jury come to be called the
Prifoner finds the Pannel to be altered, he has
Reafon to objeét, and will have the Benefit of
the Objection, that he hus not that Advantge
which the Law intended him, but till that prove
to be the Fadt, wve think hereis a full Compliance
with ihis Law.,

Mr, 8ol Gen,  Sir Baith. Showwer miftakes my
Objetions about the Copy of the Indictment ; for
we fay, if the Intent of the Act of Parliament
be complied with, it 15 fufficient, efpecially where
the Words are any way doubttul ; according to
the Words of this Aét of Parliament, a Copy of
the Indiétment need to Dbe delivered but five
Days before the Trial 5 but 1t appearing that
the Intention of thefe Law-makers was, that he
fhould have a Copy of the Indiltinent to enable

him
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him to plead to it 'if he had Caufe, therefore
tho’ the Words be before the Trml, we have ta-
ken it that he thould have a Copy five Days be-
fore his Arraignment, and fo we have complied
with the Meaning of the Law 1n that point, as
we have alfo in this, which was, we wke it,
only to enable the Prifoner to make his Chal-
lenges, and if that be done two Days before his
Trial, with Submiflion, 1t fully anfwers this
Law.

L. C. ¥ Have you done Gentlemen ?

Counc.  Y:s, my Lord.

L. C. F. Then look you, Sir B. Shower, as to
this Point that yoa now infift upon, we have had
it under Confideration heretofore ; we were here
this Day feven-night, and then we did confider
in what Method we fhould proceed, fo that the
Frifoner might have the Benefit intended him by
this A& of Parliament: The A& of Parliament
does defign in the firlt place, that every Prifoner
that is to be tryed for High-Treafon fhould have
a Copy of his Inditment, at leaft five Days be-
fore the Trial, that T think was all thac the
Makers of this At of Parliament intended at
the firlt ; but then there being fubfequent Words,
which fhew the Realon why they gave him the
Copy fo long before the Trials which is, that
he might advife with hus Council what to plead ;
thefe Words we concerve have given the Prifoner a
forther Tune than what was originully intended,
therefore we have thought 1 neczlary thae the
Prifoner fhoald have a Copy of his IndiCiment
five Days before he be arrigned, winch is five
Days before he was pat to plead ; and your Cli-
cnt, the Prifonar at the Bar, has had the Bene-
fit of this Act in that refpaCt before we arraiened
hims then after he bas pleaded, the Queftion
was, when he was to have a Copy of the Pan-
nel: Now the Defign of this Act of Parliament
was, That the Prifoner fhould have a Copy of
the Pannel oo Days before his Trial, mn Order
that he mizht confider of the Perfons that were
to try hinv; that he might inform himjeif of
their Qenlities, Tempers, and Difpofitions 5 that
o he might make ule of the Benefit the Law gives
him of Challenzing Five and Thirty, without
thewing any Caute, 1f he did not like the Men,
and as many more as he fhould think he had
cood caule o challenge: Now in this Cafe, the
whole Defion of this At of Parliament is an-
fwered, for he has had a Copy of the Pannel, as
you your felves acknowledge, two Duys before
the Day of his Trial, fo that he has the full Be.
nefit that the A& of Parhiament mtended ; he is
by this Copy as well enabled to make his Chal-
lenges as the Law difign’d he fhould be, and has
had the fame Time allowed him that the Act of
Parliament meant he fhould have s then fuppo-
fing the Defign of this ACt of Parliament be
fully anfwered and complied with i the Cafe,
The next Queftion is, whether the Words of
the A& are fatsfied, for we would be very loth,
in a Cafe of this Natre, wazre an Aét of Par-
liament intends a Favour to 2 Prifoner that flands
at the Bar for his Life, to abridge bim of any
Part of that Favour which the very Words of
the Act would allow him, tho’ the Intent of the
A& of Parliament were anfivered otherwife: Now
in the firlt place 1t is obfervable, that the At
of Parliament docs not fay, that the Prifoner
fhall have a Copy of the Return, nor does it

fuy, he fhall have a Copy from the Court, but
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he fhall have a Copy of the Panrel of the -Jurors
duely returned that are to try him; now if the
Sheriff array his Pannel feveral Days before the
Trial upon the Penire facias, and does give him a
Copy of that very Pannel, which Panne] is after-
wards returned n Court, has not he then a
Copy of the Pannel ducly rewurned ? Doss not
this anfwer all the Words of the A&? For you
yourfelves fay that it is not faid in the Words
of the Aé, that the Copy flall be delivered after
the Pannel returned, nor does there need a Copy
of the very Return.  Surely we _muft not carry it
farther than the Words, if the Meaning becomplied
with, and we think this anfivers both Words and
Meaning: It is a Copy of the Pannel, and a
Copy of that Pannel that’s duely returned. Now
to make another Conftrution would indeed not
onty alter the ufual Courfe of Trials, but be con-
tradictory to the very Procefs it felf. We are by
the Courfe of Law to award Procefs to fummon a
Jury to appear at a certain Time, to try the Iffue
Joined between the King and the Prifoner ; and
yet when we have done this, and the Jury there-
upon are fammened and do appear, they may
go as taey came; for the Iffue cannot be try’d,
becaufe after the Return, the Prifoner muit have
a Copy of the Pannel two Days before he can be
tried. I do thinle the Defign of the A& of Par-
liament, and the very Words of the A& are fully
fatisfied in giving a Copy of the Pannel two Days
before the Return.  We had this Matter under
our Confideration before, and upon Debate among
our {clves, we did think fit o award the Precepe
returnadle this Day, and refolved w try the Pri-
foner this Day, unlefs better Realons were offered.
us to alter our Opinion, and we are not faushied,
that any fuch better Reafon has been given, but that
this T'rial ought to go on, the Prifoner having
the full Benefit that was defigned him by this A¢k
of Parliament. And the Giving a Copy of the Pan-
net that s return’d, the before the Return, fuffict-
ently favssfics the Words of the Adt: No other Con-
ftruction can be made without great Ablurdities
This 1s my Opinion,

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, I hope we fhall be ex-
cufed for our Cliennt, we have another Doubt ta
propofe to the Court. )

L. C.F. You have had my Opinion upon this
Point, 1t my Lords and Brothers are of another
Opinton, they will tell you,

Fudges, No my Lord, we are all of the fame
Opinion,

L.C. ¥. My Lord Chief Juftice of the Common

Pleas, and my Brothers are all of the fame Opi-
nion.

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, we fay we have ano-
ther Doubt to propofe upen this Aét of Parlia-
ment: It 1s a new one, and never put in Practice
till now, and therefore we hope your Lordthip will
pleale to excule us, If we offer our Objections,
becavfe there has yet never been a Determination
about 1t, and we are affigned of Council by your
Lordfhip.

L. C. 7. Never make Apologies, Sir Bartholo-
mew, for it s as lawful for you to be of Council
in this Cafe, asitis in any other Cafe where the
Law allows Council. It is €xpected you fhonld do
your beft for thofe you are affigned for, as it Is ex-
pected in any other Cafe that you do your Duty
for your Chent.

Sir B, Skower. My Lord, our Exception is this,

we fay that this Trial eannot go on at this Time,
upon
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upon this Act of Parliament, becaufe we have no
truc Copy of the whole Inditment; it does not
appear, 1n the Copy we have delivered to us, be-
fore whom 1t was taken, or whether 1t was taken
at all, or in what Place it was taken ; it faysonly
Middlefex 1n the Margin, and then Furatores pro
Domino Rege prefentant : That might be before the
Jultices of the Peace at the Quarter-Seflions, or it
might be at the Monthly-Scilions at Hicks’s-Hall,
or it might be at the Seffions at the O/-Baily, or
it might be before Commifiioners of Oyer and Tei-
minery as perhaps 1t really was; but won conflat
where it was taken, nor how 1t comes hither: It
might be before Your Lord(hip here, as we believe
it was, but this Copy not letting us know where
and how 1t was taken, we think we have not the
B:nefit of this Law; for the Party accofed is by
this A& of Parliament to have a Copy to advile
with Council, that he may be enmabled to plead.
And that is the Reafon why the Words of this
A& are {o penned, that he fhall have a Copy of
the whole Indictment, which we cannot plead ro,
unlefs we linow where it was taken, i we (hould
have Occafion to plead any fpecial Matter.  And
befides, My Lord, there is another Reafon why
we fhould have the whole Indi€tment to enable
us to plead, becaufe if we had the Capticir, 1t
might perbaps appsar, that the Indictment was
taken before the Time of the Fa&t alledged
the Indi@ment, and then that would make 1t vi-
cious; it might be beforg the gth of February,
when this Treafon 1s faid to be committed, and
then we ought not to be brought to Trial. Now
the Defign of this A¢t of Parliament, 1n giving
the Prifoncr a Copy of the Indi¢tment fo long
before the Trial, was not only to enable him to
make his Defence upon the Trial, but alfo to ad-
vife with Council to plead 5 for fo the Words are,
the better to enable him to plead. Now we fay
to anfiver this End, 1t is peceffary we {hould have
a Copy ol the whole Indictment, as 1t {tands be-
fore Your Lordfhip i Court.  And another Rea-
fon is this, 1t 15 no Indictment, unleds 1t be pre-
{ented by the Jury, as ther Inquifition upon Oath,
unto fome Court thar has Juii{diction of the Mat-
ter: What we have delivered 1o us 15 only a Co-
py of a Bill, us to be debvered o a Grand Jury,
to be found 5 scir confles, that 1t 1s found,  Now
the Intent of the Aé of Parliament beng to give
the Prifoner this Advantage to enable Im to
plead, he may have feveral Pleas, of which he
might take a legal Advantage if he bad a Copy
of the whole, which he knows not how to come
at now ; and in truth it s very neceflary, becaufe
if he be tried upon an Indictment found i ano-
ther Country, then thefe Commffioners have not
a legal Authority to try him; and if the Tryal
fhould oo on, and he be acquitted, he is fubject o
be indic¢ted and tried again, and never can relieve
himielf by the Acquittal upon fuch an Indictment
before Perfons that had no Authority to try him.
I doubt he can never plead the Acquittal, be-
caufe he cannot make out that he was duely tried
and acquitted : And for thefc Reafons we humbly
fubmit it to your Lordfhip, whether we have had
the Benefit of this Law, in having a Copy of
the whole Indidtment to enable us to plead ;5 and
if we have not, till we have that Beneht, we
humbly concetve this Trial ought not to go on.
Mr. Phipps, My Lord, the Queftion 1s whether
the Style ot the Court, the Perfons before whom
it was taken, and to whom the Prefentment is
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made, the Time when it was taken, and the
Place where, ought not to appear in the Indi@-
ment. This Law requiring that the Prifoner
fhould have a Copy of the whole Indi€tment tg
enable him to plead; for if it fhould happen,
that the Indictment was taken before Perfons thac-
had no Jurifdiftion, then I believe it will not be
dented but that the Prifoner might plead to the
Junifdiction, and there might be feveral other
Pleas that he might take Advantage of, 1 would
defire to know of the King’s Council, whethep
ever they faw a Copy of an IndiCtment given in
Evidence, or pleaded without the Caption, 1t is
not a true Copy without it ; there ought to be the
Time, the Place, and the Style of the Court be-
tore whom 1t 15 taken.

Mr. At Gei, Truly, my Lord, I think I need
[ay no more to this Objettion, than that it does
not come at a proper Tiune ; for with Submifiion,
It the Prifoner will upon this A& fay he has not
had a Copy of his Indictment to enable him to
plead, he ought to have taken the Advantage of
it before he did plead, that is the proper Time
for him to object this Matter to the Court; for
if, after he has had fuch a Copy as this Prifoner
has had, he does fubmit to plead, with Submiffion -
it 15 too late to come at his Trial and make
this Objection, he cannot be received to make it
after.

L.C. 7. That is a full Anfwer, Mr, Arror-
ney,

Mr, Af. Gen. Ithink it is, my Lord, with Sub-
miffion, not that we would wave giving other An-
fwers to it, 1f 1t were in a proper Time; bur
the Method of proceeding muft be, and we think
we have no Occafion at this Time to fay any
Thing more to this Objudtion.

L. C. 7. No, no, that is a full Anfwer in this
Point; for look ye, you that are of Council for
the Prifoner, when once you have pleaded, you
aamit you have had a Copy; for the Copy was
given you to enable you to plead, and when you
have pleaded, you have pafs’d by all Advantage
that you could have from the Copy, a5 to any
Plea that you can make : Forir’s taken for grant-
ed ye had a Copy to enable you to plead, and to
advife with your Council about it; fince you
did plead, and did notinfit upon it at the Time
of your Arraignment that you had not fuch Copy,

Siv B, Shower. My Lord, we have propofed
one Doubt, and we humbly fubmit it to the
Court, |

Mr. 8§27, Gen. It was their own Faule that this
Opjection was not made in Time.

L. C. ¥. That Doubt of yours may ferve at
another Time, but now certainly 1t is quite out
of Time.,

Mr. Sol. Gen. Nay, my Lord, even upon the
Arraignment that would not ferve their Turn nei-
ther,

L.C. . Wewll not enter upon that now,
pray go on to fwear the Jury.

Cl. of Ar. You the Prifoner, look to your Chal-
lenges, as I told you before.  Cryer, call Sir Fe-
reiy Sambrook,

Cryer. Foux auez,

Str B. Shawer, Mr. Rookwood, you are to make
your own Challenges,

Reokzzoed, 1 do not challenge him,

Cl. of Ar. "Then hold Sir Feremy the Book.

. Stir Fer. Sambrock. My Lord, Iam uncapable

of ferving upon this Jury, for I have been deaf
this
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thefe feveral Years, thefe’Dozen Years; I cannot
hear what is faid in Court, though I am now fo
near the Court, I could not hear what your Lord-
‘fhip faid 5 nor what was faid at the Bar. I havea
Certificate here, if your Lordfhip pleafe to have it
read ; and moft of the Perfons of Quality here
about the Court know 1t to be true.

Mr, At Gen. My Lord, I am afraid it 15 fo.

L. C. 7. Nay, if it be {o, it is not fitting thdt
he fhould be upon the Jury, when he can’t hear
.what’s faid : You muft excule Sir Feremy Sambrook,
Go on to the next.

Cl. of dr. George Ford,

Cryer. Vous avez,

Cl. of Ar. Look upon the Prifoner.

Rookweood. 1 challenge him.

L.C. ¥. Mr. Ford, you muft not go away, for
you are upon another Pannel, wherein you may be
employed, tho’ you are now challenged.

Cl. of dr. Williain Underbidl.

Rookw. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. William Withers.

Rookw. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Samuel Powell.

Rookw. 1 do not except againft him,

Cl. of Ar. Then fwear Mr. Powell.

Cryer. Look upon the Prifoner, You fhall well
and truly try, and true Deliverance make be-
tween our Sovereigh Lord the King, and the
Prifoner at the Bar, whom you fhall have in
Charge, and a true Verdiét give according to
your Evidence. So help you God.

CL of Ar. Thomas Trench.

Rookw. 1 challenge him.

Cl of Ar. Fobn Wolfe.

Rookw. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Fawmes Bodingto,

Rookzy. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of dr. ok Rayroind.

Rookw, T challenge him,

Cl. of Ar. Richard Marfb. (He did not appear.)

Cl of dr. George Haws,

Rookw. 1 challenge him,

Cl. of Ar. Francis Bariy,

Rookw. I challenge him,

Cl. of Ar. Arthur Baily,
Rookwood, 1 except not againft him. (He was
fawarin.)

Cl of dr. Fobn Webler.

Rookw, 1 do not except again{t him. (He zvas
fworn.)

Cl of Ar. Thomas Glover.

Rookw, T challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Dormer Sheppard,

Rookzs, I challenge him.

ClL of Ar. George Tredway.

Rookw. 1 do not except againft him, (He was

Jorit.)
Cl. of Ar. Maithew Batetian,
Raokw. I challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Timotly Thorubury.
Rookw. 1 challenge him.
Cl. of Ar.  Fames Partherich.

Rookw. 1 challenge him.
Cl. of Ar. Thowas Freeiar,

Rookw. 1 challenge him,

Cl of Ar. Fofeph Blithit,

Rookw. 1 challenge him.

€L of Ar. Timothy Leingy.

Roskw. 1have nothing to fay againft him, (He
qoas fword.)

Cl, of Ar. Fobn Harris.

Vor. IV,
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Roskw. 1 do riot étcept againft-him, (He was
foorn.) .

Cl of Ar. Fobu Billes.

Rookw, I challenge him,

Cl. of Ar. Richard Bourne.

Rookw, I challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. George Garter: '
Rookw, 1 do not éxcept againft him, -(He wds
fworn,) *

-CI, of Ar. [Francis Chapitan,

Rookw, I challenge him.

Cl, of dr. Alexander Forth.

Rockw, 1 clullenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Thomas Playfled.

Rookw. T challenge him.

Cl of Ar. William Etley.

Rookw, 1 do not except againft him. (He was
Sfworn,)

ClL of dr. Fobn Marfh,

Rockw. T have nothing to fay againft him. (He

was fwori,

Cl, of Ar.
fwer.) _

L. C. ¥ Did Mr. Heoper appear ?

Cl of Ar. Yes, my Lord, he is mark’d as ap-
pearing.

L. C. ¥ Then you ought to call him again,
and fer a Fine upon his Head.

Cl. of Ar. Cryer, call Samuel Haoper.

Cryer, Samuel Hogper, come into Court and give
your Attendance upon Pain of ten Pound, for the

Court has recorded your Appearance.
Cl of Ar. Fobr Hall.

Samuel Hooper, (He did not an-

Rookw, I challenge him.
Cl. of Ar. Nicholas Robirts.

Rookw. T challenge him.

Cl. of dr.  William Partridge.

Rookw. 1 challenge him.

Sir B. Shower. How many has he challenged
Mr. Hardefly ¢

Cl of Ar. 1 will tell you Sir Bartholomew,—he
has challenged 24 |

Sir B. Shower. Well then, go on, Sir.

Cl. of Ar. Peter Laveai,

Rooksw, 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Thomas Moosy.

Rookw. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of A Richard Bealing,

Rookw, T challenge him,

Cl of Ar. Thomas Evans.

Rookw, I challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Thomas Ramage.

Rooskw. 1 challenge him,

Cl. of Ar. Edward Townfbend.

Rookw, I challenge him.

Cl of Ar. William Gunfton.

Rookw. I challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Samuel Freehody.

Rookw. 1 do not except againft him. (He was
Sfwarn,) ‘

Cl of Ar.  Philip Wightinan.

Rookw, 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. There are now Thirty-two challenged.
Fobr Byberd.

Rookw, 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. William Strowd.

Rookw. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of A+ Daniel Byfeild.

Rookw. 1 do not except againft him. (He was

fwor,)
Cl. of Ar.  Benjamin Noble.

4 Q, Rookw,
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Rookw. 1 have nothing to fay againft him, (He
was fwor.)

Cl. of 4r.
ell; v

Cryer. One, &d¢.

Cl. of Ar. Benjamin Noble.

Cryer. Twelve good Men and true, ftand toge-
ther, and hear your Evidence.

Cryer, count them. Samuel Pow-

The Names of the T'welve fworn were thele.

Samuel Powell, George Carter,
Arthur Bailey, IWilliam Atley,
Fobu Webber, || Fobn Maifh,
George Tredway, 1| Saimel Freebody,
Timothy Lennoy, || Danjel Byfeild, and
Fobi Harris, Benjamin Noble.

L. C. F. Look ye, Mr. Phipps, your Objeclion
upon the Inditment {lipt me, and therefore I
would fpeak to 1t now: You faid it might be as
well a Copy of the Indictment before it be found,
as well as this a Copy of the Pannel before it be
returned, Now that can’t be, tor an Inaitment
15 not an Indiétment till it be found, 1t 15 only
a Writing prepared for the Fafe of the Jury, and
for Expedition; it is nothing tll 1t is found, for
the Jury make it an Indictment by finding it, they
may alter what they pleafe, or refule it abfolute-
ly. And if the Jury, upon examining the Wit-
nefles, would only prefent a Matter of Fact, with
Time and Place, the Court might caufe it to be
drawn up into Form, without carrying it to the
Jury: Again, There needs no Billa wera; tor
that is only the Jury’s Owning that which the
Court has prepared and drawn up for them: But
a Pannel is a Pannel when it is arrayed, before it
be returned, and a Copy of the Pannel given be-
fore it be returned, 15 a Copy of the Pannel
returned, if it be afterwards rcturned, as 1t
muft.

Sir Barth, Shower, Bur, my Lord, that Notion
ftrengthens our Object o that we lalt made, that
makes 1t neceflary that we fhould have a Copy of
the Caption, as well as the other Part, to make 1t
a true Copy of the whole Indictment.

L. C. F. That’s another Thing, we will talk of

that another Time; but I fpeak of this only as
to his Objection which flipt my Memory, becaufe
I would have nothing remain unanfivered,

M. Phipps. My Lord, when the Bill 1s found, the
Copy that we dehivered before 15 as much a true
Copy of the Inditment as our Copy of the Pannel
is a Copy of the Jury returned.

L. C. 7. A Pannel 15 a Pannel when 1t 15 array-
ed, but a Bill is not an Indiétment ull it be found 5
one cannot fay a Man udidtatus exiftity ull 1t be
found ; all that we fay of it before it be found,
is that there was guedam Billa preferred to the
Grand Jury, and 1if the Jury bring it in Jonora-
sis, whereby they difown the Prefentment, it is
cancelled, and there 15 no Record of it, nor no-
thing, only a Memorandum 1n the Clerk’s Book per-
haps, that fuch a Thing was. Well, go on.

Cl. of Ar. Cryer make Proclamation.

Crycr. O yes, If any one can inform my Lords
the King’s Jultices of Oyer and Terminer, the
King’s Serjeant, the King’s Attorney General,
before this Inqueft to be taken, of the High-Trea-
fon whereof Awbrofe Rookwood, the Prifoner at
the Bar ftands indifted, ler them come forth,
and they fhall be heard; for now the Prifoner

ftands at the Bar upon his Deliverance, and all
others that are bound by Recognizance to give
Evidence againft the Prifoner at the Bar, let
them come forth, and give their Itvidence, or
ele they forfeit their Recognizance.

Cl. of Arr. Ambrofe Rookwood, hold up thy Hand.
(Which be did.) You that are fworn look upon
the Prifoner, and hearken to his Caufe. He
ftands inditted by the Name of Aibrofe Kook
wood, of the Parifh of St. Paul Covent-Garden,
in the County of Middlefex, Gent. for that he,
together with Chriftopher Knightlcy, not yet 1a-
ken, Robert Lowick, and Charles Craiburne, and
divers others, falfe Traytors, &Fc. «=giont In the
Indi€tment, mutatis mutandis == and againtt the
Form of the Statute in that Cafe made and provi-
ded. Upon this Indi€tment he hath been arraign’d,
and upon his Arraigniment hath pleaded not guilty,
and for his Trial hath put himielf upon God and his
Country, which Country you are; your Charge
s to enquire, whether he be guilty of the High-
Treafon whereof he ftands indifted, or not
Guilty 5 if you find him Guilty, you are
to inquire what Goods or Chattels, Lands or
Tenements, be had at the Time of the High-
Treafon committed, or at any Time fince: If
you find him not Guilty, ye are to inquire whe-
ther he fled for it; if you find thatr he fled
for it, you are to inquire of his Goods and Chat-
tels, as if you had found him Guilty 5 if you find
him not Guilty, nor that he did fly for it, you
are to fay fo and no more: And hear your Evi-
dence.

Mr. Monutague. May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of this Jury, this Indict-
ment that has been read to you, doss charge
the Prifoner with High-Treafon for Compaffing
and Imagining the Death of the King, for endea-
vouring to {ubvert the Government, and to fub-
jeét the People of England to the Slavery of Lesw-
is the Fyench King 3 and for this End the Indi&-
ment fets forth, that the Prifoner at the Bar did
privately meet with feveral falfe Traytors, to
confult how they might compafs the Death of
the King, and commit thole other Treafons ;
and that the 1oth of February, at Covent-Garden,
in this County, it was agreed among them, that
they fhould get together Forty Horfemen where-
of the Prifoner at the Bar was to be one, and

they were to lie In Ambufh, and fer upon the
King mn his Coach upon his Return from going
abroad ; fome were to attack the Coach, others to
attack the Guards, and there were fome to kill the
King 1n the Coach : And the Inditment does Jike-
wife charge the Prfoner with gathering together
Horfes, and providing Arms for this Purpofe.
To this Indictment, Gentlemen, he hath pleaded
not Guilty 5 we fhall call our Witnefles, and prove
the Fa&, and when we have fo done, we do not
at all doubt but yow’ll do your Daty,

Sir B. Shewzr. My Lord, before the Witnefis
are called we have a Doubr to propofe to your
Lordlhip upon this Aét of Parliament, and that
is, whether we are to take our Exceptions to this
Indiétment before the Evidence be OPL:ﬁ‘ud or gi-
ven?

L.C.#. It fhould properly be before the Jury
1s fworn,

. Sir B. Shower. The Words of the A&, my Lord,
15 before the Evidence given,

L.C, ¥. That A& provides, That if yon do not.

take the Advantage of ir, before the Evidence
2 | gh"t,ljl._,
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given, you fhall not move that i Arreft of Judg-
ment,

Sir B. Shower. Tt only fays beforeEvidence given,
and nio Evidence has yet been given,

L.C, ¥ But you are certainly very irregular
in point of Pratice, no Body ever took Ex-
ceptions to an- Indiétment after the Jury was
fworn,

Sir B. Shower, 1f your Lordfhips pleafes to let
the Words be read of the A& of Parliament, they
are thefe: That no IndiCtment fhall be quafh’d,
unlefs Exceptton be taken in the Court where
the Trial fhall be, before any Evidence given in
Court upon that Indi&tment. Which, we fay,
ftrongly implics that the Law-makers thought i¢
might be done at any Time before the Evidence
was given in open Court, befides that the Law
takes Notice that after Conviction it fhould be of
no Avail; it would have been a very improper
Expreflion before Evidence.given in open Court,
if 1t had meant before the Jury were {worn and
charged ; for the Word Evidence fuppofes the
Trial commenced 5 If they had intended it other-
wife, that is, that it fhould be before the Jury
is fworn, they would have exprefsS’d 1t to be done
at the Arraignment; but mentioiing it to be done
in the Court where the Trial is to be, before Evi-
dence given, that fuppofes the IndiCtment to be
at Ifluie before the Party needs o make his Ex-
ceptions,  Therefore, my Lord, we hope we are
regular in offering our Exceptions now.

L.C. F. Pray, what fay youto1t, Mr, Attor-
ney ©

Mr., A, G Truly, my Lord, T think they
are no Way regular ; for, with Submiflion, I take
it, that though this Act of Parllament has indul-
ged them in feveral Things which were not al-
lowable by Law before, yet as to this Part they
are not allowed to take Exceptions to the In-
di¢tment, otherwife than they could before this
A& was paf’d : Nay, fo far from that, that if
your Lordfhip looks into the A&, you find they
are reftrain’d in this Point from an Advantage
that they had before, thatis, they fhall not move
any fuch Things-as are there mentioned, after
Verdi¢t, in Arreft of Judgment: So that this
Part is reftrictive to the Prifoner, and takes away
fome Advantage that he had before; which
was, moving in Arrelt of Judgment after Ver-
dit; but 1t leaves the making Exceptions as to
any Time before the Verdiét, as it was before,
which was before Plea pleaded, but not after the
Jury fworn: For it cannot be denied that in
point of Practice, fuch a Thing as this that is
now offered could not have been done before the
Ac&. T would be gld to know whether they can
thew any Precedent of any fuch Thing as they
now contend tor. They fay, the Words of the
Al are, Exception muft be taken before Evi-
dence given; but that mult be taken at fuch a
Time as they might by the Courfe of Law do it
before: For when the Jury 1s fivorn, they muft
give a Verdict, and I do not know how they can
be difcharged without giving a Verdit s there-
fore unlefs the A¢t had given Directions for a par-
ticular Manner of Proceeding tn this Matter, which
it has not done, your Lordthip will not, I pre-
fume, do it in any other Manner than as it was
before the ACt made ; and if there be no Precedent
to be thown of any fuch Thing as this, of taking
- Exception to an Indi¢ment after the Jury fiworn
and charged with the Prifoner; theua there is no

Vour. IV,
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Power in this A& of Parliament; given to them to
take Exceptions to this IndiCtment at this Times
we take it the Motion is very irregular upon all
Accounts.

Mr, Sol. Gen. My Lord, we firfk fay, that it is
not proper for them to make any fuch Motion as
this upon this Aétof Parliament, tll they tell us
what their Exception is, that we may fee whe-
ther it be within the Words and Meaning of this
Actof Parliament. The only Thing now that is
proper for us to confider, is the Iflue joined, and
the Inquiry whether the Prifoner at the Bar 15
Guilty of the High-T'reafon of which he is Indict-
ed, to which Indictment be has pleaded not Gutl-
ty: That's the Thing that s now before your
Lordfhip to be tried, they have Room for Ex-
ceptions to the Indi€lment afterwards, for fome
Exceptions I mean, (I do not know what their
Exceptions are) but if they be fuch as may be
taken after the Verdi&, then I am fure they are
irregular now in their Motion, and they can
fhew no Precedent, when 1t was done after
Plea pleaded and Ifue joined, as it is in this
Cafe.

Mr, Conyers. The Advantage that the Actgives
the Prifoner, of having a Copy of his IndiCtment
fo long before Trial, is to enable him to plead,
or to take Exceptions to quath it; but I never
heard a Motion to quafh an Indictment ajfter a
Jury 1s charged to hear the Evidence. Certainly
they ought to do it before Plea pleaded, and not
now to come to make a Motion to quafh the In-
ditment, after they have pleaded, and the Jury
fworn: Therefore we fubmit tt, upon the con-
ftant Practice in like Cales, to the Judgment of
the Court.

Str B. Showwer. In Anfwer to thatwhich Mr. At-
torney has faid, That it is an tmproper Thime
I thought truly T had moved it for the Advantage
and Eafe of the King’s Council, that they might
not proceed upon this Trial, when perhaps after
all their Trouble, the Foundation, which 15 tle
Indiétment, may fail, Ihave a great many Ex-
ceptions to the IndiCtment; they fay we fhould
name what our Ixceptions are: I will acquaine
them wich them, as faft as T can, if your Lord-
fhip pleafe, the Indictment is very loofe and un-
certain.

L. C..J. Certainly the Motion fs irregular in
point of Practice.

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, we were afraid we
fhould be excluded trom taking thefe Exceptions
after the Evidence given.

L.C.F. Soyouare by the exprefs Words of
the Adt.,

Sir B. Shower. Then certainly we may do it be-
fore the Evidence given. |

L. C. 7. Butthe Alt does not fay, Ye fhall do
it any Time before the Evidence given, cfpeci-
ally mn {uch an irregular Manner, after Iflue joined,
and the Jury fiworn. Suppofe Mr, Attorney had
given fome Evidence.

St B, Shower, Then, my Lord, I agree we had
been without the Words ; therefore I now move 1t
before the Evidence, becaufe the A& of Parlia-
ment has given me a Liberty to do it before thie
Evidence given: For the Law having given this
Liberty to the Prifoner, to make fuch Excep-
tions within fuch a Time, your Lordfhip will not
reftrain us from making Ule of that Liberty fur-
ther than the Law has reftrained, but we may make
Ufe of our Exceptions before the Evidence given,

4 Q 2 cicer
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either to induce your Lordfhip to quath the Indict-
ment, or the Jury to find us not Guilty, as we
hope your Lordfhip will ditéct thiemi'to do: For
what 1s more common upon Indi@ments after the
Jury are fworn, than if Facts appear upon the
Record not to be fufficiéntly alledged, the Court
will dire@ the Jury to find the Party not Guilty.
‘We think this A doés give us this Liberty, othet-
Eiﬁ: I kriow not to what Purpofe it was made, the
very Méaning feems to be, that the Exceptions of
the Council for the Prifoner might be of Prejudice
to the King; and therefore it fays, After the
King’s Evidence given, and the Faét difcovered,
no fuch Exceéption fhall be made : Therefore we
muft make it before the Evidence given, other-
wife this Aé of Parliament that was defigned
in Favour of the Prifoner, will prove a very
great Hardfhip upon him, efpécially in Cafe of an
imperfé@t Indi@ment, as we apprehend this s,
and he will be in a worfe Condition than ever he
was ; he muft ke his Exceptions now or not
atall. The A& fays, He is not to take 1t after
Evidence given; and by Conftruction the King’s
Council would have it, That he fhould not give it
before: And confequently hie has no Time at all
to give it. - |

L. C. . Have not you had Time to doit before
now, Sir Bartholomew Shower, certainly you had 2
You had Time this Day Seven-night, when you
were arraign’d 3 you have had your Opporlunity
if you would have taken it; the Jury are now
charg'd, the Indi€tment is opencd, they have been
told what they are to enquire of, arid now you
would break in and take Exceptionsto the Indict-
ment,
~ Sir B, Shower. My Lord, This is a new Act of
Parliament, it fays we fhall take ouir Exceptions be-
fore the Evidence given ; which we take 1t, 1sany
Time before the Evidence given ; anid if your Lord-
thip will not allow us to do it now, it may be we
may lofe the Benefit of 1t abfolutely,

L.C. 7% Ttis one C cftion whether we {hall al-
low it or no, and another Queftion whether you
can claim it orno: Certainly 1t is an irregular
Motion, and the like of it was never offered In
any Cafe before, be 1t Criminal or Civil ¢ For it
it be a Criminal Cafe that is not Felony or Trea-
fon, when the Iffue comes to Trial vpon an In-
dictment, Did you ever know any Exception ta-
ken to the Indi¢tment after the Jury were charg-
ed ? Certainly it is contrary to all Pratice 3 and
1t is not fair, the Court is not well dealt with,
you have had an Opportunity before, and will you
now put the Court and the Jury to fo great deal
of Trouble, to ftay till the Jury be called over;
the Prifoner called to his Challenges, he has
challenged Thirty-four, the Jury is {worn, the
Inditment is read to them, the Charge given
them, the Council have opened the Indictment,
and now when the Bufinefs is only to try the Iffiie
with which the Jury are charg’d, you come to
turn us quite round, by taking Exceptions to the
Inditment. . -
M. Phipps. My Lord, We take it'the At gives
us this Time to do it in. _

L. C.¥. Youknow you had another Tinie more
proper to do 1t 1,

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, If we have not Time
now, then this Claufe, ‘with humble Submuffion,
fignities nothing at all.

L. C.F. The Claufe was made in this Refpect,
to your Difadvantage, becaufe you fhould have a

2

Copy of the Indiftment, whereby you might
have an Opportunity to advife with Council,
that they might inftruct you how to plead, ,and
to take any manner of Exception before Plea
pleaded, it ought to be before the Trial, and
now becaufe of this Advantage, it provides that
you fhall take your Exceptions before the Trial,
and not move them in Arreft of Judgment s
that 15 the Meaning of the Act.

Mr, Phipps, Then, my Lord, there needed no
‘Time at all to be mentioned in the A&, but have
left 1t as it was at Common-Law,

L.C.#. Yes, yes, there did need a Time to
be hmited, for this Claufe was made I fay in
your Difadvantage, in depriving the Prifoner of
the Benefit of fuch kind of Exceptions in Arreft
of Judgment, becaufe of the Advantage that was
given in the former Part of the A&, where you
had Time given you to make your Exceptions,
for which End you are to have a Copy of the
Indictment five Days before you are called to

lead.
’ Sir B. Shower. We could not come before, my
Lord, as we apprehend, becaufe the Words of
the A¢t are before Evidence given,

L.C.F. But I tell you, this Claufe was not
for your Benefit, but for your Difadvantage,

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, What we prefs, arifes
from the very Words of the Aét of Parliament,
if the Meaning of the Law-makers was as the
King’s Council now contend to have it; they
would never have ufed thole Words before Evi-
dence given in open Court, but have faid they
fhould have had no Advantage of the Exception,
unlefs it were before Plea pleaded ; it does not fay
it fhall be after the Verdict, or before the Ver-
dict, but before the Evidence given: Now if they
had meant what thefe Gentlemen fay, they would
have appointed 1t to be before the Verdidt,
which would have included the Trial; becaufe
then it had been like the Penning of other Aés
of Parliament, the Statutes of Feofailes and the
iike, which fay, That after a Verdi&t, fuch and
fuch Exceptions fhall not Arreft a Judgment :
But if they can fhew me any Statute that is penn’d
like this, they give me an Anfwer : All thofe
Statutes are, That no Judgment fhall be arrefted
or delay’d upon fuch or fuch Exceptions after a
Verdict : But here it fays, They fhall not arreft
Judgment, unlefs the Exception be taken before
Evidence given in open Court. My Lord, We
fubmit it to you, we think the Law-makers did
intend fomewhat by that particular Way of
Expreffion, different from all other Acts of Par-

liament 3 and truly if it be not as we offer to
your Lordfhip, we think it can have no Meaning

at all,

Mr. Att. Gen. Truly, my Lord, we think it is
very plain what the Parliament meant, by this
Clawfe in this Act; the Defign was, to reftrain

the Prifoner from moving in Arreft of Judgment,

for Mif-pelling, or fallEthltin, or Iittle Matters
of Form, if he did not move it in a proper Time,
having fuch a Liberty allow’d him, as to have a
Copy of the Tndictment {fo many Days before he
was compelled to plead : They infilt upon ir,
that the Words are, Before Evidence given; It
is fo: But what can be the Meaning of that? It
muft be at fuch Time as the Law allows; it is
not making a new Method of Trial 3 you fhall
take Exception hefore the Evidence, that is, be-
fore the Trial, for it can never be intended, that

they
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they meant toalter the Courfe, and let the Coun-
cil bréak in between the Time of the Jury’s be-
ing {worn, and. the Evidence given, that by no
Law could ever have been done before.

Sir B. Shower, Pray, Mr, Attorney, when would.

you have us do 1t?

My, Ait. Gen. Regularly before Plea pleaded,.

at leaft-wife before the Jury be fworn.

L.C. ¥. Undoubtedly this is not regular, it is
contrary to all the Courfe of Praflice, it is not
fair Dealing with the Court. But then there is
another Confideration in the Cafe, that I would
have you think upon: If fo be this had been at
a Trial by Nifi Privs, then the Judge of Ny
Prins is only to try the Ifflue; but now here the
very Record is before us, and we are Judges of
the Record, as well as we are to aflift the Jury
in Trying the Iffie. Now take 1t in any other
Cale of the like Nature, Suppole a Trial art the
Bar 1n any Civil Caufe, though this be contrary
to Praltice, and the Court not fairly dealt with,
yet when we have the Record betore us, and find
an Error in the Record, cannot we quafh the
Inditment and difcharge the Jury. That is the
Queftion, Mr. Attorney, though I muft confes,
I do not know that it has been practicable,

Mr. 4, Geir. No, my Lord, in a Cafe of
Treafon, where the Jury are once charg’d, they
are to give a Verdict, they muit either Acquit
or Convict.

Sir B. Show. It was done in #hitchread’s Cafe.>

Mr. 4tt. Gen, ButI know what has been ufually
thought in that Cafe, and I belicve they cannot
fhew me another.

L.C. ¥. Nay, that this isa very irregular Mo-
tion, Is very plain.

M, Sof. Gen. Certainly, my Lord, you muft
take 1t as the Law was before this A&, for this
Claufe does nothing for the Prifoner, but I3

againft him,
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the Senfe of the Law-makers was, that we fhould
have this Liberty at any Time before Evidence
given, for If there be fuch. Words as fhow’d. they
thought it might be qualh’d at any Time, tho’ they;
were miltaken in the Practice, yet we fhall. haye
the Lutberty that they intended.us, and:the Word-
ing of this A¢t fhows, that the Parliament thoughe
it might be done after the Trial begun before
Evidence given, becaufe chey reftrain us from
taking thole Exccptions after the Evidence g-
ven; and 1t is no Prejudice to the King at all re-
ally, 1t 1s rather for the Advantage of the Pro-
fuputionﬁ becaufe there i1s none of the Evidence
difclofed, and therefore if the Indiétment thould:
be found faulty, fill the Evidence remains up-
difcovered upon another Indi¢tment; and I have
often heard it faid at this Bar in Cafes of In-
dictments for Felony or Treafon, as Murder, o
the like s if any one did come as aiicus curie, and
acquainted the Court, that they were going to
proceed upon an erroneous Record, or give an
erroneous Judgment, or do any other erroneous
Act, he ought to be received with Kindnefs, be-
caufe he would prevent & Wrong doing.

L. C., ¥. That 15 wn the proper Time, not to
nterrupt the Trial when the Jury is once
fworn,

Sir B. Shower. We are ready to offer our Ex-
ceptions, and we hope 1t is no Prejudice at all to
the King before the Evidence of the Faél is given,

Mr. Phipps. MyLord, I perceive thatthis Claufe,
as they would have it, s intended to prevent vs
from moving that in Arreft of Judgment, which
we could have moved before, and ties us up to
do 1t before Evidence given; now I would fain
know, if we could not bzfore this A& move in
Arreft of Judgment, for mif-fpelling, or falfe
Latin, or improper Latin,

Mr. Ait. Gen. You might, no Doubt of it.

Mr, Phipps. They fay we might 3 why then, if

L.C. 7. Iknow it is not for the Advantage of we could have a Time to move it after the Ver-

the Prifoner, therefore I put 1t asa Cafe n an
A&ion, or an Indiétment, as the Law was be-
fore, whether this being a Trial in the fame
Court where the Indictment was found, and we
find an Inlnfficiency in the Record before us, whe-
ther we cannot quafh the Indictment.

M, Sol. Geir. Your Lordfhip mentions Civil
Actions, with Submiflion, nothing of that kind
could be done after once the Caufe came to Trial,
but in Criminal Caufes according 1o *the Courle
of Pratice, which will always be the Law ull
particularly altered : I believe no Body can pre-
tend, that after Iffue joyn’d, and a Jury charg’d,
any one can move to quafh the TndiGment. I
think I have heard it often faid in this Court, that
in Capital Cafes, as High-Treafon, you may put
in 2 Plea iIn Abatement of, but not a Motion to
quath an Indiftment; I am fure it was difal-

dict, and that Time s abridg’d by the A& of
Parliament, which direfts that it fhall be before
Evidence given in open Court, fure we may take
any Time before the Evidence gtven, and fhail
not be reftrain’d further than the Letter of the
Law has reftrain’d us; for this A& was intended
for the Benéfit of the Subject, and ought to be
conttrued as much in their Favour as the Letter
of it will permit.

Mr. A2, Gen, No doubt of 1t, 1tis to be done
before Evidence givens; but the Queftion Is; at
what Time 1t muft be before the Evidence given,
whether 1t muft not be at fuch Time as by the
Courfe of Praftice and Ufage of the Law it
fhould bhave been done before; if you will fa-
tisfy .my Lord and the Court that ever fuch an
Exception was taken, -or an Indiétment quaflyd
between the Swearing of the Jury and the giv-

lowed where I moved to quath an Inditment of ing the Evidence, ye fay fomething s but I be-

Murder, let them 'but fhow any ‘Precedent of this

Nature.

Sir B, Shower,” We will fhow you, -tho’ ‘this i
the firlt Cafe upon this Act-of Parliament, there-
fore to fhow any Praétice upon it would be wvery
hard to require of us.

L. C. F. Butcan you fhow it before -this:Claufe
in this ACt of Parliament, which, -as 1 told you,
is not for your Advantage, it does not give:that

Liberty that you defire.
Sit B. Shower. -All the Claufes insthis A& of

Parliament fhow’d their Intention was-this, :that

* See Trial 75, Vol. II. p. 711,

lieve not one Inftance of .that:Nature can be given,
and therefore it is wvery irregular for them ro do
it.

L.C, . They don’t pretend to it, for ought I
hear, for I would put them upon it, -to fhow me

‘whether they eould do it before.

Sir B. Shower, 1 don’t queftion, my ‘Lord, but
it-might be, -with Submufiion,

M. ‘Conyers. 'Did you ever know it -before that.
any one undertook -to inferm the Court as amiers
etirie, but 1t was to prevent «a-wrong Judgment,

andfor that you-have your -proper “Time either

bf_:fbrc:
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before Plea pleaded by Motion to quath the In-
dictment, or after Verdict to arreft a Judgment ;
this At of Parliament has reftrain’d you In
particular Inftances that are mention’d from do-
ing 1t after Verdict in Arreft of Judgment; but
having given you a Copy of the Indictment be-
fore you pleaded, you have had a proper Time to
make thefe Exceptions, and if you have laps’d
your Time you come too late to do it now, for
fure no Body ever made a2 Motion to quafh an
Indi¢tment after Iffue joyn’d and the Jury
fworn.

Mr. Sol. Geir. My Lord, T would only mention
one Cafe, and that was of Sir Richard Manfell,
upon an Indittment of Murder, for Killing the
Apothecary in Holbowiny 1 did my felf move to
quafh the Inditment, becaufe it was not ex-
prefs’d in what Year of the King the Fact was
done 5 but the Court was of Opinion we could
not move to quath an Inditment for that, or
any {uch notorious Crime, tll after the Fact de-
termmed.

L. C. ¥. No, we were always of that Opinion,
never to allow Motions to quafh Indictments for
Perjury, Murder, or any great Offence, but it
mujt be moved i Arreft of Judgment after-
wards.

Mr, Cowper. My Lord, thefe Gentlemen feem
to beg the Queftion upon this A& of Parlia-
ment, as 1f it had appointed this to be the
Time of making Exceptions to the Indictment ;
the Act of Parlament does not fay you fhall
make your Exception immediately before the Evi-
dence given in open Court, as if it had pointed
out and direCted to them that particular Time,
that then they fhould take their Exception and
no other Time: The A has only fet & Bound,
that they fhall not do it afterwards, but as to
the particular Time, it 1s left as 1t was before,
to the regular Courfe and Method of Proceedings,
which is before Plea pleaded.

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, they do not anfiver my
Objection; it is, it icems, a Reftrition of a
Liberty that we had before of moving in Arreft
of Judgment ; if fo, weought not to be reftrained
further than we are by the Words of the Act
of Parliament, which fay, before Evidence given,
that 15 at any Time before Evidence given, as
well after as before Plea pleaded.

Sic B. Showwer, T would ask thefe Gentlemen,
whether the Law-makers intended that we fhould
have no Advantage of excepting againft falfe
Spelling and improper Latin,

Mr. Conyers. Yes, they did, but that you fhould
do in your proper Time,

Sit B, Shower. Then the Time for doing it muft
be that which the Words of the Law fay, before
the Evidence given in open Court, and that's
now.

Mzr. Conyers. No, you might have come at the
Day of Arraignment, and have taken the Ad-
vantage of it then before you had pleaded.

L.C. 7 Ye have had my Opmion what ]
think of 1t, my Lords and Brothers, I fuppofe
will tell you theirs.

L. C. ¥ Treby. My Lord Chief Juftice has deli-
vercd Ius Opinton 1n this Matter, and he thinks
fit that we fhould deliver ours, I think this Mo-
tion of the Prifoner’s Council to quafh this In-
di¢tment after the Jury fivorn, is irregular and
quite out of Seafon; the Intent of this Clafe in
this At of Parliament, certainly was not in

Favour of the Prifoner; it abridgeth him of a
Liberty he had before, but gives him nothing :
For the Law-makers did think they had given
the Prifoner an extraordinary Favour in the fore-
going Part of the A&, in giving him a Copy of
the Indictment five Days before he {hould plead,
and a Copy of the Pannel two Days before he
fhould be tryed, and allowing him Council ; and.
all thefe Advantages were to enable him to quath
the Indiftment, or the Procefs returned, for the
Claufe extends to both ; the Words are, That no
Lndiltment nor Procefs or Rewtrn thereupon, fhall be
quaf’d on the Motion of the Prifoner or bis Council
Jor Mifwriting, Mif-fpelling, falle or iinproper La-
tiny wnlefs Exception concerning the fame be taken and
made 1 the refpelive Conrt where fuch Trial fball
be by the Prifoner or bis Council affign’d before any
Evidece given in open Court upon fuch Indishment,
nar foall any fuch Mif<writing, &c. after Convictioi
be any Canfe to flay Fudgisent: Theretore they
made this extraordinary Provifion to reftrain the
Prifoner, in Part, by this Claufe; as much as
to fay you have an Advantage of the Copy of
the Inditment, and you may make ufe of that
to quafh it by Motion, if you think fit, as you
may alfo the Procefs, but it thall be Jefore Evi-
dence given,  Tis true, thofe are the Words, but
the ufing that Term, viz. quafbiug foch IndiGtment
or Procefs, fhows it muft be done in fuch a Way
and Time as is proper for quathing ; and the ve-
ry Words are, that it fhall be aponr Motion. Now
we are to expound thofe Words, And I fay, «
Motion to quafb an Inditment, mult be under-
{ftood a Motion in the proper Szafon, which I
think 15 before Plea pleaded s but at lealt before
the Jury 1s fworn, There were three Times
when the Prifoner might have had the Advantage
of a Fault in the Indi¢tment before this Act:
1. By Motion to quafh 1t before Plea pleaded.
2. Then afterwards in Arreft of Judgment: And
3. After that by Writ of Error. Now this
Clanfe of this A& takes away the Privilege of
moving in Arreft of Judgment for Mif-wrliing,
e, but faves the Advantage upon a Writ of
Error, and upon a Motion to quath the Indiét-
ment. We are to confider what 15 a proper
Time for a Motion to quath an Indi¢tment, the
Motton 15 to be made to the Court, and to them
alone. It is not to be made to the Court and
the Jury. When the Jury isfworn, all Applica-
tion s to’ be made to the Court, as having a
Jury prefent which they are to aflift in the Trial
and Determination of the Fe/7 only. What Ule
then is there of the Jury, when you make this
Motton, which confitts only in Points of Law?
They muft ftand by and be out of Ofhce all
the while this Motion is making: And 1t 15 not
reafonable, nor certainly ever was intended that
after a Jury 1s fivorn to try a Matter of Fadt,
they fhould ftend idle, while you move a Thing
which you fhouild have moved before they came
to the Bar: Suppofe you fhould now move fome
Exception to the Venire, and the Return there-
upon, fhould we, when we and you alfo have
admitted the Jury to be {worn, quath the Pro-
cefs whereby they are return’d? And yer we
may as well do that as this.  For, the Act
provides 1n the very fame Words concerning
Quathing Procefs and Indictinents.  But, when the
Jury 15 fworn, and ready to receive their Evi-
dence, fure, then 1t is out of all Seafon to make
fuch a Motion ; therefore I do not think the Par-

2 Jriment
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liament intended by this Claufe (which was a
kind of Exception to the Favour the Prifoner re-
ceiv’d by having the Copy of the Indictment)
to infticute a new Method of Proceedings for Mo-
tions to quath Indi€tments, even when a Jury is
at the Bar and fworn to try the Iflue, and there
is nothing proper to be proceeded upon, but only
to hear the Evidence produc’d for the Proof of
 that Iffue, till the Jury is difcharged. But fill this
I would fay ; this is 2 new Cafe, and upon a new
Statute, I am truly of Opinion, that the Motion 1s
altogether unfeafonable and irregular, and it fhould
have been made before, and you had a full Oppor-
tunity to make it this Day Seven-night before Plea
pleaded, and you might lkewife to Day before
the Jury was {worn; therefore when the Jury are
now at the Bar actually enter’d into, and imploy’d
upon the Service, the Court ought not to be inter-
rupted by fuch a Motion. Yet neverthelefs I
would propound this, that, feeing it is a new Cafe
and upon a new Statute, the Court would forgive
the Irregularity, (for I think ic does need For-
givenefs) and if the King’s Council will confent
to it (to prevent any Error or any Pretence of
Hardfhip upon a new Law) that we (hould hear
thetr Exceptions,

Sir Edward Ward, L. C. Baron. This A& of
Parliament, as it has given a Benefit to the Prifo-
ner that he had not before, in allowing him a
Copy of his IndiGment, in Order to his making
Exceptions ; {0 it has reftrained him as to the Time
of making thole Exceptions: That he fhould have
Time, there is no Doubt; the Time limited for
it, as this A& fays, muft be before Evidence
given, becaufe they thought it unreafonable that
there fhould be any Quafhing of the Inditment
after fuch Time as the King had given any Evi-
dence whatfoever in the Cafe ; for that would be a
Difcovery of the King’s Evidence, and great In-
conveniencies would enfue thereupon; but the
Queftion is at what Time this is to be done;
Whether it may be at any Time before Evidence
given or no; 1t did intend furely that the Mo-
tion to quath the Indi@tment and the Exceptions
to it might have their proper Effect, and that
muflt be before the Trial; for it was not the
Intent of the At to alter the Method of Pro-
ceedings, and it is to no Purpofe after the Jury
is fworn, for then their proper Office Is to de-
termine the Fact 3 now if before this Act of Par-

liament it never was allow’d to take any fuch
Exception as this after the Jury fworn, it will be

confiftent with the Words of the Aét of Parlia-
ment, which are, That it fball be done before Evi-
dence given: If then it be in the regular Time
for Motions, which is before Plea pleaded or Ju-
ry fworp, that is, before Evidence given ; for
it is not faid, as Mr. Cowper obferved, that it
fhould be immediately before the Evidence gi-
ven, I think fure foch an Expofition as was for-
merly made ought to be made in this Cafe, the
Time not being precifely fix’d by this Act; if there
were a certain Time determin’d when Men fhould
take their Exceptions, as we know it has been
in Practice before Iffue joyn’d, then after the Ju-
ry is fivorn it is an improper Time then, I think,
to make fuch Exceptions: T do not fuppofe this
A&, as to the Method of Proceedings =, than
it was before, but this Exception ought to be ta-
ken before Plea pleaded: Truly it is a new Act
of Parliament, and this is fo far within the

Words of the Act that it is before Evidence gi-
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ven, as the Councll for the Prifonet fay,  If this
can be govern’d and ruled by Proceedings and
Practice in former Times in Cafis not of Felony
or Treafon but only in Criminal Cafes: If no
Body fhould fuffer by any Interpretation, I thould
think 1t ought to bear a conformable Con-
ftrution to what the Praftice was before, I
take it you have loft the regular Time for ma-
king your Exception, and you invert the whole
Method of Proceedings upon Truals: For to
what Purpofe is 1t to take Exceptions to quath
the Indi¢tment when the Jury are once charged
with 1t: If it be an Indiétment that cught to be
quafh’d, the Jury ought not to be charged, you
have had two Times, and they are both of them
elaps’d, for this Marter, that s, at the Arraign-
ment, and before the Jury fworn yer I would
propofe it to the King’s Council as my Lord
Chief Juftice of the Common Pleas has done, it
being 2 new Cafe, that it fhould be better con-
fider’d of and agreed upon, that in thefe Cafes
we may go onupon a certain Rule that it may
be eftablith*d for all Time to come. _

Mr, 7. Nevife, I would begin with the Propofal,
becaufe, I believe, I may not be fo clear in my
Opinion, otherwife I muft deliver my Thoughts
according to my Judgment, but I would have
the King’s Council confider of the Propofal.

Mr. At Gen, My Lord, for us to confent to
that in fuch a Cafe as this, where the Court
thinks it not regular, would be pretty bard to
defire of us; if any Thing of Advantage fhould
happen on the other Side, I verly think the
Council for the Prifoner will not be fo ready
to confent to wave any fuch Advantage, nor am
I for asking them to do it; this Claulc goes on-
ly to fome Faults in the Inditment; Mif-fpels
hing, Mifwritng, falfe and improper Latin,
that is all that they are reftrain’d from moving
in Arreft of Judement ; any Thing elfe, any
Uncertainty or other Matter, that 15 not com-
prehended under thefe Particulars, they may take
Advantage of to move in Stay of Judgment after
a Verdit; this Claufe does only abnidge them
from moving in Arret of Judgment for Mif-
writing, Mif-fpelling, falle or improper Latin:
therefore if your Lordfhip fhould think it rea-
fonable we fhould confent to let them in to make
any Exception now, it muft be confin’d to thole
particular Objections of falfe and improper La-
tin, there can be no Colour to make the Liber-
ty larger, becaufe for any Thing elfe they are
not reftratn’d from moving it in Arreft of Judg-
ment, for there can be no Hardfhip in that €afe,
as I think, they have no Reafon to complain
that there has been in any other Part of the
Cafe; but for thofe Particulars that there may
be no Complaint of Hardfhip, it your Lordfhip
thinks it reafonable we fhould confent, it may
be we may be prevail’d upon to do it, though
whatever Hard(hip does happen it is their own
Fault, and the Prifoner may thank his own Coun-
cil for that Hardfhip: If we affiit them now to
let them in, it ought to be taken as a great
Kindnefs ; and traly, my Lord, I am unwilling
to do any Thing that your Lordlbip and the
Court fhould think hard upon the Prifoncr. Cer-
tainly it is the Fault of their own Council, now
the Taw has allow’d the Prifoner Council, not
to take the proper Time, and purfue the ufual
Methods ; and it 1s 2 Strain beyond what 1s ufual,

that we muft help their Faults by our Coni:nt;
ow-
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however, if the Court think it reafonable, I fhall
not be againft it, but then I am fure the Court
will take Care they fhall be confin’d to thofe Par-
ticulars that are mentioned in the Act,

L.C.J. No Doubt of it: Therefore Sir Bar-
tholomews Shower, are your Exceptions for Mif-
fpelling, Mifwriting, or falfe or improper La-
tin? for if they be {uch Things as you may move
in Arreft of Judgment, and have that Advantage,
then there is no Colour that we fhould break

through all the Rules of Proceedings to admit
fuch an irregular Motion as this.

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, in the Cafe of the
Life of 2 Man I will not take upon me to fay what
1s Mif-peliing, Mif-wriung, or falle or improper
Latin, or what is fubftantial ; butall that I fay s,
I have Five Exceptions, every one of them im-
ports 2 Doubt, as I take it, worthy the Confide-
ration of the Court, and fome of them effeftual
enough to quath the Indictment; but for me,
when a Man’s Life is at ftake, and it partly de-
pends upon me as his Council, to fay what is
proper or improper Latin, or to admit it to be
Matter of Subftance, and then to Morrow to have
it come and told me, you thould have mov’d this
to Day, then I am fure they would have Reafon
to fay, it was the Fault of the Prifoner’s Council 5
for he would have chofen very 11l Council, in me,
I confefs, 1f I fhould confent to put any fuch
Difadvantage upon bim. I beg the Favour that
I may have the Liberty to propofe my Objections,
which I think are worth Confidering of 5 1t 15 for
the Advantage of the King for us to take our
Exceptions all together, becaufe, eife if any of
them prove materal, the Trouble of the Tral

will be but Mifpence of Time,
L. C. #. No, we cannot hear all your Objeétions,

but thofe that are mention’d particularly in the
Act of Parliament ; for {uch as are not mentioned
in the Claufe, you have a proper Time to move
them in Arreft of Judgment.

Sir B. Shower, Then we will put thofe that are
within the A&,

Mr. 4t. Gen. 1f we doany Thing by Way of
Confent in this Matter, we muft infift upon ir,
that they be confin’d to the Particulars in the
Act; we defire they may open their Objections
to the Courr, and if the Court fhall think they
are properly under thole Heads, then they will
conlider of them, if the Court be of another
Mind, then they muft be referv’d till the proper
Time.

L. C. 7. Do you confent then, Mr. Attorney,
that they fhall now take thofe Exceptions that
are mentioned n the A& of Parliament?

Mr. 4. Gen. 1t the Court think it reafonable
upon thofe Terms, T do.

Mr. 7. Powys. Let them open them if your Lord-
fhip pleafe, and let us keep the Power in our own
Hands to do as our Difcretions fhall direé.

L. C. 7. Truly I do not know whether we can
do any Thing in this Matter, 1 queftion much
whether it be Difcretionary in us to break through
all the common Methed of Proceeding, and ad-
mit of fuch Irregularitics,

L. C. ¥. Treby. 1 have a great Inclination to
hear them, that we may get rid of thefe pre-
tended Exceptions, which I am apt to think will,
when opened, difappoint the Expeftations that
may be raifed by this mentioning them' in gene-
ral; for, I have that Opinion of the Ability and

Circumnipection of the Council, that I believe if
y

they had had Exceptions fuffictent to quath the
Indiétment, we thould have heard of them ata
Time more proper than this now between the
Swearing the Jury and giving Evidence to them.
But, pofiibly, the Council may think fit to make
an BEffay, and try what can be got out of this
unufual Expreffion in this new AL,

L. C. 7. No, no, I know thisisa Piece of Are,
and the Court 1s not well dealt with in it

L.C. 7. Treby. Indecd I am very willing to hear
them for that Reafon.

L. C. ¥. 1look upon it only as meer Trick,
and a Piece of Art to take the Opinion of the
Court.

Sir B. Sbower. My Lord, it was my Miftake
then ; for I take 1t, if the A& of Parliament had
intended otherwife they would have expreft it
otherwile,

L. C. 7. Does the At of Parliament give you
another Laberty, and a greater than you had be-
fore? Does it not defign to abridge you of a Li-
berty that you had before ? Certainly it never in-

tended that the Court fhould admit of any irre-
gular Proceedings. S

M, 7. Powell. You fhould have tim’d your Mo-
tion better, for certainly now the Jury is charg’d
they muft give a Verdi& either of Acquittal or
Conviction 5 and if you move to quath the In-
dictment, and your Exceptions are material, the
Jury cannot proceed ; you fee what a Pafs your
Motion has brought it to, ’tis certainly a mighty
uregular Motion, .

L. C.¥. Trely. What Judgment would you
have us give? I would ask you that: If any
Exception were moved before the Jury were
fworn, and it proved material, the proper Judg-
ment were, that the Indiétment be quafl’d ; baz
now they are fworn, what Judgment muft we
give? Muft we not expect the Verdict of the
Jury frft upon the Fact? And muft we then
give Judgment upon your Exception ?

Sir B. Shewer. 1 know not whether your Lord-
fhip may not give Judgment firlt to quath the
Inditment, and then difcharge the Jury.

L.C. 7. Treby. And what if we do not find
Caufe to quath it, then you'll fay, we muft o0
on with the Evidence, as we were going before
this Interfering ? Are we to be doing two Things
at once. I am pretty certain you can thow me
no Precedent for any like Proceedings in any
Cafe: Itis confounding the Offices of the Judee
and Jury. '

Mr. Phipps. If your Lordfhips try’d the Validicy
of our Exceptions, and find Occafion to quath the
Indictment, there will be no need of a Jury.

L. C. 7. Upon the Statute of Feofailes in a ci-
vil Caufe, fuppofe at a Trial at Bar, it appears
upon the Face of the Declaration, that there is
fuch a Miftake as will be cured by the Verdiét;
but if the' Party had demurred, and fhown it
for Caufe, it would have been fatal. Do you
think when he has wav’d the Benefit of Demurrer
and pleaded to Iflue, that you fhall move this

and help your felt by fuch a Motion, becaufe it
will be helpt after a Verdict ?

- Sir B. Shower. If this ACt had been worded a¢

that Statute of Feofailes is, it may be we might
not. - |

. L.C.J. Why, it is not faid, in the Statute of
Feofailes, that it fhall be good after Iflue joined,
before the Jury 1s charg’d or fworn, but that it
fhan’t be good after the Verdict.

Sir
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Sir B. Shower. Tt 15 before the Evidence given,

L.C.¥. Could he do fo 1n any Cafe before
this A&, and does the A& enlarge your Liberty
or abridge 1t

L.C. . Treby. Siv Bartholomew Shower, you in-
fift upon Part of the Words of the A& of Parlia-
ment; it fays, no Indictment or Procefs fhall be
quath’d upon the Motion of the Prifoner or his
Council, unlefs it be made before any Evidence,
7c. Now, [ fuppofe, the Parliament ufe that
Expreflion, upon the Motion, m the fame Senfe as
ic is ufed in Law, @/2. for fuch a one as fhould be
in the Time when Motions for quafhing the In-
di¢tments are proverly to be made ; now, when
s that? It 1s plain, 1t was always before the Jury
come to the Bar, nay before the Plea of the Par-
ty. If that be the proper Time to make fuch
a Motion, then that Expreflion in this A&t of a
Motion to quefoy the Tudictinent will very well help
to conflruc the other Part of the Claufe thar you
mfift upon: Ior if the Mouon be made before
Plea pleaded, it 15 certainly before the Evidence
civen in your Senfe,  And I concetve, that under
that Expreflion [ Evidence given] which fignifies
the muuen Part, the Parllament mtended to com-
prehend the whole Proceeding to Trial, begin-
ning, if not from the Pleading Noz Gulty, at
leaft, from the Swearing the Jury, Before Evigzice
given i Conty may reafonably be expounded, Be-
fore ihe Prifoncr bath fully cintred into that Coutefla-
tioir of rthe Fult, which is 1o be deleriniied only by
Evidence in Court. I attended
King’s-Beneh a long Time, and I believe that I
have heard 1t faid a hundred Times, apon Mo-
tiozs to quafh Indictments of great or odious Of-
fences: No, iry 1ty fays the Court, we will not
gaalh i, plead to it, let the Falt be tried, you
may theid move 1t in Arrelt of Judgment. Thole
Fxordlons thew’d that the proper Time for a
Moston to quafh an Lidictmanr was before Plea,
the” they, 1 thelr Dikcretien, would not grant a
Motion to quafh, in Cales of fach great Offen-
ces.  Dat fure they did not think that when a
Jury came to the Bar, it was a toerable Time to
move to quafh an Indictmenr, there was no Lx-
peciation of hearing of fuch a NMotion  then.
And cortainly this Clanie which 15 made wholly
aoainft the Prifoacr, fhould not be conltrued to
help him o fuch a new extraordinary and abiurd
Lib.:rty.

Sir B. Shower., My Lord, with Submiffion, that
Practice gors upon another Reafon, the Court
would not quath it at all upon a Motion; this
A& of Parliument fuppoies that you will quath
upon a Motion at any Time before Evidence gi-
ven s We never hieard of a Motton to quath an
Indictment for Felony or Treafon, but fll the
Court would always fay, Demur, or Plead, or
move in Arrclt of Judgment, but by this Law
it feems the Senfe of the Parliament was, that
it might be quaflit upon a Motion.

Mr. Sof, Gein. Sir B. Showeer s come 1o what I
faid, chat in Trath there 15 no fuch Thing as
quafhing an Inditment for Treafon or Felony,
as | mentioned in Siv Rich, ManfePs Cale, and 1
think the Rule that was given m that Cafe will
ferve now 1n this Cale; I am for confenung if
they be kept within the Limits of the A& of
Parliament, but I muft defire the Opinton of the
Court before we do confent,

~ L.C. 7. Holt.  Aye, aye, Go on Brother
Nevile,
Yo IV,

G
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Mr. 7. Newilz. T mult confefs I cannot but doub,
15 this Al is, there were two Times that they
had Liberty of taking thefe Bixceptions to Indiét-
ments 3 but indeed, in Murder and Treafon they
were feldom admitted, till they came to move
in Arreft of Judgment; but ftill there was al-
ways a Priviledge, and a Time given to the Pri-
foner, bz the Crime what 1t would, to rake thac
Advantage which the Law gave him, to prevent
Judgment againft him.  Now 1 agree, it is irre-
gular and unfafonable to offer it now, and quite
different from all former Prafice; you might
have done it before now, the A& fays exprefly
it muft be done before Evidence; but you might
have taken Advantage before the Jury was fiworn,
nay before you had pleaded, but you have lapfed
your Time.  Yet truly, notwithftanding you have
lapled your Time, I cannot fatisfy my felf to
take away the Liberty that the Law has given
the Prifoner fometime or other, to except againft
the Indi¢tment. It is plain that before this At
after Verdict he might have moved in Arreft of
Judgment, now he cannot do fo, whether the
Faule be m the Council T cannot tell, but the
great Proudice is to the Perfon that is to be
try’d, who will not be wholly precluded from
making any Advantage of the Exceptions he has
to the [ndiétment, becaule by the A he can-
not move m Arreft of Judement, This feems
a {trong Implication that the Parliament intend-
ed he mult have fome Time or other, but before
Lvidence given, to offer his Exceptions. I fay
this only to thofe particular Things that are
mentioned in the Alt, Miswriting, Mifipelling,
Falfe or Improper Latin; as to thefe four par-
ticular Things whick the Party i5 bar’d from
moving tn Arrelt of Judgment, T cannot fatisfy
my fclf but that ke thould have one Time or ano-
ther to take this Advantage before the Evidence
piven, and therefore I think he thould have it
now: It s true, 1t i3 altogether frregular, the
Jury being fworn, and it cught to have been done
before 5 but I hope 1f 1t be admitted now, it will
be with fuch Oblervation, that no Body will ever
ofler at it for Time to come, As this Cafe is
before us, and the At of Parliament, which per-
haps may have led the Council into that Miftake,
that it might be any Time before Evidence gi-
ven, tho’ they know the proper Time, and the
regular Method in other Cafes; yet I doubt it is
had to put fuch a Conftruction upon this A&
on the fudden, quite to debar the Prifoner of the
Benefit of his Exceptions to the Indiétment.
Mr. 7. Powell. T have already declar’d my Opi-
non, that the Prifoner has had his proper Time
for making his Exceptions, but he has lapfed
that Time; but I am not againft that Motion
in a Cafe of Life, upon an Indi®tment for fo
great a Crime as Treafon is, and where the Con-
fequence 1s fo great, if it may confift with the
Rules of Law, and it be the Senfe of the Court,
and the King’s Council confent to let them be
heard, T fubmit to it, nay I would Second or
Third that Motion that they may be heard.
Mt. 7. Eyres. Truly I am of the fame Opinton,
I think we ought not to alter the ancient Courfe
of Law by Words of Implication, nor. go any
further than the A¢t of Parlament does exprefs.
The Act appoints that a Copy of the Indictment
fhould be delivered to the Prifoner fo many Days
before, to enable him to make his Exceptions, and.
therefore deprives him of the Benefit of thofe Ex-
4 R - ceptions
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ceptions after Convition in Arreft of Judgment.
I fee no Words in the Aét of Parliament that do
alter the Courfe of Proceedmn‘s, as to this Mat-
ter, from what 1t was In all Civil and Criminal
Caufes before 5 Perfons muft take their Advantage
of Excepting 1n their proper Time, but when 1t
comes to Iflue, the next Thing to bz done is the
Tral ;3 and truly 1 muft needs fay the Council are
to blame, that knew this fo very well, that if
they have any Advantage of E‘{cepnna, they did
not take that Advantwe fooner, it 1s their Fault;
but feeing it 1s o, Iam of Opinion not to fore-
clofe the Prifoner, as the Cafe ftands. I would
be tender of Life, but at the fame Time I de-
clare my Opinion upon this At of Parliament
as the reft of my DBrothers have done, to prevent
the Objection for the Time to come ; yet feeing
there ts this Misfortune, and there would be a
Flardfhip upon the Prifoner by the Defanlt and
Neglect of his Council in the Cafe of a Man’s
the I would be fo tender as to indulge them to
mnl{c their Objeétions now.

Mr. B. Powys. 1am of the fameOpinion the Pri-
foner has lapy’d his Time, for I take 1t this Clanfe
of this A& of Parliament has not altered the
common Courfe of Proceedings s nay, I take i,
it fignifies very hedle 1o this Cafe : y for certainly it
Was mtcnde to difablz the Prifoner, and not
enable him at all 3 and therefore, as the Cafe 1,
I think 1t very Irregular and Impraéticable to in-
troduce fo great a Novelty, as to admit the Mo-
tion for quathing the Indictment, when the Jury
is fworn, and when the Falt is the only fingle
Point to be determin’d and every Thing clle
ought in legal Courfe to comz bafore or after;
but for us to confound Time, oze Time for Plead-
ing, another Time for Trial, and another for
Arreft of Judament, all at once, and to have a
Jury attending mealy to hear Council at the
Bar moot Points of Law, which might be de-
rermin’d  either before or after the Trialy 15 fo
very dtregular, that 1t really troduces nothing
but Coatufion, which € uris of Juftice ought to
avold above all Things, and ought to Lcep to
the proper Seafons that the Law allows. There-
fore, truly I think 1n Stitctnels of Law we o -ght
not to allow it but 1t bemg 1 a Cafe of Life,
ard 1t being a new Cafe upon a new Act of Par-
Bament, 1f the King’s Council thinks fit to Con-
fent, T fhall be for it, it not, I think n Stnét-
nels of Law we canaot allow i,

Mr. 4, Geir. My Lord I am very unwilling to
deny the Prifoncr any Advantage, that he might
have had by this Act of Parlmment though “This
Council have flipt the proper Times if Sir Bar-
thslomety Sba:.::fr will fay his Exccptlons are to
any of the four parnicular Heads mentioned in
this Claufe of the Act of Parliameny” for we muft
confine them to that, then we do confent that
he fthould make them now,

L.C. 7. lrul\,r Mr. Attorney, if you do con-
fent that they take their | qxccpnons now, we
may confider of 1t whether it canbe s but I l»._now
not how we could admit them to that Liberty
otherwife, for 1f there be any Thing material,
they may move tt in Arrelt of judgment.

Mr. A¢. Gen, And I believe they won’t fay their
Objetions are fo {light, as to be only Matter of
Form, they fay thcy are Subftantial, and then
your Lordfhip will hear them 1n a proper Time.

Sir B. Shower. 1don’t know whether I am mif-

taken in the Law, I am lure you are miftaken
in the IndiCtment,

8 W.III.

L.C. 7. Well, do you confent to Jet them
make their O y{.&lms, as to thofe four Feads in
the At of Parliament.

Mr. A, Gen, Yes, my Lord ; 1f 1t be any Mat-
ter of Subltance, that is out of the Cafe at pre-
{ent, for the Provilion of the Act of Parliament
s only for meer Matter of Form, and I fhould
be very unwilling in any Pomt that s material,
to make a Precedent 1n fuch a Cafe as this.

L. C. . Tconfeis if you had confented farther,
I donot know how we fhould have admitted of 1.

L. C.F. Treby, T tell you how I thought it
might be done, you might have committed an
Imcrul.mty, for which m a Cafe of Life, and up-
on a new Law, I believe and hope we fhould have
been forgiven.

L.C 7. Welly for my Part I will not commit
any Irregularity upon any Account whatfozver s
I cannot fee how by Law they can take any Ex-
ceptions to the Indictment; Mr. Attorney can-
not confent, and if he dud, I think it could not
bz, unlefs he did alfo confent to difcharge the
Jury; but I fee they will not offer any ObJLEi:lons
according to your Confent, Mr, Atorney, and
thercfore. pray go on to open the Evidence,

Mr, A, Gz, May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, the Prifoner at the
Bar, /fd}.uﬂf Reokzvood, tands Indicted for High-
Trcalon in Compaliing and imagining the Daath
of his Mdjcﬁ Gentlemen, the Overt Ads that
are hud in the Indictment to prove this Trea-
fon, arc; that He, together with divers Others,
had trequent Meetings and Confuleations, in or-
der to Aflaflinating s Magetty’s Royal Perfon,
and did provide I-Imlis and Arms for that pur-
pofe.

Gentlemen, the Lvidence that you will hear,
to prove thele Facts that are thus hid, will be
of this Nature; you will hear by the \Vitnels
That there has been for fome Years a D ﬁrrn'

curied on to Murder the King’s Perfon tlnt
this was difcourfed of, and 1LVEI.1! Debates and
Confultations were had about it the laft Year,
fome Time before the Kine wene to Fludors s
there was feveral Mtctlngs, where were Sir 74/
liain Parkyis, Captain Perter, and Chariock that
Was l“{ecutcd, and feveral others, and there they
did confider - what way 10 tke off the King
at that Time 5 and you will hear they did f:v:peit
1 Commuflion to auwthorze 1t from the late King
James 5 but then the Commiffion did not come,
they had not any fuch at that Time s but tlu:y
did think fit to put it in Execution without any
fuch Order and Authority, and therefore they
endeavour’d to have got a Vel to have carry’d
them off atter they had Executed this bloody Con-

(piracy 3 but 1t happer’d His Majelty went to

Flanders fooner than they Thought, and they
could not provide Themﬁ.lves of qSecuuty for a
Retrear, and fo at that Time the Defign was laid
dﬁdc

Bat Gentlemen, you will hear this Confpira-
cy was renewed, 'md fet on Foot this Wi mter
and in Order to the Accomplithment of it you
will hear, that about Chriflinas lalt there were
feveral Perfons fent from France by the late King
James, on purpofe to put this horrible Defign in
Execution.  Sir George Barclay was to be at the
Head of it, he was a Lieutenant in one of the
late King ]nmess Troops of Guards in France,
he was fent over with a Comniiffion, and Mr,
Rookwood, the Prifoner at the Bar, was a Bri-
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gadier in the Guards there;  thefe came over, and
feveral other Troopers of the late King Fames’s
.Guards, by two or three at a Time, that they
.might not be obferv’d; particularly you will
‘hear, that when Sir George Barcly was come
over, feveral Troopers were fent to by ‘King
Sames him{elf to come to him at St. Germains,
and there :he told them he had a Piece of Ser-
vice for them to do in England, and that they
thould bbferve Sir George Barcley’s Orders and Di-
refions. More particularly there was one Hay-
yis and Hare, two Troopers in the Guards, were
fent for by the late King Fanes into the late
Queen’s Bed-Chamber at St. -Germains, where
Colonel Pawker was prefent; they were told by
the late King, He was {enfible they had ferved
him faithfully, and He swould advance them,
and :he had now a Piece of Service for them to
do, which would enable him to do it; He rold
them they muft go over into Eigland, and be
{ure to obey Sir George Barvcley’s Dire&ions, and
they were order’d to endeavour to find out Sir
George ‘Barcley when they came into Englaid;
and were told by him, that they would meet Sir
George Baicky twice a Week in Covent-Garden
Square, in the Evening, and the Token by which
they fhou’d know bwm, was, he would wear a
white Handkerchief out of his Pocket; this they
were told by the late King, when he fent them
upon this Errand.  Colonel Parker was by at the
fame Time, and being there he was ordered to
go to Mr. Carol Secretary to the late Queen, who
had order ro furnith them with Money, to bear
the Charges of their Journey into Eigland, and
if they were detained by contrary Winds, they
flad Letters of Recommendation to Monfieur
Latour the French King’s Prefident at Calais, to
furnifh them with Money, to bear their Charges
over into England, and accordingly they went;
but being detained at Calais for want of Wind,
they were furnithed by the Freuch Prefident; and
by the Beginning of Frlruaiy, they came over.

But I omitted one Thing, Gentlemen: Before
they came over, the late King when they were
with him took a Lift out of his Pocket of Names,
and told thefe two, Harris and Have, what Names
they fhould go by in England; Hariis was to go
by the Name of Feikiizs, and Hare by the Name
of Guiny, and accordingly they came over in a
Boat, and landed in Kent, and when they came
to Town they endeavour’d to find out Sir George
Baycley: The firlt Time I think they did not find
him; but the {econd Time they did find him;
and he faluted them, and told them he was glad
to fee them come over, and he would farnith them
with Money, and he fent Major Huolmes to them,
and accordingly he did come, and give them Sub-
(iftence Money.

Now Gentlemen, you will hear that Sir George
Baicley being come over with thefe Troopers
and many others, to the Number of Sixteen, that
at feveral Times were [ent upen this Confpiracy,
I fay, afcer they were come, Sir George Barcley
had frequent Meetings and Confultations with
feveral other Perfons thar were to be engaged
in the fame Defien; and they met at feveral
Places, fometimes at Captain Portei’s, fometimes
at the Nag's-Head in Covent-Garden, at another
Time at the Swz Tavern in the Strand ; and you
will find by the Evidence, that the Prifoner at
the Bar, Mr. Rookwood, was prefens at moft of

thofe Meetings, and there they did confult of
Vor IV.
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the beft Ways and Methods for putting th!S
Confpiracy in Execution ; fometimes they thought
of doing it by an Ambufh, laid on the other Side
of the Water, by Perfons on Foot, in a little
Wood there near Richmond, where the'King was
to pafs by, whilft others on Horfe-back were to
rake Notice of their Firing, and then to At-
tack the Guards. ‘'[his was propofed, bur there
was another ‘Propofal to do it on this fide the
Water; and therefore to fettle the Matter, one
of the Confpirators, King, was fent to view the
Ground on the other Side of the Water, and
he did glory that he had found a very proper
Place, and thought it a very convenieilt Methad,
but yet they fwere not all fatisfied, and at the
Nagg's-head Tavern in Covent-Garden they did de-
bate the Matrer agdin, and it was refolved to
have the'Ground viewed again, and Porter, and
Knightley, and King that was executed went to
view the Gronnd on both fides the Warer, to
fee which was the moft convenient Place; tlus
was about the 12th of Fibrnary, they did take
an Account of the moft convenient Places on
either Side, and when they had done it, they
came back in the Evening to give an Account
what they had done, to feveral others of the

Confpirators, who met for that Purpole, and 1

think the Prifoner at the Bar, Mr. Roskwood; twas
prefent there at this Meeting; and you will
hear, the Place agreed upon was the Lane that
leads from Turubam-Green to Brextford, that they
thought the moft convenient Place becaufe there
were feveral Inns in and abour Twrubam-Grean
and Breutford, where they might place their
Men by two or three in an Inn, that they mighe
not be liable to Obfervation: This was the Place
that was approved of.

Then next, the Manner of doing it was to
be confidered and adjufted, and thac was thus:
That the whole Number, fhould be divided in-
to three Parues, one Party to be commanded
by Sir George Baiclzy to attack the Coach, and
kill the King, and all that were in ir, while ac
the fame Time the two other Parties to be com-
manded by Captain Porter, and Mr. Rookwood the
Prifoner at the Bar, were to fet upon the Guards;
and the Time agreed upon to put it in Executi-
on was the Fifteenth of Febinary on Satnrday,
that being the ufual Day the King went to Rich-
#ond a Hunting, and you’ll find that on Saturday
Morning they met in feveral Parties, not all toge-
ther, but under the feveral Heads of the Par-
ties in order to be ready, if the King had gone
out that Morning, to have Afflaflinated him.

Gentlemen, I {fay, you will hear of feveral
Meetings that Day; there was one Meeting at
My. Chariock’s, where were prefent Mr. Poter,
Sit William Peikius, and feveral others; and ano-
ther Meecing you will hear of where the Prifoner
at the Bar was prefent, ar the Lodgings of one
Couiter, another of King Fames’s Friends, thac
came over for this purpofe, and there was Sir
George Barcly, and there was the Prifoner at the
Bar; and thofe that were to be under Sir George’s
Command met that Saturday Morning n order to
make ready, in Cafe the King had gone abroad,
to have attack’d him: You will find by the Evi-
dence that the Prifoner was there, and Harris,
that was one of the Troopers fent over from
France, was fent for, and came in and found them
in a great Hurry, for Harris was not acquainted
ar St. Germains with the immediate Defign of
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Aflaffinating the King, but finding them In a
great Hurry, he ask’d them what was the Mat-
ter? And they told him they were to make rea-
dy immediately upon the Defien. He wonder’d
at it, and ask’d what it was, and then they told
him they were to go to attack the Prince of
Orange to aflaflinate him ; and Rookwood the Pri-
foner at the Bar told him, if he would go to
Counter, he fhould have particular Orders and In-
ftruftions from him what to do. Accordingly
Hairis went to Connter, he told him where his
tHorfe, and Hure’s Horfe, and Hungate’s Horfe
were; and there Horfes happen’d to be placed in
Somerfet- Honfe, by Mr. Leuss, in a Stable there
recommended by him, to the Care of my Lord
Leverfham’s Servants, who were to take Care of
them, and of two or three more that were placed
there, in all, fix of thefe Confpirators Horfes by
the Recommendation of Mr. ZLewis were lodged
in that Stable in Svmwerfet- Houfe, and look’d after
by my Lord Feveifbam’s Men; and thither Hariis,
Hare, and Hungate, were direGed by Counter to
co for their Horfes.

But ir happen’d by very good Providence, that
his Majefty did not go abroad that Day; and
Durance, one of the Orderly Men cthat lodged
at Keifiugton to give Intcllicence, came from
thence and acquainted them, that the King did
not go out that Morning, {o there was nothing
more done; bur Harris was told that he fhould
have his Horfe at that Time, and take it away,
and in the mean Time till they were to go upon
their Defign, they were to ride out upon their
Horles, as they had Opportunity, to make them
fit for Service, or elle it would be thought the
Rider’s Faulr, if, at the Time of the Attack,
they did rioc come up in good Time and Order
to jorn with the reft, and it would be thought
Want of Courage in the Rider; and accord-
ingly Major Holmes, another of thofe Confpira-
tors, went with Aavis and Hare to Somerfet-
Houfe to take away their Horfes, and they car-
ried them to a Stable in Soho; Dbut for feveral
Nights they had been kept at Svmesfet- Houfe.

You will find, Gentlenien, that My Reckwood,
the Prifoner at the Bar, was concern’d in all thele
Confultations and Meetings, in making Prepara-
tions for the Affaffination ; they intended, asI{aid,
to do it on the ssth of Felzuary; but that not
taking Efte&t at that Day, between that and the
Saturday following, Mr. Harris was {frequently in
the Company of Mr. Roelwoed, and Mr, Lowick,
and others, where they did difcourfe of this Af-
faffination, and they did think 1t a very barbarous
Thing; but however they refolved they would do
it, for they had Orders to obey Sir George Bar-
cley: And this was exprefly declared by Lowick
and the Prifoner, that they had Dire&ions to obey
Sir George, and what he would have them to do
they would do: They muft and would obey Or-
ders; that was their Refolution even upon dif-
courfing of the Heinoufnefs of fo bloody and bar-
barous a Delign.

You will likewife hear, Gentlemen, by the Evi-
dence, that the next Saturday being the Tiwo and
Twentieth of February, they refolved to put it
i Execurlon again; and accordingly there was a
Meeting on the Fiiday before at the Sun Tavern,
where were prefent Sir G. Barcley, Mr. Porter, and
others; and there they did refolve upon it, tho’
they had at firft {ome Apprehenfion the Thing
was difcovered ; but they were foon {atisfied there
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was no fuch Thing, beeaufe they faid among them-
{elves, that if it had been fo they fhould have
been taken up, and not have been permitted to
meet there: Therefore they refolved the next Day
to put it in Execution, and accordingly they met
at {everal Places, and got ready in the Morning in
Cafe the King had gone abroad; the Prifoner met
that Morning at Porter's Lodging, with feveral
other Troopers, to make ready for the Enterprize,
and there the Prifoner at the Bar did," at that
Time, give a Lift of the Names that he was to
command, for he was to have one Party of thofe
that were to attack the Guards, of whom Harris
was one, and Hare was another, and Richardfir
was another, and Blackburue was another, and his
own Name was Chief, and he ordered Harris to
go and fee to get them ready, for they muft go
out that Morning: Accordingly Harris did go,
and got them ready, and came back and gave an
Account of 1. His Majelty did not go abroad
that Day, asic happened very fortunately by Rea-
fon of the happy Difcovery; {o that.News being
brought back again, though they had made all
Things ready, thofe Preparations were put off,
and they did nothing that Day, and quickly after
the Difcovery was fully made, and made publick
by the Apprehenfion of the Confpirators.

Gentlemen, you will have this Matter fully
proved to you by feveral Witnefles, that I think
there can be no Room to doube the Truth of it,
that there was fuch a Confpiracy, and that the
Prifoner was as highly concerned in ir, as thofe
who have fuffer’d the juft Panithment of the Law-.
We will call our Witnefles to prove this, and I
believe they will be able to give you an Account of
the whole Affair, betcer and more fully than I can
do, or can pretend to open it,

Mt §ol. Geir, Call Mr, Harris and My, Porter.

Sir B. Shower. We oppofe the Swearing Mr,
Porter: T muft beg the Favour of the Court to
hear us in it; if my Inftru&tions be true, we in-
fit upon ir, that he is nor capable of being a
Witnefs, he ftands conviGed of Felony: Here
we have the Record, and we defire it may be
read.

Capt. Porter. T know nothing of the Matter,
that there is any fuch Thing ftanding out againft
me.
Sir B. Shower. Then fure we ars miftaken in
the Man, Pray let us hear 1t read.

Cl. of Ar. (Reads the Record.) 'Thisis an Indi&-
ment of Murther agamft George Porter, for the
Kiliing of Sir Fames Hacket, Knight.

Mr. A4t Gen, Do you know any Thing of this,
Mr. Poyter?

Capt. Porter. I came off with Manflaughter, and
pleaded the King’s Pardon in Court.

Mr. 4t Gen. Pray, read what was done upon
it.
Cl. of the Crowin. Here’s the Jury’s Verdi&®. Qued
pradiftus Georgius Porter e culpabilis de felowica
Inteifeltione pradicti Jacobi Hacket, O won culp.
as to the Murder. Here is a Curia advifare wult,
and I fuppofe there was a Pardon afterwards,

Mr. fuftice Powell, Was he not burnt in the
Hand?

Capt. Porter. No, I pleaded the King’s Par-
don.

L.C. % And there are feveral AQs of Pardon
fince.

Mz, Cowper. See the Time when the Indi&-

mene was.
Cls
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ClLof Ar. It is the Eighth of  December in the
Thirty Sixth Year of King Charles the Second.
__Sir B. Shower, We agree that he did plead the
King’s Pardon, and then the Cafe is.no more than
this, a Man is convitted of Manf{laughter, and
the King pardons him, he {lill remains unqualified
to be a Wimels; we fay, this has been the Cafe
that has been much debated in Weffminfler- Hall,
and upon Debate it has been refolved.

Mr. 5. Powell. It has beenfo, but always againft

ol . L
’ Sir B. Shower, It wasin the Cafe of mj Lord
Caftlemaine av this Bar; one of my Lords the
Judges went to the Court of Contriton-Pleas to ask
their Opinion, and thefe Cafes were put: In Cale
a Man be out-law’d of Felony and pardon’d; in
Cafe a Man be conviGted of Felony and had the
Benefit of his Clergy ; and in Cafe a Man was con-
victed and not attainted, but pardoned upon the
{fecond Cafe ; they were of Opinicn, that the Re-
ceiving the Punifhment of Burning in the Hand,
had purged the very Guilt, and did fet him up-
right by the Statute of the 15th of Queen Eliza-
beth, they thought 1t did operare to that Purpofe ;
but in the Cale of a Pardon of 2 Man attainted
or convitted, it was agreed he was not qualified
to be a Witnels; and Dangerfield, againft whom
the ObjeQion was made, being burnt in the Hand,
was received to be a Witnefs; and it was only
made ufe of againft him to take off his Credit.
The Record of that Cafe is in this Court, and I
looked upon the Print of the Trial this Day. We
fay, that there is a Cafe in 1 Brownlw 47. a
Man attainted of Felony cannot be of an Inquett,
though pardon'd; and we think, he thar cannot
be a Juryman, fure cannor be a Witnefs; there
is the fame Lxception to his being a Witnefs as
there 1s in the Cafe of a Juryman; for the one
ought to appear as. free, and ftand as clear and
unfufpefed, in Refpe& of his Probity and Veri-
ty as the other, as the one is fworn to try and
determine upon Qath, {o the other is fworn, and
his Oath is to {way and determine the Jury, and
in Confequence 1t is all one, and upon thefe Rea-
fons we hope he is not a good Witnefs.

L« G F. Where i1s that Cale in Brownlow ¢

Sir B. Shower. It 1s 1 Brownlow 47. and then
there 1s 11 H. IV. 41- 2 Bulff. 154. there my
Lord Cwk fays, if a Man be convitted of Felony,
and pardoned, he cannot be a Juryman ; for thongh
the Punifhment 1s pardoned, the Guilt remains,
{o that he is not probus & legalis Homo, and every
particular Perfon has an Intereft in ir, that they
have free and clear Perfons to be Jurymen and
Witnefles.

Mr. Phippss My Lord, that is the Diftin&ion
we go upon, which was taken in Dangerfield’s
Cafe, upon the Trial of my Lord Cafflemaine,
where the whole Court were of Opinion, that a
Pardon from the King only, would not make him
a good Witnels ; but if he were burnt in the Hand,
that by the Statute of decimo offavo Elizabethe,
amounted to a Statute Pardon, and fet him right
to all Intents and Purpofes : And there they did take
Notice of that Book that Sir Bartholomew Shower
cited of 11 of Her. IV, that a Man artainted could
not be a Jury-man, though pardoned by the King:
It was objeted he might be a Witnefs; bur Mr.
Juftice Fowes faid, it was the {fame Reafon if he be
not fit for a Jury-man, he is not fit for a Witnefs;
they ought to be both proli € legales Hosnines,
thus the Cale ftood there. And that other Book
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of Bulfirode is the fame, it twas in the Calé of 2
Prohibition for a Modus Decimandi, where the Sug-
geftion 1s to be prov’d by two Witnefles, it was ob-
jeCted hie had pot provd it by tivo Witnefles, be-
caufe they were both ateainted of Felony, and
though they were Pardoned, yet that did not make
them good Witnefles in the Opinion of the Court.
. L. C. F. This is quite another Cafe, it does nox
come up to your Point, here is no Attainder, and
here is Pardon upon Pardon, by A& of Parlie~
fnent. - |

~ Mr, Phipps. As to that we think the Parliament
Pardon is our of the Cafe; for if the Pardon from
the King be a good Pardon, there is no Guilt for
the A& of Pardon to work upon.

~ Sir B. Shower,, My Lord, this we think to be a
good Diftinétion as ro that Matter, a Man that is
attually pardon’d the Punifhment by the King’s
Fardon, and afterwards 4n A& of Pardon comes
and pardons all Offences, that we fay does nothing,
for he is not a Subje& of Pardon, for he was dil-
charged of his Punifhment before.

Mr. A4t. Gen. Sure thefe Gentledien are not i
earneft when they make this Obje&ion. *

Sir B, Shower. When the King has once pardon’d
him he 15 not ari Offender within the Meaning of
the A& of Parliament; and therefore the A&
works nothing as to him, and fo he ftands as
much difabled from being a Witnefs; as he was
betore. L

Mr. . Powell. In the Cafe of Cutington in Hob-
bard, there it is faid the Pardon takes away ran
Reatumn quam Penam, e, an AQion being brought
for calling a Man Thief, who had been indifed
for Felony, and convifted, and pardon’d, the
Court adjudged, that he ought not to be called
fo; for he was no Thief, for the Pardon had
wafhed him entirely clean, and he was difcharged
both of the Guilt and the Punifhment, and all
the Confequences of it.

L, C, F. Thofe Cafes that have been put are no
Authorities at all in this Matter; for where there
15 a Convittion of Manflaughter; and the Party is
pardon'd, we think that Pardon of the King works
in 2 Way of Difcharge as much as the Burning in
the Hand. I take it, it is the fame Thing : They ad-
mit, that will difcharge him to all Intents and Pur-
pofes, and fo we think does this as effeGually 5
for having his Clergy, and being burnt in the
Hand, works by Way of Statute Pardon : For the
Cafe of a Jury-man, I take it not to be the fame
with this Cafe; bur even in that Cafe, I do not
think that the Party convicted, after the King hath
pardoned him, is difabled from being of a Jury;
but {uppofing that to be fo, yer there are many
Cales wherein 2 Man may be a Witnefs; that can=
not be a Jury-man. It is true, the Credit of fuch
a Witnels is left to the Jury, but it is no Olb-
jeftion againft his being a legal Witnels; and it
is a very ltrange Argument to me, that becaufe he
was pardoned by the King, if that fhould be defi-
cienty that therefore, the A& of Pardon hould
have no Effet. Truly, thatisto fay, that the
King's Pardon works fo, as to have nothing lef
for the Parliament Pardon to work upon, and cer-
tainly 1t {ets him fo right, thar to all Intents and
Purpofes he is as good a Witnefs as ever he was ;
and it any Thing remained to be done, the A& of
Parliament has done it, and fupplied the Defe :
but 1 think the King’s Pardon is fuffictent,

Mr, 4t. Gen. My Lord, 1 {oppofe they do not
infift upon ir, asthinking there is any great Weighs
i
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in it, but only for Obje@ion fake; but we hope
that notwithftanding this Objection Mr. Porser
fhall be {worn.

Mr. Sol. Gen, My Lord, they take this Excep-
tion at an improper Time, for they fpeak to his
Credibility.

f{.. C. 7. No, they except to his being a Wit-
nefs.

Mr, Sol. Gen, If fo, your Lordfhip remembers
a Cale that was before your Lordfhip not long
fince, bur in Eaffer Term laft, when one was try’d
at this Bar for Treafon, and Aaron Smith was pro-

duced as a Witnefs, and the Prifoner took Excep-
tien againft him as no good Witnefs, becanfe he
had ftood in the Pillory, and your Lordthip and
the Court did {ay, that the A& of Pardon did
reftore him to all Intents and Purpofes ad Jiberam
Legent.

Mr. Coiyers. In the Cafe of the Earl of Caflle-
wmaiie, both the Courts of King’s-Bench and Com-
moi-Pleas, held Daigeifield a legal Witnefs, tho’
burnt in the Hand for Felony, and fo was the O-
pinion of Rels: In Stiles Reports 388, one that
hath been burnt in the Hand for Felony, may not-
withftanding be a Witnels,

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, in anfwer to that Cafe
that was put, that after the King’s Pardon for one
convified of Felony, another Man has not the Li-
berty to call him Thief, thar was an Obje&ion in
my Lord Caffleniie’s Cafe, that may ftand as
goud, and our Notion that we contend for, be
oood too; he cannot be impeach’d, or have Guilt
imputed to him, when once the King has forgi-
ven him, and yet that may not reftore him to his
entire Credit, as was my Lord Chief Juftice
Serogg’s DiftinGion in the Cafe of Dangerfreld; and
as to the Cafe of Aaron Smith, that was very dif-
ferent: The Reafon in that Cafe was, becaufe
the Crime for which Mr. Smith was indi&ed, did
not import any {uch {candalous Offence for which
his Credit could be impeached,

L. C. 5. No, no, we did not meddle with that,
we went upon the Pardon.

Sir B, Showers Bat 10 that Cafe, they did not
infift upon it that he had a Pardon antecedent ro
the A& of Pardon, fo that he was Subjeffum ca-
pax, for the A& to work upon, he was an Of-
fender that needed a Pardon, whereas Mr. Porter
being pardon’d before, conld not be an Offender
needing a Pardon, and confequently not wichin
the firt Words of the A& of Indemnity, be-
caufe he was pardon’d by the King before, but he
was not by that Parden, {ay we, reftor’d to his
Credit to make him a good Witnefs, and the A&
of Parliament did not affe@ him, he being not

fubjeltum Materiz, as not being an Offender.

My, Phipps. As to Mr. Sollicitor’s Cafe of daion
Smith, we agree the A& of Parliament did reftore
him, becanfe he never was pardon’d before by the
King, {o there remamed an Offence for the Par-
liament Pardon to work upon.

L. C.}. Do youagreethat, then you may agree
the other; for the A& of Parliament pardons
none but thofe that the King can pardon gene-
rally. |

Mr. Phippss 1t 1s true, my Lord; but we f{ay
that an A& of Parliament Pardon, removes thofe
Difabilities which the King’s Pardon does nor,
for every one is in Law a Party to an A& of Parlia-
ment, and therefore no Perfon fhall be permitted
to alledge in Difability of another, any Crime
which he himfelf hath pardon’d, for that is to

aver again{t-his own A&, but ’tis otherwife in the

Cafe of .the King’s Pardon.
L.C.54. Why, the very Parliament :Pardon

comes from the King; the King has a full Power
of Pardoning, and where he does pardon under
the Great Seal, it has the full Efe& of the Par-

liament Pardon. A .Pardon before Atrainder,

prevents all Corruption of Blood, fo that tho’ a

Man forfeits his Goods by Conviction, yer after a
Pardon he 15 capable of having new Goods, and
{hall hold them without any Forfeiture whatfoe-
ver, for the Pardon reftores him to his former
Capacity, and prevents any further Forfeiture.
Indeed if he had been attainted whereby his
Blood was corrupted, no Pardon, whether it
were by the King or by the Parliament, conld
purge his Blood withour Reverfal of the At-
tainder, by Writ of Error, or AG of Parlia-
ment, or exprels Words in the A& to reftore
Blood ; but either Pardon makes him .2 new
Creature, gives him new Capacity, and makes
him to all Intents and Purpoies, from the Time
of the Pardon, to be probus & legalis Homo, and
a good Winefs. Indeed this Crime might be
objected againft his Credit, but it is not to be

urged againft the Sufficiency of his Evidence,
that 1s, his being a Witnefs,

Mr. 4te. Gen. My Lord, we defire he may be
fworn. (Wbich was dove.)

Mr. Sol. Gen. Now, Mr. Porter, do you give my
Lord and the Jury an Account, what you know
of this intended Af{faffination, how it came to
your Knowledge, and what Share the Prifoner at
the Bar had 1n i,

Capt. Porter, My Lord, the firft Account that
I had of this Affaffination, was from Mr. Char-
wock, who brought to me Sir George Barcly and
Major Holmes to my Lodging in Nerfolk-flreet,
where I was fick of the Gour. Sir George Barc-
ey did not then particularly acquaint me with
the Bufinefs, bur faid, he would leave it to Mr.
Chariock to tell me what 1t was.

L. C . Who told you {o?

Capt. Porter. Sir George Barcley; and after that
we had feveral Meetings, at which the Prifoner

at the Bar was prefent, particularly at the Globe-
Tavern in Hatton-Garden, where it was confulted

of the beft Ways and Means to aflaflinate the
King as he came from Richmond: Some were of
Opinion that 1t was beft to be done on the other
Side of the Water; others were of Opinion
that it fhould be done on this Side, by a Party
of Men on Horfeback: Upon this Difference
of Opinion, there were Perfons appointed to
go and view both Places; I was appointed for
one to go with Captain Kuightley, and Mr. King
went along with me, and we did view the
Ground on both Sides, and when we came back,
we gave an Account to Sir George Barcley, and
thofe that fent us, and upon our Report, Sir
George Barcley’s Mind was chang'd, who was for
the other Side of the Water before. And he
acreed to do :t in the Lane that leads from
Turnham-Green to Bremtford.  Afterwards there
was a Meeting at the Glbe-Zavern in Hutton-
Garden, and there it was agreed that the King
thould be attack’d on Satwrday the 15th of Febrn-
ary, by Sir George Barcley and his Party; and
Mr. Rookwood, the Prifoner at the Bar, was to
command a Party of Men that came over from
France, who were to affaule the Guards on one
Side, and I and Mr, Charnock were to fet upon
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the Gudrds on the other Side.  Sir Géorge Bay-
ey, with four Men out of each Party, was to
attack the King in his Coach, and to kill him
and all that were thefe 1n it

L. C.¥. Who wereat that Meeting ?

Capt. Porter. There were Sir George Barcly,
Captain Charigek, St IWilliom Parkyns, My felf,
Major Holmes, Captain Reoiwood, and Captain
King. .
L. C. ¥ Where was this?

Capt. Porter. At the Globe Tavern n Hation-
Gerden, upon Setrday Morning the 1 5th, we hav-
Ing two orderly Men thut' lay at Kenfington 1o
give [ntelligence, had Notice brought us firft
that the King would go out; Durarce, who was
one of them, ufed to go every Morning to Court
o get us what Intelligence he could, and Sir
Georze Barcley told me upon the Fiiday, that he
fould give me an Account as ioon as ever he
could the next Morning 5 and the next Morning
at my Lodging i Littie Rider-fireet in St. faines’s,
he came tome, and told me, the Advance Guards
were gone out, and the King’s Kitchen was gone,
and all was preparing for the King’s going abroad,
and there went a grear many Noblemen and
Gentlemen a Horfe-back with him, and there-
fore he thought there would be no Opportunity
of efieéting the Thing; faid I, that’s no Objection
at all, nor any Reafon for putting it off, becaufe
when the Sport is over, all the Company gocs
away, and the King comes only in his Coach
with the Guards; he faid, he would give Sir
Gesrge Bercley an Account of 1t, and he came
back with Sir Gesige Barcley and Mr. Roskevood to
my Lodging, and upon repeating that Objection,
and my giving the fame Anfiwer, it was agreed 1f
the King had gone out that Day to have put the
Defign in Execuation,

Mr. Att. Gen. Was the Prifoner at the Bar
there at that Time when that was agreed upon #

Capt. Porter, Ycs, he was,

L. C. #. Where do you fay was that Meeting ?

Capt. Perter. At my Lodging in Litle Rider-
ieet,

L.C.F. Had you that Difcourfe with Sir Gesrge
Barcly, in the Prefence of the Prifoner?

Capt, Perser. Yes, Sir Geeige faid, he doubted
we could not do it, becaufe there would go fo
many with the King; but 1 objcted agamft that,
that after the Sport was over, all the Company
went away, and the King came back in his
Coach 3 then it was agreed to go on, there was
Sir G:orge Bircky, Darance, and the Prifoner at
the Bar and my felf, 1 the Room.

L. C. ¥. This you fay was Sctmiday the 15th,
in the Morning,

Capt, Porter. Yes, my Lord, but I cannotfay I
{aw the Prifoner at the Bar at any Meeting after
that,

Mr. A, Gen. Pray, tell my Lord and the Jury,
what Method you were to take in putting this
Défign in Ekecution.

Capt. Perter. There were to be fo many Horfe-
meh armed and prepared for the Purpofe.  Sir
George Baicley told me, we fhould be about 40
or 45 MHorfe-men, and they were to be divided
into two Parties, and Sir Gesrge Barcky was to
have four Men out of cach Party, and his Bufi-
nefs was to attack the King, and all that were
with hiitiin the Coach, Captain Rookwood was to
command thofe that were come out of Frauce 1o
ferve under Sir George Barclzy, and Captain Char-
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nock and I were to command the other Party,
and both Parties were to fet upon the Guards at
the fame Time that Sir George Barcley attack’d
the King’s Coach.

Mr. Att. Gen. If thie Prifoner will ask him any
Quettions, let him, |

Sir B, Shower. Priy, Captain Porter, when was
that firft Meeting at the Glote-Taveri ?

Capt. Porter, It was one Day in che Weck be-
fore the 15th.

Sir B. Shawer., Was Mr. Reakvesd,
at the Bar, there that Day?

Capt, Porter. Yes, hewas.

Sir B. Shower. Flow long before the 15th ?
~ Capt, Peiter, One Day that Week; but I cannot
tell what Day. 1

Sir B. Shower, IHe fays it was agreed {o, and
o [ defire to know what Words Mr. Roskzcosd
uttered at that Tine.

Capt. Porter. It was difcourfed by cvery one
round, which was the belt Way and Methed.
I hexrd Mr. Reokwood fry, Indeed, he believed it
a very defperate Thing, and he was not very
willing to engage in it; but when Sic Georpe
Baicley told him he fhould command his Party,
he replied 1 Freuch———

Mr. Sol. Gei. What's the Meaning of that ?
Capt. Porter, There’s an End of it

Mr. Att. Gen. You fay the Prifoncr was at your
Lodging Saturday the 15th, in the Morning,
What Difcourfe had you there ?

Capt. Porter. He was there upon Setiirday in
the Morning, the rsthof Feorazry, and Durance
bronght an Account that the King’s firit Guards
were gone, and the King’s Kitchen was gone be-
fore, and 1t was expected that the King would
go about Lleven a Clock, but it was faid, thas
there were a great many were preparing to oo
wich him, and therefore 1t would not be conveni-
ent to do it that Day ;5 fud I, that is no Objec-
tion at all, for the Nobility and Gentry go out
of the Field as foon as the Sporr is over, and the
King ufed to go-with a few People to Mr,——
Houfe at Rffbmaﬂd,_ﬂnd theretore 1t mught be as
well done at that Time, as any Time: Durance
made that Objection at firft himfelf, apd when I
made him that Anfwer, he went to Sir Gesipe
Barcley, and he came back with Sir Gesrge Bar-
cley, and the Prifoner was there by at the fame
Time, and Sir George Barcly made the fame Ob-
jection 3 it was at my Lodging in Litt/e Rider-
Sfreet, and when I told them my Rceafon againit
the Objetion, as 1 had done before, they all a-
areed to do 1t that Day.

M. Phipps. At that fecond Meeung, did Mr.
Rookwood make any Propolal there?

Capt. Porter. 1 only fay he came with Sir George
Barcley, and what T heard, I tell you Sir George
Barcly made that Objection, and I gave it that
Anfwer,

Mr. Phipps. But what did he fay ?

Capt. Porter. 1 cannot fay that T heard Mr.
Rookweod {ay any Thing in particular, but they
all agreed to do the Thing that Day.

Sir B. Shewer. You remember nothing that he
faid 2

Capt. Porter. Sir George Barcly faid, we will
o and prepare, and he went away with him.

Sir B. Shower. Pray, when did Sir Geerge Bay-
cley come into England ?

Capt. Poiter. Truly, Siry I don’t know thar,
the firft Time that I faw him" after he came,
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Mr. Charizck brought him to my Lodging In
Norfoliefpreet, bat before thar, Mr. Charnock told
me, he was come Into Luglaid.

L.C. ¥ Fark you, Mr. Perter, when you came
biack from Viewing the Ground before the firkk
Saturday, and you faid you made your Report, and
then 1t wasagreed that it fhould be done at fuch
a Place 5 Do you fay the Prifoner was there!?

Mr. .. Gen. No, my Lord, he docs not fay fo.
Do you fay Mr. Rockwood was there at that Time:
Cupt. Porter. No, my Lord, T don’t fay bo.

Sir B. Showze. 1 am fare he did not fay fo be-
forc; and bulides, vour Losdfhip will obferve
there 15 po fuch Overt A& as thae laid 1n the
Inditment againft the Prifoner, that Mr, Perter
made his Report upen the View, that only con-
cerns Vi, Raghliey.,

L. C. ¥. No, that is notan Overt Adt, fagice
15 but 1 only ask the Quellion, whether the
Prifoner was there,

L. C. . Trly, 1f it werc an Overt ACt Jaid in
the Indictment, it would nor aficct the Priloncr,
becaufe the Viewing of the Ground, and making
the Report, 15 Capiam Peive’s Ad, and 1t muli
be the Conlulung and D:banng afterwards that
muft affect the Patoner, if he be concern’d.

Mi. Csvare. The Mectings and  Cenfultations
that are latd Inche TadiGmont are the Overt Acls,

Mr. $57. Gear, Wil i they have done with
Captain Deivar, we defive Mr, George ariis may
be iwori.

Sir. 8. Shezzer. Ny Lotd, we beg Leave to op-
pofe Mr, [ariis’s being iworn s here was a Pro-
clamation that did tike Notice of this barbarous
Conipiracy to alaflinate the King, and the Pro-
clamation did figaiiy, That the King had reccived
Information of feveral Perfons concerned m that
Confiiracy 5 and for the Encouragament of taking
thote fo acculed, he did promifea Thou fand Pounds
Reward {or the taking of any of the Conipirators s
and in the Concluficn of the Proclumation there
is a Claute, That if arv of the Confsivalers jiould
difcewcr or eppichand v of the efhr Perfons ol
coere thercin raiwed, o as  that they floald be
bicuaht to condigin Piicificut, fuch Coufpivlor fo
difeovering foould recvs o Tooufand Powinds Re-
ward for aiv of the otk Pafras eppichended, aid
bis i Pardon. My Lord, we have a Witnefs
here ready to prove that this was Mr. FHoriiss
Cafe; he was himicll in the Proclamanion, he
did altually difcover Mr. Resdavsed, the Priloner
at the Bar, and was initrumental in the taking of
him; and confequently upon this Clale of the
Proclamation, if he be broughi o Juftice, then
is Mr. Herds intitded w0 this Reward and his Par-
don; and confequently he has fuch an Intereft
and Advantage to himicifas will prevent his being
a Winels. It is true, indeed, where 1t is at the
King’s Suit, ina capiial Cafe, 1t 1s pretiy hard to
fay cthara Man has an Interelt ; but we think, as
this Cafe is circamftantiated upon this Proclama-
rion, that the fame Obiection lies aganft him as
would do if this were a civil Caufe; it we thew
how he is to have an Advantage by the Event of
this Cuufes, then he isnot to be admitted 2 Witneks.

L.C.¥. Did he apprehend any Body upon the
Proclamation 2

Sir B. Shower. Yes, he apprehended Mr, Rook-
soood Wimfelf, or was the Caufe of it, and thercby
is intitled to the Reward and his Pardon.

Mr. Phipps. That upon which we groond our
Objection 15 the difftrent Penning of the Procls:
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mation; for if any one that is not a Confpirator
do but difcover and apprehend any of the Perfons
named 1n the Proclamation, he is entitled to the
Thoutand Pounds; but the Confpirators them.
felves muft go {urther; for a bare Difcovery and
Apprehending any of their Accomplices will not
entitle them to the Reward mentioned in the Pro.
clamation, but they muft difcover and apprehend
their Accomplices fo as they be brought to Juftice
before they can be entitled to the Reward: And
to be brought to Juftice for any Crime, is in com-
mon Underftanding to be broucht to fuch Punifh-
ment as the Law inflits for the Offence. Now
My, Harris’s Cale ts this, he difcovered Mr. Rool-
zood, and went with the Guards to the Compter
and ki22d hime: Aod it Mr, Roesliwood ben’t con-
vidked, Wi, Harris 15 not to have any Thing for
his Painss but i he be convidted, Mr. Haris is
entivled o the Thoufand Pounds and his Pardon.
And therefore furely My, Haivis cannot be admit-
ted an Fvidecce cgunft Mr. Rovtcooed, fince he
Is to receive o wreat @ Benefie by his Conviction,
Upon an [ licement for an uitrious Contrad, the
Perfon whoie Deed 1t 15 cannot be a Witnefs, be-
caule ’tis toavard his own A& : So in an Indit-
ment for Perjury, on the St 5. Elz. the Party
inured by the Porary cannor be @ Wimnefs, be-
caufe he 1s to have nalt the Forfaitures,

Mr. At Gen, I uppole they will make out their
Obje. “on belore they exput an Anfwer from us.

Str B. Shewwor. 1 hepe your Lordfbip will not
put us to prove a Copy of the Proclamation from
the Inrolment, but that we may have the fame Fa-
vour as In the Cafe of the Statute-Book, that the
Print of 1t may be allow’d {or Evidence.

My, At Gen. My Lord, we will not ftand with

them for that, we know they are miftaken through-
out, we confent the Proclamacion fhould be read.

Cl. of Air. Reads,

By the Kng a Proclamction,

Willlam R,
E/'“" Heicas His Mojfly bas vecerved Inforimnation’
: upon Quathy that the Perfens berein after
saied, bave with divers other wicked and traite-
roits Perfors entcred itto a boivid aind deteflable Con-

fivecy to affoffate end mwrder His Majefly's fa-

cred Peifenr, for which Canfe feveral Warients for
High Trecfon bave becir iffucd ont againft  them,
but they beve withdrewn  thamfeles from their
tfzal Places of dbode, aind are fled from Fuftice »
His Mujefty bas therefore thought fit Ly the ddvice
of bis Fiivy Corncil to iffue his Royel Proclawmation,
end His Majefly aces berely commend and requive
all His loving Sulyecls tot difeever, take, and ap-
prebend James Duke of Berwick, Sir George Bar-
cley, Majer Lowick, George Porter, Capt. Stow,
Capt. Walbank, Capt. James Courtney, Licutenant
Sherborne, Brice, Blair, Dinant, s mu
Chambers, e=—= Boite, George Higgins, and bis
tzwo Brothers, Sons to Sir Thomas Higoing, e
Davis Cardell, Goodman, Cram-
burne, ~—— Keyes, Pendercrofs, afias Pren-
dergrafs, e—=———Bryerly, =~———Trevor, Sir
George Maxwell, m———Durance, a Flming,
Chriftopher Knightley, Lientcirant King, e cmoe
Holmes, Si» William Parkyns, — Rookwood,
whercver they may be found, and to cariy theimn be-
fore the next fuflice of Peace or chief Nagifirate,
who is hereby vequired to commit them to the next
Gaol, there to remain until they be thence delivered
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by due Courfe of Law. And His Majefty dotly bere-
by require the Jaid Fuftice, or other Magiftrate, im-
mediately to give Notice thereof to Him or His Privy
Council.  And for the Prevention of the going of the
[faid Perfons, or of any oiler, dunfo Treland, or other
Parts beyond the Seas, His Majefly docs vequire and
command cll His Officers of the Cuftoins, and other
Iis Officers and Subjeits of end in the refpeiiive
Couits cid Maritime Towns end Places within His
Kingdews of England, Demindon of Wales, and
Tewir .of Berwick wpon Tweed, twat they and cve-
ry of thea i their vefpellive Staticns end Places,
be careful and diligent in the Exaination of all
Peijoiis who (ball pafs or cadeatonr 1o pafs bevoud
the Seas, and that they do sob perwiit any Per-
forn whatfocoer to go iuto Treland, o7 other Places
bevond the Seas, <without o Pofs wider Iis Majefly's
Roval Sigin Manuel wntil further Order. dud if they
fhall difeover the faid Perfons obove-icind o any of
them, then to canfe then to be apprciended and fe-
cured, and to give Notice as cforcfard.  Ayd His
Mujeftv does Leieby Publifh and Decicre 1o all Per-
fins who fhall conceal the Peifons aieve-named, or any
of theiny or be aiding ard cffffig in the Concealing of
them, or furthering their Fofeape, That they fhall be
pivceeded againft, for fuch iheir Offence, with the
atingft Severity, according lo Lew.,  Avd for the
Encouragesment of ¢l Perfous to be Diligeit~aind Care-
ful in endeavouring lo Difcover cid dpprehend the
faid Perfons, Ve do bercly further Declare, That
whofoeve flall diftever and Apprebend the Perfons
dhgve-nained, o ey of them, and fiall dving them
Lfere  Jore Fuftice of DPeace, or chief Magifirate,
as aforeferd, ool bave and veccive as ¢ Reword,
the Sum of One Thouferd Poidy which foid Sum
of Oue Thoufand Pounds, the Lords Commniffioners
of His Majefty's Treafuiy are berely Requived and
DireSted to pay accordingly.
fois above-named fhall Difcover and rdpprebend aiy of
their Accoinplices, [o as they may be brought 1o Fuflice,
[Tis Majefly does berely Declare, diat cvery Perfon
moking fuch Difeovery, fhall beve His Meyefty's Gra-
cions Pardon for bis Offcice, and fhall veceive the Re-
ward of One Thoufond Pownd, lo be pay’d in fuch
smanner as aforefaid. )
Given at our Court at Kenfigtonn, the 23d Day of
Febrnary, 1695-6, 1 te fughth Year of our
Reign.

~ GOD SAVETHE KING.

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, The different Penning of
the Claufes is not only 1n that Proclamation, but
it is the Language of every Proclamation that has
gone out for the Apprehending any of the Con-

{pirators. -
Mr, Ate. Gein. My Lord, All that we fay in An-

{wer to this Objetuon, 1s, That Mr. Harris is not
nam d in that Proclamation.
L. C. 4. Whar fay you to that Sir Bartholpmew

Stower ¢ He is not named 1n the Proclamation :

And fo if he hach difcovered and apprehended
the Prifoner, he has earn’d his Money, fwhether
he be Convitted or not, becanfe Rookwood’s Name
1s in the Proclamation, tho’ his is not,

Mr. Phipps, Then, my Lord, with humble Sub-
miflion, here is another Proclamation wherein he
is nam’d, we defire that may, be read.

Mr. Soll. Gen. And when 1t 15 read, it will be
as little to your Purpofe as the other.

My, Att, Gero  Let them read what they pleafe,

we need fay nothing at all to 1t
Vou IV,

- for High-T'reafoti,

And if any of the Per-

 laft Clanfe of it
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L. C . Certainly upon this Proclaration,
there’s no Objeétion ; for he is intitled to his One
Thoufand Pound already, tho’ Reokwied be never
conviéted,

Mr. Phipps. But 18 he not by this Proclamation
which mentions his Accomplices, intitled to his
Pardon? 1f fo, he fivears to {ecure himfelf.

L. C. . By the Apprehending and Difcovering,
he’s inticled to Lis Pardon. -

Mr. Phipps. Bat not without ke be brought to
Juftice 5 that 1s to fay, till he be convi@ed ; there-
fore Lie cannot be an Evidence to convi@ him.

L. C. . "Thatis, asto any that are there named,
if any of them difcover and apprehend one ano-
ther, 1t muft be fo as that they be brought to Juf~
tice; But if any Perfon that is not named there
does apprehend any that is, he is intitled to the
Oae Thonfand Pound, barely by the Apprehen-
fion,

Mr. Phipps. Then there is another Proclamation
where they are both named, as Mr, Rookwoed tells
me,

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, We will {et this Mat-
ter right; we will thow the other Proclamation, in
which, if Iam rightly inform’d, for I have not
read it, My, Harris is nam’d.

Mr, Att. Gen. If you have not read it, I would
advife you not to trouble the Court with it; for
you will find the latter Parc is reftrain’d to three
or four particular Perfons, of which he is non.

Rockwood, I am named in the Proclamation,

Mr. Att. Gen, Ay, but read the latter Pare of it;
and you will find you are not nam’d in the Claufe
that they referr’d to: You need not read the for-
mer Part of the Proclamation, we agree the Pri-
{oner 1s named there; but only look towards the
bottom, which is the Clanfe that they refer to.

Cl. of Aiv (Reads) Aid we do hereby further de-
clave, &c

My Att. Gen. They have not confidered the Pro-
clamat'on, and therefore make an Objec&ion of
they don’t know what.

Sir B. Shywer. We are in your Lordfhip’s Judg-
ment.

L.C. . For what? See it you can make or
ftace a Cafe for onr Judgment.

Sir B. Stower. Mr. Rookwed is mention’d in the
firft Proclamation, and Hasis 1s not, but there
are the Word Accomplices: He is likewife men-
tioned in the lalt Proclamation, but not 1n the
I confefs, if he had, it had been
plain it would have taken oft his Teftimony, buc
now we mult fubmit 1t to you, whether he is not
an interefted Perfon, and confequently no good
Witnelz.

L.C % Truly I do not fee any Colour for the
Objeétion. s he not as well intituled to his One
Thoufand Pound, tho® Mr. Reekswod had never
been try’d, by the bare Apprehending of Mr.
Rookwood, as1f he was convidted 2

Sir B. Shower. Wo, my Lord; becaufe the Words

are {o as he may be brought to Juftice.

L.C. 7. That s not fo, as to any Perion that
apprehends one mentioned tn the Proclamation,
it the Perfon that apprehends be not mention’d in
it, and named himfelf; 1t any one that is not
meniion’d apprehend one that is mention’d, he
3s intituled, by the Apprehenfion, to the One
thoufand Pound. If any one that is mention’d
apprehend anocher, then he is to brifg him to Ju-
ftice ; now My, Harris is not named n this Pro-
clamation, and fo as to thie One thoufand Pound,
he ftands in the fame Condition as any otlicr Per-
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fon that dilcovered or apprehended one of the
Perfons there nam’d.

Sir B. Shower, But it feems he was one of the
Confpirators, becaufe he is himfelf defcribed in
another Proclamation,

My, 4its Gen. If it were fo, it would not be
material, nor any Manner of Objettion ; bat as
they have made their Obje&ion upon thefe Pro-
clamations, we think there is nothing for us to
aive an Anfwer to.

Mr. Cowper. Nay, my Lord, if it were fo, will
Sir Bartholomew Shower {ay his Client is not
brought to Juftice, unlefs he be convited? 1 am
fure the Words Convitted or Attainted, are not in
the Proclamation,

L. C. . There is nothing in 1t; you muft fivear
Mr. Harrvis:  (IWhich was done accordingly.)

Mr. Sol. Gen. Will you give an Account to my
Lord and the Jury, what you know of this Con-
{piracy againft the King's Life, frem the firft
Time you were acquainted with it, and what
_Hand the Prifoner at the Bar had in it.

Mr. A4tt. Gen. Pray give an Account of the
whole Thing, your Coming over, and who fent
vou, and upon what Errand, and the whole that
you know of this Confpiracy. .

Capt. Harris. Upon the 14th of Famuary laft,
the French Stile, New Stile, I was at St. Germarns,
where I was fenc for by King Fames, and was or-
dered to waic his Dinner till it was over, and ac-
cordingly I did wait till his Dinner was over, and
then 1 came 1, and Col, Parker was with him,
and one Mr. Hare, who is alfo mentioned in the
Proclamation, was there alfo: The King told me
he was fenfible I had ferved him well, and now
he had an Opportunity of doing fomething for
me; he told me he would fend me into Eigland,
where I fhould be fubfifted, and I was to follow
the Orders of Sir George Barcley, and according-
ly he order'd me ten Lewidores to be paid by
My, Caroll, who is Secretary to the late Queen,
and Col. Parker went along with me, and Mr.
Have, to Caroll, and told him he came from the
King, and we had the Lewidores, and we went
to Calais, in Order to our coming over hither:
But we were told if we were wind-bound, that
the Money we received would not bear our Char-
ges; there was Orders given for our further Sub-
filtance at Calais, to the Prefident there. Accor-
dingly we came to Calais, and the Wind did not
ferve us for eight or nine Days; and while I
ftay’d there, the Money that I fpent at Calais
was paid by the Prefident of Calais, Monfieur La-
tour. Afterwards I landed in Eugland, near Rom-
ey Marfh, as I was told, and I came to the Houfe
of one Hunt, and he provided me and my Com-
rade with a couple of Horfes; and coming from
thence, 1 came in the firlt Place to one Tucker’s
an Apothecary in Sandway, and next from thence
we came to Reciefler, to Chailes Crofts’s, and
from thence n a Coach to Gravefend, and from
thence by Water to Leiduz: Thar Night we lay
in Grace-Church fireet at an Inn, it being Night,
the Night-11de, and fomething late. The next
Day 1 came to a Lodging at an Acquaintance’s of
my Comrade’s, Mr. Hare, at the Unicorn in Brows-
low-fircet, one Mr. Watemar’s. The next Night
I went to look for Sir George Barcley, whom the
King told me I thould certainly find by fuch 2
Sign of a white Handkerchief hanging out of his
Pocker, on Muwdays and Thurfdays, in Covent-
Garden, where his Walk was to be in the Even-

ing, becaufe he was not to appear n the Day.
Time openly. It happen’d that upon Minday
Night after 1 came to Town, I went there, and
did not find Sir George Barcley according to the
King’s Dire@ion, which I admired at; but there
was one Mr., Berkenbead, who told my Comrade,
a Day or two after, That Sir George Barcley would
needs fpeak with me, and accordingly I mer with
him; and he asked me how the King, Queen,
Prince, and Prince(s did, and I told him they
were very well; I told lim I was appointed to
attend him, and obey his Orders. He told me he
had no Money at prefent, but in two or three
Days he would {end fome; and fo he did, by
Major Holmes, 1 had five Shillings -a Day for
Subfiftance, and I had no Horfe; and when I
had a Horfe, it was {ix Shillings a Day; after
which rate 1 had Subfiftance for a Month at five
Shillings a Day, Guincas going then at Thirty
Shillings. Major Hulmes paid me the Money by
Sir George Barcley's Order, as he told me, and he
afterwards gave me a Guineay and that was the
firlt Satnrday when the Affaffination was defisn’d;
for that we told him we wanted Money, and it
was not reafonable we fhould rake our Horfes our
of the Stable before we paid for them: And I
met Sir George Barcley feveral Times at Civent-
Garden, and he told me ir was a {ufpicinus Place,
and delired me not to come any more there ; buc
when he had any particular Orders to give me, he
would give me Notice' of it where I thou’d meer
hm;: and accordingly 1 did meer him feveral
Times.

Mr. Att. Gen, Now, Sir, will you tell what you
know as to the Prifoner at the Bar.

Capt. Haivise As to Mr. Rookwoed, the Saturday
that the Aflaflinaricn was defign’d to be, the firft
Time that I knew of it, I met Mr. Rookweed, st
one Mr. Burck’s Lodaing, where he was up, and I
faw him in a great Hurry and fome Confterna-
tion, and in came M. Bernarde; I ask’d him the
Meaning of it, and what they were going about;
and Mr. Roskwoed told me, if I wou'd go down to
Captain Comnter 1 fhou'd knew; accordingly I
went, and to the beft of my Remembrance, he
gave me a little Note to Caprain Cumirter, bur that
I am not pofitive in. I went co Captain Cennter,
and as {oon as ever I came, he told us, We muft be
immediately ready to go to Turnlan-Green.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Where was that?

Capt. Harris, At the Hoolpack, that was the
Sign - as near as I remember. Mr., Haye
and I were ordered together to come there, and
there was Mr, Hnuugate, who had been there fome
Time, and when 1 came in, Sir Geerge Barely did
declare Laughing, Thefe ‘are my Fanifaries: And
he talk’d fomething of bringing the Garter;, and
of attacking the Coach; but he went out of the
Room, and afterwards he came in and declared,
We were all Men of Howonr, and that the Bufinefs
we were going abowt, was to artack the Piince of
Orange; but Durant came in after that, and {aid,
The Priuce of Orange did wuot go ont that Day,
When he talk’d of artacking the Prince of Orange,
I was very much ftartled, nor knowing any Thing
of it before; and I came the next Morning to
Mr. Rockwood, and ask’d him H we were to be
the Murderers of the Prince of Orange, {ays Mr.

Rookwood to me, I am afraid we arve drawn into

Jome fuch Bufinefs; but if I bad known it before 1

came over, I fhould have beggd the King's Par-

don ar St, Germains, awnd not have come over bi=
2 ther :
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ther » and faid I, This is very ﬁuc’. we have [erv'd
t0 a very good Pﬂrpqﬁ? to be fent over upon fuch an
Ervand and Account. After this Mr. Reokwood,
and Mr. Lowick, and I, had a Meeting at Red-
Lyoi- Fields, where we dld difcourfe about the
Matter. 1 did ofren declare asaindt 1t, That it
was {o barbarous a Thing, that ne Man of Honour
almoft wonld be guilcy “of it; bur Major Lowick
anfwered, That we were to obey Orde:a‘ for fure
Sir George Barcley wou’d not undertake a Ihmn of
chat Nature without Orders.

Mr. At. Geir. Pray what {aid Mr. Reolwood?

Capt. Harris. He own’d it was a barbarous
Thing ; bur he was {ent over to obey Sir George
Bar dE) s Orders, which he had feveral Times do-
clareu he was refolved to do; ; upon that we part-

. {o afterwards I came to Mr. Rookwood’s Lodg-
lqn, 1t was the Satwrday Morning 1 came to lum
and fo went to Sir Guwrge Baicky’s; while he was
there, Mr. Reokwoed gave me a Note, naming fo
many Names, parcircularly Mr. Auingate, Mr.
Hanford, My, Hare, and his own Name ac Top,
not the Name that he 1s arraigned by liere; but
a fham Name that he had, as the reft of us all
had fham Names, which atthat Time we went by.

L. C. % Whar was your Name?

Capt. Harvis, Ny Name 15 Fenkins,

L. C . Who gave you that Name?

Capt. Harvis. Kine Yames ar St. Genmaius, and
he eave Mr. Hare the Name of Guiney, and Mr.
Rogkwied's Name was Reberts Ring Fames told
us in his Bed chamber, We were to oo by thole
Names,

Mr. At. Gen. Pray Sir, what did Rookwoed {ay to
you, when he gave you that Lift 2

Capt. Haisis, He rold me, he was to go to Tuii-
ham Green, and I was to rru alopg with him, and
fays he to me fmiling, You fhall be my Aid de
Camp; and get the Reft of the Gentlemen ready,
and qccordlngly I went to look for feveral of the
Perfons —-— particalarly for Mr. Blackbuyie :
When I came back again, 1 found him lying on
his Bed, and that Sir oemge Barcley had rold him
the Prince of Orange did not eo out that Day,
and from thence we went to Dmner where Ma-
jor Lewick din’d with us, and Mr. Bernards and
Major Lowick feeing me in a Heatr, ask’d me,
Why I was in fuch a Sweat? 7 told him I were
getting thofe Men ready for Mr, Ruokwood, who
had made me his 4id de Camp: Says Major
Lowick to me, Yon may very well do it, for you
have Six Shillings a Day allow’d you, and I have
norhma, I brmg two Men ar my own Clmqe.
Said I, Major Lowick, 1 wonder you don’c apply
your felf to Sir Geor ae Bascley, and then | believe,
gou may De {ubfi fted too. He anfwer'd me, He
did not think it worth the while ro trouble him,
fince he had never fpoke to him of it before:
and Rovkweod, and Beritarde, and Lowick, and m
{elf, feveral Times met in Red-Lyon. Fields,
talk’d of attacking the Prince of Oraige.

Mi. At Gen. Who did?

Capt. Harrise Rookwood, Beriavde, Lowick, and
my lelf.

Mr. At. Gein Pray Sir, let me ask you one
fon. Where was your Horfe at firft?

and

Que-

Capt. Harris, At firlt it was at my Lord Fe-
rue,{bnms Stables, as chey told me, in Somerfet-
Houfe.

My, At Gen. \Where were the other Perfons
Horfes ?

Vou IV,
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Capt. Harris, There was Mr. Hfmgrzre s and Mr.
Hare’s Horles in the fame Place, at the fame ‘Fime,
as they rold me.

Mr., Aut. Gen, How came you by your Horfe
there ?

Capt. Huivis, M.l] Holes did delives my Horfe,
and committed it to my Care, and 1 cqrry’d {
thence to another Place.

Mr. At Gen, Did you obferve there was any
more Horfes there?

Capt. Haivis. 1 beliece there was Five or Six,
as near as 1 can guels.

Mr. 4t G Do you know where Rockwood was
to have his Horfe?

Capt. Huriis. He had a Horle; but whence he
had it I don’c know.

Mr. A4r. Gen. Had you any Arms delivered
you?

Capt. Hairis. Yes, I had by Capt. Conister.

Mr. Conyess. Were you at no other Place toge-
ther that Sarurday I\lghr the 224 of E.J;;:my,
becaufe you fay you din’d together.

Capt. Harris, Yes, we were at the Bear Ta-
vern.

Mr. Conyers. \What Difcourfe pafs’d between you
there?

Capt. Haifi. "They were talking about the Af-
{aflination; but what any particular Perfon {aid,
I cannor tell.

Mr. Conyers. Pray who were there?

Capt. Ha:is, Vhere was Mr. Ruightley, Cap-
tain Reckwsod, and Mr. King; and Raightly went
out, and came in agaip, and declared, we muft
have a greac deal of C¥re of our felves, or we
fhould be taken up: and he winfper’d at firlt,
afterwards I ask’d him what 1t was; and he told
me, and {aid, Ve nuft have a Care of onr felves.
Says My, King, ftaring this Way with his Eyes,
Suiely God Almighty is on our Side; and {o we
parced.

L. C . When was this?

Capt. Harris This was the Night “of Satarday
the 22d, when 1t was difcover'd; for fome of.
them were taken up the next Day.

Mr, At. Gen. Was Rookweed there at that Time
at the Bear Tavern?

Capt. Harris. 1cannot pofitively fay whether he

was or nor.
Mr. Ar. Gern. What Difcourfe had vou there?

Capt. Harris, We ralk’d of Aflaflinating the
King; but what it was in parccular, I cannot

tell,
L.C. F. Was Rovkwood there?

Capt. Harris. Yes, I believe he was; but I can-
not pofitively fay.

L. C. . You fay it was the laft Satavday that
the King was to go abroad, that you apprehend-
ed you were difcovered.

Capt. Harvis.  Yes, we apprehended we were
difcovered before that; for Mr. Lowick told me,
that three or four Days before, in that Week, thas
his Name, and one Harrifon’s, were given into
the Council, and another, and another, Two or
"Three of them, as he told me ; I think Thyee or
Four; and upon that Account Major Lewick, went
from his Lodging, and did not lie at his Ledgmg
the Nisht before; and I came to Major Lowick,
and he told me the fame T hing at the Kiug’s- Aims

Tavern,
Mr. At. Gen. Can you remember what Difcourfe:

you had that Saturday Night?

495 2 WY
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Mr. Cowper.  You fay that on Saturday the 22d,
Mr. Rookwood gave you the Lift,
Capt. Harris, I do not fay it was the 22d, for

I cannot {wear to the Day of the Month; but i
was the fecond Saturday that we were to have

gone about this Bufinefs.

Mr. Cowper, You fay he gave you a Lift of

Names: Pray, when he gave you that Lift, what
Difcourfe happened in the Room, juft before, or
afer the giving of the Lift?

Capt. Harrise Sir, 1 think I cold the Court that
before.

Mr. Cowper. Sir, 1 defire you would repeat it.

Capt. Harris, My Lord, I humbly defire to
know whether I am to anfwer that Gentleman that
Queltion?

L. C. . Yes, you are to anfwer, being upon your
QOath, and to tell the whole Truth.

M. Cowper. 1 asked him the Queftion {o fairly,
what Difcourfe introduced the giving of the Liit,
and what followed upon it, that I perceive this
Gentleman does not know which Side I am of.

Capt. Harris, Mr. Rookweod {aid we were to go
to Turithan-Green; and he told me, that I was to

be one of his Party, that we were to attack the
Prince of Orange.
L.C. %. You fay youn were to be one of his Par-

ty; pray was it there that he told you, you fhould
be his Aid de Camp ¢

Capt. Harris. Yes, he did tell me I was to be
his Aid de Camp,
Mr. Phipps. Whofe Hand-writing was that Lift?

Capt. Harris, I cannot tell, I had it from that
Gentleman.

Mr. Phipps. But whofe Writing was it
Capt. Harris, Indeed I know not his Hand-

writing, and therefore cannot tell whofe it was:
He is for his Life, but I believe he cannot deny

any Thing that I have faid, I fuppofe not: I

thould be very forry to accufe Mr. Reoduood of

any Thing that was not true.

Mr, Phipps. Pray whofe Names were in that
Lift?

Capt. Harvis, 1 have .ention’d Mr. Harve, M.
Haiford, Mr. Blackburie, my felf, and you Mr.
Rookwood, had your own Name at Top.

Rookwoed, What is that Blackburne ¢

Capt. Harvis. He 1s a Lancafbire Man.

Rookwood, It's a very ftrange Thing I thould give
you a Lift with a Man’s Name that I don’t know,
I declare it, I know no {uch Perfon.

Capt. Harvis. Mr. Rookwoed, 1 believe you are
very {enfible I do not accufe you of any Thing
that Is not true.

Mr. Phipps. When did you fee that Lift laft?

Capt. Harits. He gave 1t into my Hands, and
had it from me again, or I threw it away after-
wards.

Rookwood. But you that were to be an Evie
dence ought to have kepr it to juftify your Evi-
dence,

Capt. Harvis, Truly T did not intend to have
been an Evidence at that Time.

M. Ate, Gen. If they will ask him any Quef-

tions, Jlet them.

Sir B. Shywer, No, indeed, T will ask him no
Queftions.

Mr. 4t. Ges. Then, my Lord, we have ano-
ther Piece of Evidence which we would offer to
your Lordfhip, which 1s not dirett Evidence a-
gainft the Prifoner, but only to prove a Circum-
ftance or two of what has already been {worn:

i)
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We do acknowledge, my Lord, it does not affeq
Mr. Rookwood, bur only to firengthen and confirm
what they have fworn.

Str B, Shower. With Submiffion we hope it wi
not be Evidence fit to be given as to the Prifoner
at all ; for becaufe a Man may f{iwear true in the
particular Citcumftance of a [hing, that there-
fore he {wears true what he {wears again(t che Pri-
foner, I think is no Confequence in the World.

L. C. 3. It is a Thing diftin& and foreien to the
Martter, as to Mr. Rookwood.

Mr. 4t Ger. My Lord, we do not fay it dirc&-
ly afteCts Mr. Roskwood; but when your Lordfhip
has heard 1t, we fhail fubmit it to you, how far
it confirms even the Evidence given againft him,

Mr. Conyers. My Lord, we fay the Prifoner was
to have his Horle from Swmerfet- Houfe; and that
there were Horfes plac’d there for that Pupofe
we are going to prove.

Mr. dit. Genn My Lord, it is one entire Con-
{piracy, in which every one had his Part; one
was to have his Horfes and his Party in one Place,
and another in another: Now that there were at
fuch Time fuch Horfes at Somerfer- Honfe, and
thofe Horfes were delivered out from Seurerfer-
Houfe, is certainly a Confirmation of the Truth of
what the Witnefles have faid.

L CF Tris foo If chat be ic you offer, it is
very material,

Mr. Congers. We fhall prove, That upon the
Difappointment on the firlt Satwrday, the 15th of
Lebruary, they were to be ready againft the 22d;
and you will hear how the Horfes were difpos’d
of in the mean Time. Call Chamberiain, Maskel
and Allen,

Mr. At Gern Call any one of them, Ibelieve it
1S enough. '

My. Chamberlain appeared, aud was freors,

Mr., 4t Gen. Pray will you give my Lord, and
the Jury an Account what you knew of any Hor-
{es that were brought to Semerfet- Honfe about Fe-
bruaiy 1aft, and how long they ftay’d there?

Chamberlain, There was fix Horles.

Mr, At. Geir. Who brought them in.

Chamberlaiin. They were fent in by fome Per-
fons in Mr. Zewis’s Name.

Mr, At. Gei. Had you any Dire@ion to take
Care of them?

Chamb, Mr. Lewss {fent in a Note to take Care
of them for a Night or two.

Mr. At. Gen. Who carried them away?

Chamb. T cannot tell: Some People came to fee
‘em that I never faw before, and they rook care
of them; 1 know not who they were, and I never
faw them fince.

Mr, At. Gen. What Time was it that they came
for them?

Chamb, It was about the middle of the Day.
Mr, Att. Gen, What Month was it in?

Chamb. 1 think 1t was much abour the latter
End of Febinary, to the beft of my Remem-
brance.

Mr. 4. Gen, Flow long was it before the Plot
was difcover’d.

Chamb. 1t was about a Week, or a {fmall Mae-
ter, before the Plot was difcover’d, to the beft of
my Knowledge.

Mr, 4t. Gere How long ftaid the Horfes there
at Somerfet- Houfe 2

Chanth. Three of them ftaid a Night or two;
but the other three of them about a Matter of
a Week or ten Days.

Mz,
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Mr. 4t Gen, Who own'd thofe Horfes?

Chamberlain. 'They were fent in, in Mr. Lewis's
Name; but who own'd them I cannot tell in-
deed.

Mr. Conyers. Then {wear Yok Allen,  (Jho was
fworn.)

Pray tell my Lords and the Jury, what you
know concerning any Horfes about the Time of
the Breaking out of the Plor.

Mr. At, Gen. We mean in Somerfet- Houfe Sta-
ble.

Alfen. ‘There was feven Horfes came in.

Mr. Conyers. Who brought them 2

Allen. There was Six in the firft Place: one
came in afterwards in the Evening,

Mr. Conpers. By whofe Order were they brought
there?

Allen. By My. Lewis’'s Qrder.

Mr. Ast. Gen. How long did they ftay there?

Allen- Some of them flaid there feveral Days;
Three of them went away the next Day; as I
think,

Mr. Conyers- Do you remember abour what time
thofe Horfes were brought thither ?

Allen. They were brought there, I believe,
about {even or eight Days before the Plot broke
ouLr.

Mr. 4t. Gen, My Lord, We only call thefe Wit-
nefles to confirm the Teftimony of the others,
that there were {uch Horfes there at thar time,
and for the prefent we reft it here.

L.C. 7. Thien, Gentlemen, what fay you to it
for the Prifoner ?

Sir B. Shower. If your Lodthip pleafe, we are
of Council for the Prifoner; and that which we
are to infift upon is this, which we fubmit to your
Lordfhip’s Judgment. In the firft place, whether
here be two Witnefles againft the Prifoner to prove
this Treafon according to the Statute of Edw. 6.
which requires two Witneffes in High-Treafon,
and lawful Ones; but thar in the frft Place we
{ay there are nor two Witnefles at all, at leaft not
to any Overt-A& that is laid in this Indi@ment.
As to what Captain Porter fays of what pafs'd
between him and Durance, the Dialogne between
them where Rookwood was prefent, we are in your
Lordfhip’s Dire@ion; and we doubt not but the
Jury will take it into their Confideration, how far
that afte@s the Prifoner; that he fhall not be con-
cern’d in any Tranfaftion between Mr. Porter
and any other Perfons; none of their Declara-
tions, none of their treafonable Pra&ices, can be
imputed to or affe¢t him in any way what{oever.
Now all that Captain Perter fays of My, Rovh-
woed, 15, that he was once at the Gllbe Tavern,
and there was a Difcourfe abour this Matter; and
then he tells your Lordthip of a Dialogue be-
tween him and Durance, and an Account of what
palsd berween them; but he does not fay any
Thing of Mr. Reokwood being any Ways con-
cernd in the Matter, but only that he dropped
this Expreffion, It was a defperate Adventure, a
dangerous Enterprize, and he feemed againft it
but in the End he concluded with {omething in
Eirench, which whar they are, and what they
mean, we muft {ubmit to your Lordfhip and the
fury; he incerprets it, when Sir George Barcley
faid he muft have a Share in it, then Reokwood
replied, There’s an End of it. But there is not
one Word of Agreement {worr to, that Mr., Rook-
wood {poke to fhew his Confenr., There is bur
one Time more that Mr, Porter fwears to, abouc

Jfor High-T'reafor.
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the Prifoner at the Bar, and that is, -at his Lodg-
ings in Little Rider-flreet; for as to the other
Confults, Mr. Rockwsed was nor prefent there: It
feems there was a Difcourle about the Affair, but
that Rookweod {aid nothing, but went away;
there was not fo much as the leaft Intimation of
an Agreement to any fuch Defign, or Approbation
of what was agitated in the Company, and we
infift upon it as to this in Point of Law, that it
amounts to no more than Mifprifion of Treafon at
moft. My Lord, T will not now contend about
Notions, nor will I argue whether Confulting and
Agreeing be Evidence of an Overt-A&; I {ub-
mit to your Lordfhip’s Direftions, notwithftand-
ing the Variety and Difference of Opinions that
have been.

L. C. 7. Sir Bastholemew Shower, 1 know not
what Variety of Opinions you mean; there have
been {ome Difcourfes in Pamphlets 1 agree, but it
was always taken and held for Law, that Confult-
ing and Agreeing was an Overt-A@&.

Sit B Shower, Here 1s no Evidence of any A-
grecment.

L. C. 7. Pray let us hear what you {ay to that.

Sir B, Shower. It is not the being prefent where
Traytors do confult and confpire the Death of
the King, unlels they a&ually agree; nor 151t
Evidence {ufficient to guide or prevail upon a Ju-
ry’s Confcience, to afirm upon their Qaths, that
{uch a one is guilty of High-Treafon, becaufe {uch
a ope was there and f2id nothing at all; for the
not difcovering afterwards, nor accufing is no Evi-
dence at all againlt Mr. Reckwood, As to Mr.
Hayris, he gives you an Account of a great deal
that does not aftect Mr. Rookwood, neither all that
paft at St. Germains, nor in their Journey into
England, for all that may be true, and yet the
Prifoner no way concern’d in it. As to what he
affirms of the Prifoner, we thall fubmit it to your
Confideration: What it amounts to, and all that
his Depofition comes up to, is, That Mr. Rook-
wiod complain’d that he was to obey implicitly
Sir George Barcley's Orders; and Harris gives an
Account but of one particular Time thar Mr.
Ruskwoed undertook or did agree to be concern'd
in this Mateer; 1t was but once, and that was,
when he gave him the Note of thofe thar were
to go to Turnham-Green, and that he was to be
his Aid de Camp: And as to that, we fhall give
you an Account by Witneflcs whom e fhall call,
that chele two Witnefles ought nor to be believed
as to what they have fworn, tho they do not
come up to make two Witnefles according to Law
upon this Indi&tment: What they have {aid as to
this Man is not credible, tho’ they may fpeak true
as to others; and no Doubt there was a barba-
rous Confpiracy ; it appears there was fuch, be-
yond all Exception and Contradi&ion; and the
Per{ons that have been condemn’d as Confpirators
have acknowledg’d it: Bur, my Lord, that which
is now before your Lordthip and the Jury, is, to
enquire whether the Prifoner is concern’d in this
Aftair at all, and how far; and we hope the Jary
will be of QOpinion he is not concern’d.  The
Heinoufnefs of the Crime, and the Aggravationg
of it, being to be abhorred by all Mankind, we
think ought not to fway with the Jury, nor Infly=
ence their Judgments to believe a Witnefs ever
the fooner in accufing any other Perfon; it oughe
rather to have a contrary Allay; for the greater
the Crime is, and the farther of from having any
tolerable Opinion in the World, they ought to
expect
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expelt the greater Proof; and no one is to be
prefum’d gwity of fuch an A&, without very fuf-
ficient Evidence of it; and the greater the Crime,
the Proof ought to be the more pofitive and un-
deniable: It is not their being plainly pofitive that
is {ufficient, but whether ic s fuch that is good in
Law, and about that we are {ure your Lordfhip
will give true DireGions in point of Law: and
whether the Witmefles be credible or no, mult be
fubmitted and left to the Jury, atter we have
call’d fome Witnefles, who will give you an Ac-
count of their Reputation.

Mr. Phigps. My Lord, we humbly infift there
are not two Witnefles, {uch as the Law requires,
to prove the Charge upon this IndiGment againit
the Prifoner : The two Overt- Aéts that touch Mr.
Rookwood, are firft Confulting and Agreeing how
to kill the King; the other 1s the finding Arms
and Hor{es for that purpofe: Buc as to this lac-
ter, the finding Arms and Horfes, there is not
one Evidence that comes up to it: And as to the
former, the Confultations, whether there be {ufh-
cient Evidence that comes up to that, 1s very much
a Queftion with us: But we {ay, with Submiflion,
there are not twa Witnefles in that Cafe; for Mr.
Dorter fays only what he was told by Sir George
Baicley, that Sir George propofed this Martrer;
bur withal he tells you, that when Sir George
Barcly propofed it, and Mr, Roskwed was in-
form’d what the Defien was, he was fo far from
Confpiring, Conlulting, or Agreeing to do it, that
he faid it was a barbarous A&, and he recoil’d at
it. Then at laft fays Sir Geoige Barcley, Yo wuft
command a Party.

L. C . Well, and what faid Roskwoeod then?

Mr. Phipps. Porter {ays, he then {aid, There’s
an End of it. Now, my Lord, what Evidence is
this of a Confultarion and Agreement? And this
is all that Porter {ays. As to what My, Hariis
{ays, we are to confider whether the Lift piven to
him be an Overt-Aé; and there the Point in
Queftion is, Whether that Lift can be given in
Evidence againft Mr. Kuviwood, apon this late A&
of Parliament, as an Overr-A&, it not being laid
in the Indi&ment? There is indeed an Overt-AG
of a Lift laid 1n the Indi&tment, as given to Cran-
buvie, but none as given to Mr. Rovkwood,

L,C. . Pray take the Evidence right: Firft,
What will you make an Qvert-Aé&? What do
you think when there is a Debate among divers
Perfons abour killing the King?

Sir B. Shower. With Submiffion that will be no
Overt-A&, 1f there be a Debate of {uch a Mat-
ter, tho” he be prefent.

L. G . Aye; buc when there 15 a Confule, and
upon Debare a Refolution is formed, and tho’ he
does at firlt diflike 1t, yet when he is told he maft
command a Party, he fays he is content, or there’s
an End of it; What do yon make of that?

Sir B. Shower. He faid he did not like it, it was
a barbarous defperate Defign.

L C. . It’s true, but when Sir Genrge Barchy
faid he fhou'd command a Party, he acquiefced,
and faid there was an End of it: There was a
Difcourfe abont Cutting off the King, and that
was agreed upon in the Company ar that Time;
and tho” ac firflt he did not like i, yer he might
afrerwards agree to it.

Sir B, Shvwer. t My Lord, that is it which we
deny; we {ay there is no Proof of his Agreement
to it

L C. . Capt. Porter fays, he did declare that
he faid he look’d upon it as a delperate Defign,

and was averfe from being engaged in ir, but af-
rerwards did agree toit; Whether is not that {uch
an Overt-Aét, as s laid in the IndiGment ?

Sir B. Showsr. My Lord, We muft beg Leave
for the Prifoner in a Cafe of this Nature, that it
may be recolleCted what the Evidence did {ay.
Mr. Porter did not take upon him to affirm thar
Mr. Rovkwood confenred toit, but only faid;, There
was an Eod of it. Now we muff leave that to
the Jury, what they can make of fuch a doubtful
Exprefhon.

L. C . Call M. Purter in again,

Mr. Gongers, My Lord, the firft Mecting M.,
Porter fpeaks of, where the Prifoner Mr. Reoh-
wood was, 1s at the Glbe-Tavern, where this -
courfe was; the next Meeting that he fpeaks of,
was on the Lriday Night, before the firflt Saummy
when the Bufinels was to be done, and afterwards
he met at Poreer’s Lodgings, on Saturday Mﬂrning,
in Ruder-fireet,

Their Capt. Porter came in again.

L. C 9. Hark ye, 'Mr. Porter, the firft Time
that this Matrer was propofed, when Mr. Rookwood
was prefent, you lay was at the Globe Tuuweri,

Capr, Porter. Yes, my Lord, 1t was.

L. C 9. And you fay he dilld’d 1t, and did no:
care to be concern’d in it

Capts Pates. Yes, my Lord, he did [o.

L-C. 5. Well, What faid Sir George Barcley 2

Capt. Porter. Sir George Bardey {ard he ought to
obey his Orders, for he had fuch a Commiffion
for fuch a Thing, and he drew out a Scheme how
it was to be done; and when Sir Geoige Baicley
told Mr. Reckwweod he fhow’d command his Party,
he replied in Freich,

There's ain End of it

L.C . This was at the Globe-Taverz, Was it
not ? |

Capt. Porter. Yes, my Lord, it was. -

Mr. A4t. Gen. Pray then, Capt. Poiter, let me
ask you another Queftion, Was he afterwards
with you at any other Meeting, and when and
where ?

Capt. Poiter. FHle was with me upon Saturday the
15th, at my Lodging in Little Rider-flreet, where
was Siv George Burdey and others.

Mr. 4t. Gen. What Difcourfe happen’d then, I
pray?

Capt. Porter. They did there difcourfe the
whole Matter, and Sir George Barcley was not for
going at that Time, becaufe there was fo many
People that wene with the King; that there wou’d
not be a good Opportunity to effeét the Defign:
But I rold him they would go off after the Hunt-
ing was over, and [o it was agreed upon t0 go on
with the Undertaking.

Mr. A4t. Gen. Pray, at that Time did Mr. Rook-
wood pretend to diflike che Affair, or refufe to be
any Way at all concern’d it? °

Capt. Poster. No, my Lord, 1 can’t remember
that he {poke one Word.

L. C . Was Mr. Rovkwood there?

Capt. Porter. Yes, there was Mr. Rookwovd, Sir
George Barcley, and Mr. Duraice,

Mr. 4t. Gen, And had you Difcourfe at thac
Time about this Bufinefs?

Capt, Puiter. Yes, my Lord, there was that
Objection made of {o many People going with
the King, and I made that Anfiver that I tell

youl.
o L. C. 5.
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L C. ¥ Why then, fuppofe at the Glibe Tavern,
fuch an Expreffion had not dropt from the Prifo-
ner, but a Maa is prefent at two Confults thav
are held aboutr the Death of the King, but fays
nothing either at the firt or fecond, What wou'd
you make of that Cafe?

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, I confefs this is a Cafe
of a very barbarous Nature, of which I hepe my
Client will acquit himfelf: But I think we have
the Authority of Parliament on our Side, that
this does not amount to a Proof of T'reafon. . It
{eems they lay a Sirels upon this, that Mr. Rook-
woed came to Captain Porter’s Lodgings on the
Saturday Morning the r5:h: But then take the
Cafe as it is; for ought that does appear upen
the Proof, he knows not, upon what Account the
Meeting is, beforehand. I think that is the Cafe
of my Lord Ruffel, upon which the Reverfal of
Lis Attainder went, that the Evidence came
fhort, and that 1t was buc Mifprifion; for the
Evidence was, That he was prefent at the {uppo-
{ed Declaration’s reading, bur faid nothing at all
{o 1,

L. C. 7. But I fpeak of two Meetings; there was
buc one.

Sir B, Shower. My Lord, I do not know twhe-
ther there were two Meetings or one then: But
this is the Ground we go upon, there ought to be
two Witnefles : And if there be two Meetings up-
on fuch a Defign, the fecond may be is accidental,
and it does not appear to be a defign’d Meeting;
and there was no Appointment of Mr. Rockwosd
to be there, nor any Negotiation by way of Mef-
{fage or otherwife, to that Purpole. 1Is this, my
Lord, an Overt-A&? Suppole a Man be prefent
at a Confult about trealonable Pratices, and he
ufes Words that are indifferent; it Is true, in the
Cale of a Wager it amounts to an Affent, but it
hardly will come to that when People meet by Ac-
cident, or for they don’t know what,

L. C. . How 1s this by Accident?

Sir B. Shewer, It does not appear that it was by
Defign or Appointment.

L. C. 9. They were Acquatntance.

Sir B. Shower. He had no Acquaintance with
him but in Sir Gzorge Baicley's Company.,

L. C. 7. But befides, there was an exprefs Con-
{fent at the Ghbe Tavern, when Kookweod faid,
Theve is an Eund of it.

Siv B. Shower, That 15 as much as to fay, 1 will
not do 1t, 1 will not go wich you—

Mr. Su. Gen. Sir G. Barcley was the Perfon
whom they were to obey; and Harris tells you he
told them what they were to do, and fix Horles
were fiylt plac’d, and three of them afterwards
remov’d.

Sir B. Shvwer. That won’t affe@ him what Siy
George Bavcley faid, any more than Lewis's appoint-
ing of the Horfes.

L. C.F. Then here is another Thing, Why
did e give a Lift to Mr. Hayris ¢ the Lift that
was given had Mr. Rookwood’s Name ar Top, as
he was to command the Party, and there was
Hurris’s Name and Hare's Name as of his Party ;
that is, their feign’d Names: M. Roodwoek’s feign-
cd Name was Roberts that was ar Top, and they
were to go to Turnham-Green, and Rookwood told
Harris, he thould be his Aid de Camp,

Sir B Shower. My Lord, for that I think we
have a Point of Law, that we apprehend will turn
off all that Evidence, and {are we may take that
Exception now: The Words of the A& are, That
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no Evidence fhall be given of any Overt-A& that
is not exprelly laid in the Indi&ment. Now
cannot I fhew upon this IndiG@ment, that there is
no Qvert-A& in {uch a2 pofitive dire@ Manner as
they now urge about this Lift?  Will not thar {a-
tisfy your Lordthip’s Judgment to fet afide all this
Evidence? To make the Indiément good for
Treafon, there ought to be a Compaffing of the
Death of the King laid, and an QOvert-A& laid
declaring that Compafling; but no Evidence is to
be given of any Overt-A& that is not laid in the
Indi@&ment,

L. G . You are not to take Exceptions to the
Indi@ment now, but only to the Evidence.

Sir B, Shower, I have this one Exception more ;
there 1s never a Q_Hﬂdgfie, nor a Jaratoies alteris
vrafentant.

L. C. 4. There does not need; but that is a
Fault, if any, in the Indiétment, and is not to be
ftirrd now.

Sir B. Shower. If there be not a Prefentment
by the Jury, then there is no Overt-A& alledg-
ed: And if there be no Overr- A&t alledged, cr
no fuch Overt-AQ, then we are within the Words
of the A&, That no Evidence fhall be given of
any {uch Overt-A& bnt what is alledg’d; and
e is, if not expreftly alledg’d, as if it were not
alledg’d at ali: Now here it is very loofe, @.
iidem Chriftophorus Kuightley, and fo it goes on with
the relt, did {o and fo. There is a Prefentmenc
at firlt, thac they did compafs and imagine the
Death of the King ; and then the Indi@ment comes
farther, and fays, that Forty Men fhould do this
Bufinefs, and of thofe Forty thefe four fhould be
fome; and then the sidem bought Horfes and
Arms, and lo it muflt go to the laft Antecedent,
and then there is no exprefs alledging of any O-
vert-A&, and then it is as if no Overt-A& at sll
was alledg’d.

L.C.F. This Exception 1s not to the Evi-
dence, but to the IndiGment: It begins, Fura-
tores prefentant gued ; Does not that relate ro all?

Sir B. Show:r- No, my Lord ; and I can tell you
a Reafon why not: 1f it be not fo well alledg’d
as 1t fhould be, 1t 15 in an Indi&ment as if ic
were never alledg’d at all; and fo within the
Words of the A& of Parhament this is not an
Overt-A& alledg’d, and therefore they cannot
give Evidence upon 1t.

Mr. Sol. Ger. ‘Truly, my Lord, I can’c imagine
what they are doing, they are moving in Arreft
of Judgment before a Verdi& given: They fay
the Overt-A& is not exprelly Jaid; Is that an
Exception to the Evidence, or to the Indi&tment?

Sir B, Shower. If my-Lord will pleafe to give us
the Liberty, we would thew there can be no Ver-
dict given upon this Indi€tment.

L. C. . Certainly this is an irregular Proceed-
ing ; this 1s not a Time of Exception to the Judg-
ment.

Mr. Phipps. Then, my Lord, we are in your
Judgment, as ro the Proof that has been given:
If a Man be prefent ar a Meeting of feveral Per-
{fons, and there is a treafonable Debate abouc kil-
ling the King, and this Man is only prefent, bue
neither aflents, nor makes the Propofal how it {haf]
be done, whether the bare being filenr, and faying
nothing, is {uch an Overt-A& as fhall convi& a
Man of Treafon.

L C 7. 1 tell you, Confenting to a traiterous
Defign is an Overt-A& of High Treafon, if chac
Confent be made to appear by good Proof: Now

the
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the Queftion 15, What is a good Proof and Ewi-
dence of this Confent? A Man is two or three
Times at a treafonable Confult for killing the King,
and though perhaps at the firlt he did not, yer at
the {econd he did know that the Meeting was for
fuch a Defign, ({uppofe for the Purpofe there was
but two Meetings) and ar the {econd it is deter~
mined to go on with the Defign; Is not that an
Overt-A&, tho’ it cannot be proved that the Pri-
foner faid any Thing?

Mr. Phipps. It the firft Meeting 1s not a Con-~
{ent, or an Overt-A&, neither will a fecond or a
third be, if there was no more done than at the frft,
but they are like {o many Cyphers without a Figure.

L. C. . The firft Meeting poflibly might be ac-
cidental, he might not know whae it was for,
though that will go a great Way it he does not
diffent or difcover ; but when he meets again with
the fame Company, knowing what they had in
Defign; Docs not that prove a Confent? That
was the Cafe of Sir Evermd Digly in the Powder
Plot.

Mr. Phipps. But where it may be uncertain, my
Lord, whether it were with a good Defign, or
a bad Defign, that he met with that Company,
it ought to be taken moft favonrably for the Pri-
{oner: This Man might be prefent in Order to a
Difcovery.

L.C. . Buat befides, that is not this Cafe ; you
are mooting upon Points that are not in the Cafe.
When Mzr. Haivis came to Mr. Reckwood, and find-
ing them 1n fome Diforder, and being inquifitive
what was the Occalion, he twas {ent to Comnter ;
and when he difcovered what they were to go a-
bout, he afterwards meeting Mr. Rookweod, {ays to
him, Are we fent over to murder the Prince of
Oraige? {ays Rookwood, 1t 1 had known of this De-
fign before T came from Fraire, T would have beg-
sed the King’s, that is, King Fames’s Pardon, and
defir’d to have been exculed. Hereby he exprefles
his Knowledge of the Defign, and what he was to
do; and though he difliked, yet wonld obey
Orders. :

Mr. Phipps. There is no Doubt, my Lord, but
he knew of 1t; but whether your Lordfhip will
conftrue his Silence as a Confent, in Treafon, is
the Queltion.

L C.%. A Manis at frequent Confults about
Killing the King, and does not reveal it, it isa
great Evidence of his Confent.

Mr. Phipps. Butitis not prov’d that he did a&u-
ally confent to it.

Mr. Soll. Gen, My Lord, we muft fubmit it to
your Lordfhip, whether this is not rorally impro-
per and irregular at this Time ; they are arguing
how far the Evidence is to be behiev’d, before the
Time proper for {fuch an Argument comeés.

My, Aet. Gen. I they will call their Wicneffes,
Jet them; or if they fay they have none, then
they may make their Obfervations upon the Evi-
dence; but elfe we defire we may be kept to the
ulnal Method of Proccedings,

My, Phipps. With Submiffion, we thought it fit
to know the Opinion of the Coure firft, if there
be two Witnelles againft the Prifoner; for if
there be not two Witnefles, as the Law requires,
we need not tronble the Court with our Evi-
dence.

Mr, Soll. Geir. Then, my Lord, we muft defire
that the Record may be read of Captain Poster’s

Conviction of Manflaughter; a Man thar has been
cutlty of doing fuch an A&, felonioully, malici-

oufly, and voluntarily, as that 1S, fure 1S not a

competent Witnefs. _
Cl. of Ar. It has been read already.

Mr. Att. Gen. T thought we had been over that
Obje&ion before.

Siy B. Shower, We think it 1s proper for us to
move it now again; for though it is no Gbjection
to his being a legal Witnefs, yer we hope it will
influence his Repuzation as to his Credit; for
he that has been guilty of killing a Man in {uch
a Manner as the Indi@ment laysit, will find bue
little Crediz, we hope, with a Jury ol Country-
men. Bur fince ic has been read, and your Lord-
thip and the Jury have taken Notice of ir, we will
call fome other Witnefles as to Mr. Porter’s Re-
putation and Behaviour, we think they will prove
F'hings as bad as an Actainder. I fhall not open
them to your Lordthip, but beg Leave to call our
Witnefles, who will acquaint you what they have
to fay.

Mr. 4t. Gen. Certainly, my Lord, you will not
chink fit to let them do lo. I defire they would
not ufher in any Thing of Evidence without ac-
quainting the Court what they call them for: For
that were the Way to let them in to call Witnefles
to Things that are not proper.

L.C. . Nay, without doubt 1t 15 not regu-
lar to produce any Evidence, without opening
it.

Mi. At Gen. For if it be for any Crime that
a Man may be prefented dor, and there is no Con-
viGion: 1 chink that onght not ro be given 1n
Evidence to take away a Witnefs’s Credir: I
it be only to his general Reputation and Beha-
viour, fo far they may go, and we can’t oppofe
it. Therefore I defive Sir Bartholomew Shower will
open to the Courr of whatr Nature his Evidence

1Ss
Sir B. Shower, Well, T will tell you then what I

call them ro.
L. C. 7. You muft tell us what you call them

{0,
Siy B, Shower. \Why then, my Lord, if Rob-
bing upon the Highway, if Clipping, 1f Conver-
fing with Clippers, if Fornication, if Buggery, if
any of thefe Irregulanties, will take ofi the Cre~
dit of a Man, I have Inftru&ions in my Briet, of
Fvidence of Crimes of this Nature, and to this
Purpofe againft Mr. Porter; and we hope that by
Law, a Prifoner ftanding for his Life is at Liber-
ty to give an Account of the Acions and Beha-
viour of the Witnefles againft him. I know the
Obje@ion that Mr. Atoriney makes, a Witnefs
does not come prepard to vindicate and give an
Account of every Adion of his Life, and it is nat
commonly allowed to give Evidence of particular
A&ions; but if thofe Actions be repeated, and a
Man lives in the Pra&ice of them, and this Pra-
Gice is continued for {everal Years, and this be
made out by Evidence ; we hope no Jury that have
any Conlcience, will npon their Qaths give any
Credic to the Evidence of a Perfon againft whom
{uch a Teftimony is given.

Mr. Phipps. We are {peaking only, my Lord,
to the Credic of Mr Porter, and if we can thew by
Evidence that he is fo ill a Man as to be guilty
of thofe Crimes that we have open’d, according
to the Infiru@ions in our Brief; we hope the Jury
will not think him fit to bz a good Evidence againft
us in this Matter.

L. C . What {ay you to this Mr, Aetorney ¢

Mr, Att. Gen. My Lord, they themfelyes know,

2 that
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that this Sort of Evidence never was admirted in
any Cafe, nor can be, for it muft tend to the
Overthrow of all Jaitice and legal Proceedings ;
for inftead of trying the Prifoner at the Bar, they
would try Mr. Porter. It has been always deny'd
where it comes to a particular Crime that 2 Man
may be profecuted for, and this it feems is not
one Crime or two, but {o many and {o long conti-
nued, as they fay, and {o often pra&is’d, that here
are the whole A&ions of a Man’s Life to be ript
up, which they can never fhew any Precedent
when it was permitted, becanfe a Man has no Op-
portunity to defend himfelf. Any Man in the
World may by this Means be wounded in his Re-
putation, and Crimes laid to his Charge that he
never thought of, and he can have no Opportu-
nity of giving an Anfwer to it, becaufe he never
jmagined there would be any fuch Objeion: It
is killing 2 Man 1n s good Name by a Side-wound,
again{t which he has no Proteftion or Defence.
My Lord, this muft tend to the prevenung all
Manner of Jultice; it is againft all common Senfe
or Reafon, and it never was offered at by any Law-
yer before, as I believe, at leaftwife never {o open-
{y; and therefore I wonder that thele Gentlemen
fhould do it, who acknowledge, at leaft one of
them did, thar as often as it has been offer’d it
has been over-rul’d; and I know not for what End
it is now offer’d, but to make a Noife in the Court:

They know that it is irregular as much as any
thing that could be offer’d.

Mr. Sol. Gen, Indeed, my Lord, if the Prifoner
at the Bar had offer'd this Matter, it had been
excufable ; bur, that Gentlemen of the long Robe,
and who are {o well acquainted with the Pratice

pretend to do {uch
a Thing, is unaccountable. There was fomewhat
like this that was offer’d at Maichefler, but that
was by the Prifoner, to prove that one Luat who
was a Witnels had two Wives, and they brought
a Copy of an Indi&ment upon which there was
no Procefs; after that they endeavour’d to prove
him guilty of feveral Robberies; but all that Soit

‘of Evidence was refus’d. I only give them this

Inftance to fhew, that where the Prifoner has at-
tempted ir, it has been always rejeCted; and I
am_{ure they cannot fhew me that ever it was
allowed, even to the Prifoner himfelf, to give any
Thing of this Kind in Evidence; and this I muft
fay, they can never fhew me any one particular
Inftance, when Council ever endeavoured to do it,
before this Time.

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, I mentioned the par-
ticular Crimes, the Faults which I had in my In-
firuttions to obje& againft the Credit of the Tefti-
mony of Capt. Porter, in Anfwer to Mr. Artoruey’s
Defire, that I would open the Particulars of the
Evidence, that T would call my Witnelles to the
Truth of it; I was loth to repeat the Words, I
think the Things themielves {fo abominable; but
we conceive with Submiffion, we may be admitted
in this Cafe to offer what we have oftered. Sup-
pofe a Man be a common, lewd, diforderly Fel-
low, one that frequently fivears to Falfhood for

‘his Life: We know it is a common Rule in Point

of Evidence, that againt a2 Witnefs you fhall on-
ly give an Account of his Chara&er at large, of
his general Converfation ; but that general Con-
verfation arifes from particular A&ions, and if
the Witnefles give you an Account of fuch difor-
derly A&ions repeated, we hope that will go to
his Difcredit, which is that we now are labouring
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for, and fubmit it to your Lordfhip’s Opinion
whether weé may not do it S
~ L.C. 7. Look ye, you may bring Witnefles to
give an Account of the general Lenouy of his
Converfation, but you don’t think fare that we
will try now at this Tine, whether he be guilty of
Robbery or Buggery. | -

Sir B, Shower: My Lord, we will give you an
Account that he uled to have a private Lodging;
and come in wich his Horfe tir'd, and {everal other
fuch Things, as that he us’d to go cuc ini Difguiles,
and the like. |

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, I ¢annot imagine why a
Man that has beén guilry of any {uch Crimes, and
1s not taken, fhould be of greater Credit than a
Man that has been taken and punifh’d.

L. C. . What is that you fay Mr. Phipps ¢

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, 1 fay ’tis'the Crime that
renders a Man infamous, and I do not know why
a Man that has had the good Fortune not to be
taken and punifhed for great Crimts by Lim' com~
mitted, fhould be in a better Condition as to the
Credit of his Teftimony, than one thar is taken
and undergoes the Punithment of the Law.

Mr. Soll. Gei. Mr. Chaiueck urg’d that as far asic
would go, but we are oblig'd, it feems, to hear
Things that have been over-ruled over and over;
but I defire to know of them, whether they. can
fhew he has been guilty of a greater Crime than
he has confelt himfelf guilty of in Court, I mean
of the intended Aflaffination, j

Mz, Phipps. No, we agrée we can’t; but pray
let us prove him guilty of as many Crimes as we can,

Mr. Sol. Geir. But, miy Lord, T hope you'll keep
Queltion of the common or-

dinary Tenour of his Converfanon,
Sir B. Stower. Call Mr. Offld, MNr, Nickelas,
Ny, Ailford, Black Wil

( Adr Milford appearad. )

Cryer. Lay your Hand on the Book. The Evi-
dence that you fhall give cn behalf of the Prifo-
ner at the Bar, fhall be the Truth, "the wikle
Truth, and nothing but the Truth. So help you
God. o
Sir B. Stower. Pray’ will you give 'my Lord and
the Jary an Account whether you kpow Captain
Porter, and how long you have known him.

Milford, T have known him abouc Four Yr:ars:-

Sir B. Shower, \What Reputation’ is he of 2~
EWf{ﬁ:rd. I never knew any Hure by bhim 1n my
Life. | | ‘

Sir B. Shower. Pray what is your Name? -

Milford. Frederick Milford. L

Sit B, Shower. But the Name in my Brief is
Sobn Milford, that is my Man. ' g

L. C. 9. But you {ee this Man knows him.

Sir B. Shower. Call My. Qldfield.

(Which was dove, and he appear'd accordingly-)

Mr. Phipps. Do you know Captain Porter ¢

Oldfield, Yes I do. y

Mr. Phipps. How long have you known him?.

Oldfield. I believe about Tiwenty Years. ‘

Mr. Phipps. Pray will you give my Lord and
the Jury an Account of his Life and Converfa-
t1011.

Oldfield. T can fay nothing, he was always civil
m my Company, but he was lewd in his Dif«
coutle.

Sir B, Shower, What do you mean by being
lewd in his Difcourfe?

‘Oldfield,

4 L
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oldfeld. Why lie would be talking very extra-
yagantly.
Mr. Phipps. What do you mean in talking, was
it of what he had done himfelf, Sir?
O!dfield. No otherwife than that he had whor'd,
and thoft kind of Things.
Sir B. Shvwer, What other Things befide Who-
ring 2
gldﬁeld. I know no other Part of it.
Sir B. Shower. Where is Edward Bowchey ?
( He did not dppear.)
Mr. Phipps. Call William O Bryan.
(He did not appear.)
Sir B. Shower. Where is Mr, Page, and Mr.
Hardiman,
 (Nowe of them dppeared.)
g Ciyer. ‘There is not a Man of them here,
Sits
- Sir B, Shower. Mr. Webber, Do you know where
they are, for the Court ftays for them.
Mr. Webber. Indeed 1 do not, they were fum-
mofi'd to be here.
Sir B, Shower, Where is black W42
Cryer. Black Will, ]
(He appeard, aid was a Muor.)
L. C. . Ask him if he be a Chriltian.
Ciyer. 1 have ask’d him, and he fays heisa

Chriftian.
(Then be was fworn.)
L. C. . Well, What do you ask him?
Rookwoed, Will, Pray give an Account of your
Mafter, and of his Life and Converfation.
Mr. Phipps, You are {worn to tell the Truth,

Sweet-heart.
Will, 1 ferved him almoft Eight Years, and

he has been a very good Mafter to me, my

Lord.
Sir B. Shower. What do you know him to be

guilry of 2

Will, Nothing at all,

Sir B. Shower, 1 believe they have put in thele
Men to confirm his Rer~utation,

L. C. 7. Indeed, I think the King’s Council
fhould have called thefe Witnefies, if there had
beeir Occafion.

Sit B. Shower, We fubmit it to your Direétien,
tiow fai this Evidence will afte® him; there is no-
thing faid, as we apptehend thar will amount to
Treafon: 1f the Prifoner has a Mind to {ay any
Thing himfelf, we hope your Lordthip will pleafe
to heat hith.

L. C. 5. Ay, it he will, let him.

Rookwood. My Lord, Mr. Porter does not fay,
that I confénred to tomhimand a Party.

L. C.¥. Is that all you have to fay?
Gentleimen, will you {um up?

Mzr. Conygr:. My L'Ul‘d, we are agreed, we {ub-
mit to the Colrt oh baoth Sides.

L C. ¥. Then Gentlemen of the Jury, the Pri-
foner at the Bar, Mr. Rokwoed is Indi&ed for
High-Trealon, in Cowpaffing, Imagining, and
Intending the Death and Deftru&tion of the King,
by 2 moft barbarous and wicked Affaffination;
ou -have had an Account of this Defign from

wo Witnefles that have been produced, the
One 15 Captain Pérter, and the Other is Mr. Har-
ris, who {wear they were both concerned as A&-
ors in it.

Captain Porter tells yoi, about the latter End
of Fanuary, or the Beginning of February laft,
Sir ‘Gevrge Barcley came over into England {rom
France; and there was a formed Defign to mui-

Then,

der the King; and after feveral Meetings and
Conferences among the Confpirators, they came
to a Refolution that he fhould be affaffinated:
but which way to effed it, admitted of a Dil-
pute among them; for the King, as you have
heard, going frequently, about once 2 Week 2
Hunting, on the other fide the Water near
Richmond, the Defign was firt to affaflinate
him at Richmond Park, or thereabouts, as he
rerurned from Hunting, and Preparation was
made accordingly ; but that not being {o fully
agreed upon, the Conveniency of the Place
held ftill fome Debate ; for fome were of Opini-
on, that it wa$ betrer to make the Attempt on
this f{ide the Water, than on the other; chere-
fore as Mr, Porter tells you, to determine that
Difficulty, there were feveral Men fent, whereof
he was one, Auightley another, and King a Third,
to view the Ground on both fides the Water,
and to make their Report; the Ground being
viewd and the Reporr made to fome of their
Accomplices, who to receive it met at the
Nagg's- Head in Covent-Garden, which was about
the Tenth or Twelfth of Febynary lalt; it was
then agreed, that the King and his Guards fhould
be attack’'d on this fide the Water about Turnbam-
Green,

Mr. Porter has told you, that at feveral Meet-
ings for the carrying on this Defign, the Prifo-
ner Mr. Kookwood was prefent, more particularly
at the Glhbe-Tavern in Hatton-Garden, where
were alfo Sir Gerge Barcly, Mr. Charnock, Sir
William Perkins, himfelf, and others, and there
they did enter into a Confult how they might
aflaffinate the King; and it being propofed,
Mr, Rookwood did not like it, as Mr. Porter fays,
but {aid 1t was a defperate Attempt, and there-
upon Sir Gesrge Bareley pulled our a Scheme that
he had, and fhew'd it at that Time to Mr. Rook-
wood, and faid you are {ent over from France, and
are to obey my Oxrders, and you are to command
a Party; and then Mr. Rockwood made an Anfiver
in French, there’s an End of it, which, as he fays,
ymports a Confent.

Then ar another Time, which was the Saur-
day Morning the 15th ot February, they met ac
Captain Porte’s Lodgine, and there was a Dif-
courfe about going on to put the Defign in Ex-
ecution; and one Duarant, one of the Men that
was to watch the King and the Guards going
out at Kenfiugton, came in, and the Queftion was,
whether they fhould go that Day upon the De-
fign; they had Difcoutle about it, and Mr. Rook-
wood the Prifoner was there prefent, and there
did not appear any Diffent in him to the Pro-
fecution of the Defign, bur it {eems it was readily
agreed among them, to purfue it according to the
former Determination.

Then the next Witnefs that is produc’d is
Mr. Harris, who gives you a large Account of
the Beginning of his Knowledge, and of his be-
ing concern’d in this Matter; he tells you he was -
in Fraice, and at the Court of St. Germains, where
the late King then was, and that he {poke with
him, and where was allo Colonel Parker, and
King Fames took Notice of him and of his faith-
ful Service, and told him, he always defigned
him a Kindnefs, and then had Opportunity of
doing it,-and faid he would fend him over into
England, where he fhould be fubfifted, and di-

reted himto obey the Qxders of Sir George Bar-

¢ley; and ‘there being one Hare by, who was to

come



1696. Weftm.

come over with him, King Fantes gave them both
Names of Difguife, which they were to go by in
Eungland, and, as it {eems, others that came over
did alfo affume; for Mr. Rookwood went by the
Name of Roberts, Harris was to go by the Name
of Fenkins, and Hare by the Name of Guiney;
they were direGted to apply themfelves to Sir
George Barcley, and had Direttions how they
hould find him, which were to go into Covent-
Garden in the Evening, upon a Moiday or a Thurf-
day; and if they faw a Perfon that had a white
Handkerchief hanging out of his Pocket, they
were to take Notice of him to be Sir George Bar-
cley, and they had Ten Lewis d'Ores a-piece for
their Journey’s to carry them off; and you have
heard from whom they had them ; and they were
told, that if at Calaés they were kept longer than
they expetted, whereby their Money was fpent,
Care was taken that they fhould be {upplied from
the Governor of Calais, the Prefident there; and
it feems Mr. Harris and Mr. Hare went together
to Calais, and lay a confiderable Time for want
of 2 Wind, whereby their Money fell fhiort of de-
f aying their Expences; but they were afterwards
{upplied by the Governor of Calais, according as
was promifed at St. Germains-

Gentlemen, he tells you, that after they came
into England, the firlt Time they went to feek
Sir Geerge Barcley, was upon the Mouday Night,
but they did not find him at that Time, but af-
teywards they. met with him, and Mr, Harvis had
Subfiftence-Money from him, according to King
FYames's Promife, which was at the Rate of 5
. a Day when he had no Horfe, and atterwards
when he had a Horfe at 6s. a2 Day; thisis the
Account he gives you how he came over, and of
Lis Journey and Meeting with Sir George Barcley.

And now he comes to fpezk particularly con=
cerning the Prifoner at the Bar, Mr. Rookwood .
He tells you that on Saturday Morning the rs5th
of Februmy, the firlt Day when this Aflaffination
was defigned to be committed, he went to the
Lodging of one Buirk, where My, Rookwood was,
with others, and he found them all in a greac Dif-
order; and thereupon he ask’d them, What was
the Matter, and what they were going to do?
And Rookwoed bid him go to one Cwmiter, and
he fhould know of him whar was the Matter :
Accordingly he went to his Lodging, and Counter
told him and thofe who were with him, That they
muft get ready to go to Turnham-Green; and at
the {fame Time and Place he met with Sir George
Barcley, and after fome Difcour{e of artacking the
Coach, Sir George Barcly at the firft faid, They
were his Janizaries; and afterwards going out,
he came in again and faid, They were Men of
Henour, and that they were to go abroad to at-
tack the Prince of Orange,

The next Day, or a little Time after, Mr. Har-
ris met with Mr., Rockweod, and enters into Dif-
courfe with him to this EffeG: What! are we
fent over to murder the Prince of Orange 2 It is a

ftrange Sort of Employment: (for it feems they
were not informed in Frame what they were to

do here, but they were to put themfelves under
the Condu& of Sir George Barcley, and obey bhis
Orders.) Mr, Roockwood {aid, He was afraid the
"Thing was fo, and that they were drawn in; but
{aid, If he had known of the Defign before-hand,
he would not have come over but have bego’d the
King's Pardon. Which fhews not only his Know-
Vo1 IV.
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ledge of the Defign, but his being engaged in the
Profecution of it.

And then, Gentlemen, you are told further,
That upon the Going ouc upon Saturday the 224,
which was the fecond 'Time it was to have been
put in Execution, there was a Lift of Men that
Mr. Rogkuwood gave to Mr. Harris of feveral Names
that he has mentioned to you; he fays, Mr. Rook-
wood's Name was at the Top, as one that was to
command the Party, and the Name he went by
was Roberts ; and there was Hariis’s counterfeit
Name, which was Fenkins; and Hare’s counter-
feit Name, which was Guiugy ; and they were to
make ready to go to Turnbham-Green. He told him,
There was a Lift, and that he and Harris was to
be of his Party, that he was to atrack the Prince
of Orange, and that Mr. Harris fhounld be his Aid
du Camp.

Gentlemen, I forgot to tell you, That between

the firlt Seturday and the Second, Mr. Harris, Mr.
Rookwood, and Mr. Lowick, walking in Red-Lyou-
Fields, and there in Difcourfe among themfelves,
Mr. Harris and Mr. Rookwood did exprefs them-
felves to be much concerned that they were to
be employed upon' {uch a Delign as this was,
which they owned to be very barbarous; but
Mr. Rookwosd and Lewick faid, They were under
Command, and mult obey Orders, tho’> Mr. Rosk-
weod did not like the Delign they were engaged
in.
Gentlemen, they have told you of Horfes that
were placed at Sowterfet-Honfe in a Stable there,
under the Care of Mr. Lewis, my Lord Feverfham’s
Gentleman of the Horfe, about {ix or feven Hor-
{es, and thofe fix Horfes that were there at that
Time were afterwards taken away; but that is
only a Circumitance.

So that, Gentlemen, this is now the Sum and
Subftance of this Evidence that has been given
you, as far as it relates to the Prifoner: his Coun-
cil in his Defence have infifted upon feveral Things ;
in the firft Place, tho’ 1t was lalt mentioned in
Time, yet 1t ought to have the firft Confidcra-
tion; Jhe Council for the Prifoner have endea-~
voured to take oft the Credit of Mr. Poster, and
have opened indeed very great Crimes that he
(hould be guilty of, which muft render him a Per=
fon not tobe belicved, but they have not proved
any Lhing; no Witnels that they have called
againft Mr. Porter {ays the lealt againft him to in-
validate his Teftimony, or to induce you to disbe-
lieve what he has faid:

Then they fay in Point of Law, There is no
Overt-AQ proved of any Defign againft the
King’s Life that afte@s Mr. Rookwood; now that
Martter you are to confider of, Whether or no
it does appear by the Teftimony of two Wit-
nefles, that Mr. Rookwood was concerned in this
Defign of Affaffinating the King; Capt. Porter
is pofitive that he was at the Confult at the
Ghbe Tavern, where it was propofed, debated,
and refolved upon; but Mr. Ruokugod fays, he
did diflike it ; fo fays Captain Porter, he did not
approve of it at the firlt upon his being .acquaint-
ed with 1t; but being fent over to obey the Or-
ders of Sir George Barcley, and Sir Gevige Barcley
producing a Scheme ready drawn, wherein he
was to command the Party, telling him, That
he mult obey Orders. You hear what he faid,
and the Anfwer he return’d in French, There’s
an End of it; Whether that does net amount to

41 2 a Con-
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a Confent and Agreement to be engaged in this
Defign, is left to your Confideration, for if it do,
it is plainly an Overt-Act. |
. 'Then, Gentlemen, you hear further that Harrzs

was told by Mr. Rookwood, that he fhould be of
his Party, and be his Aid du Camp, and go to
Turmbam-Green, to attack the Prince of Orange,
and he had a Lit of Men given him by Rookwood,
and was direGed to get the reft ready.

Rookwsod, That was not in the Indiiment.
L. C. 4. But you were at that Meeting, which

1s laid in the IndiGtment, |

Roskw. My Lord, that Litt is not in the Indi&-
ment; the Lift in the Indiment rcfers to M.
Cranburne,

L. C. 7. No, but that is an Evidenco of your
being in the Defign; 1 hope thas Lift of Men will
be fome Evidence of the Confent and Agreement
thar Mr. Rookwood was to command a Party.

Sir B. Shower. With Submiffion, my Lord, the
Words of the A& feems otherwife, and that no
Overt-A& thould be given in Evidence, that 1s
not exprefsly alledged.

L. C. 9. But cannot there be one Act, that may
be Proof of another A& which is alledged.

Sir B. Shower. 'Then there is no Advantage of
this Law ; for my Lord, the End of che Act was,
"T'hat they fhonld know the particular Crimes that
they were to anfwer to.

L.C %. That could never be the End of the
Law, that all particular Faés that are but Evi-
dence of the Faéts alledged fhould be fet forth 1n
the Indi@ment; it was {ufficient before the A&,
to alledge any Overt-A&, and any other Overt-
A&, though not alledged, and had no Relation
to the Overt-A& that was alledged, yet if irwere
to the fame Sort of Treafon, might be given in
Evidence. |

Sir B. Shower., The Law {ays, ye fhall not give
Evidence of any Overt-A& that is not exprebsly
menticned.

L. C. 5. Tt is not urged asan Overt-A&, but as
Evidence of an Overt- A& that is alledged ; for
Inftance, the Overt-A& alledged, is, That they did
meet and confult, hall not they give in Evidénce
what was faid and done at thofe Meetings, tho
not alledged ? Sir Geoige Baicley produced a Scheme
at the Globe Tavern, fhall not the producing of
that Scheme be given in Evidence ? if it may,
why not the giving the Lift to Harris ¢

Mr. Phips. My Lord, it is plain it was Mr, 4t-
sorney’s Opinion, it could not be given in Evidence,
unlefs it was alledged in the IndiGment ; becaule
he has particulasly alledged the Lift in Crauburue’s
Cale, in this very Inditment.

M. Sol.Gen. 1 know not what thofe Gentlemen
mean by this Sort of Prafice; certainly there
never were {o many Irregularities committed in
any Trial asin this, and now particularly to break
in upon the Court in che midft of the Charge.

L. C. § Nay, nay, if there be any Miftake, let
us hear them, that it may be reified.

L. C. #. Treby. 1 think we fhould receive them,
to try if they can make 1t out. But the Objection
1 do not very well underftand yer; for, as I take
the Matter to fland, it is alledged in the Indi&-
ment, That they had prepared Men, and Arms,
and Horfes, for the Execution of this Defign.
Now is it not reafonable, or can therebe any Thing
more proper, than to give in Evidence, and prove
that the Prifoner had, and delivered ro fome of
che Complices, a Lift of thole Men that were to

do it. Why it proves the very Thing alledged ;
but let us fee whether it be {o?

Sir B, Shower, My Lord, there is no fuch Thing
ﬂ“t’dgﬂdt

L. € . That is firange. Pray fee if it be not
in the Indi&ment. '

Clerk of Arrdignment. (Reads.) Conveniehant,
propofucrunt,  lraflaverunt, confiltaverunty  confen-

Jerunt, &8 agreaverunt, ad ipfum Dominum  Regein

nune ex fofuitis &8 Dol pereutiendum, dnglice, to
allaliinate, siterficiendum, & murdrandum, & ad
execrabilens,  borrendam, &5 deteflabilen  Afaffiva-
tionem, Asglice, Affaflination, & Interfedionem il-
lem citins exequendum & perpetrandum, poflea, [cilicer
eifdem Die & Ao, ac diverfis aliis Diebus €
Vicibus, apud  Parochiam prediflam in Comitatu
preaiflo, proaitorie traffaverunt, propofuermnt, &
confultavernnt de Viis, Modis €5 Mediis, ac Tempore
& Loco, ubiy quands, qualiter €S quonodo diciuns
Do Regew fic ex Infidiis facilins inteificerent 5
& confenferunt, agreaverunt & affeiferunt, quod qua-
draginta Homines equefires aut eo circiter, quornin ii-
dein Chriftophorus Knightley, Roberws Lowick,
Ambrofius Rookwood & Carolus Cranburne forent
quatuor, (S quilibet horum proditorie fuper o fufcepit
effe wminy cum Bombardis, Sclapis & Sclopetis, Pul-
vere bombardico & Globulis  plumbeis oweratis, &8
cunr Gladiis, Eufibus & aliis Armis armati infidinti
foreut, & effent in Subfelfr, Anglice, in Ambufh,
ad eidern Domintup Regenr in Rbeda fua, duglice
his Coach, exiffentenm, quands foris iret invaden-
dum 5 quodque quidam €S competens Numerus de Ho-
minibus illis fic armatis in Saiellites, Awglice the
Guards, ipfins Doimini Regis eum tunc attendentes &5
Jecuin extfientes agpiclli forent, et eos expugnarent &
devincerent, awin alii corundem Hominsin fic arimato-

7um ipfun Domintm Regem percuterent, interficerent,
occiderent & murdrarent.

Mr. Conyers.  And my Lord, there is Evidence
of fome of thefe Forty Men, whofe Names were
given in a Lift by Rookwood to Harris,

Mr. Phipps. But now in Graubuine’s Part, the
Lift is exprefsly alledged as an Overt-A&.

L. C. %}, Never talk of Cranburne, we have not
him before us now, but what do you fay to this of
the Lift given by Rookwood to Harris.

Sir B. Shvwer, My Lord, we {ay this is not Evi-
dence of an Overt-A&, according to this A& of
Parliament; which fays, No Evidence fhall be
siven of any Overt-A@, that is not exprefsly al-
ledged 1n the Indiment; now the Indi&ment
{ays, they did agtee that Forty Horfemen armed,
of which the Four named wete to be Four, and
every one undertook to be one, who fhould lie
in wait to fet upon the King in his Coach, and a
competent Number thould et upon the Guards;
and then 1t fays, in order to fulfil this, they did
prepare Horfes and Arms, and one of them by the
Confent of all the refty did carry forward and
backward a Lift, that 1s, Crandurize; and that par-
ticular Lift is a particular Overt-A& alledged in
the Indi&ment, which makes it plain, they thoughc
it neceflary to be particularly alledged by this A&
of Parliament, or they could not give any Evi-
dence of it; now the Lift chat Evidence is given
of, is {uppofed to be delivered by the Priloner
to Harris, Now firft we fay, it is not Evidence
that Forty fhould do it, for they may do it with-
out a Lift; and next it is not Evidence of the Lift

that
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that they have mentioned, for that is alledged to
be carried about by Cranburie, and as the Prifoner
himfelf has obferved, this Lilt given to Harris is
not in the Indi¢tment, and therefore no Evidence
can be given of it.

My. Conyers. It 18 an Evidence of that Qvert-
A& which 15 exprefly alledged in the Indiétment,
that they met together to confult how to effeét
this Treafon.

Mr. Cowper. My Lord, we are in a very ftrange
Cafe here, if we be not very proper in this Parc

of our Lvidence; the Overt-A& laid, 15, That
the Prifoner met together with others to confult
how to affaflinate the King, and there the Prifoner
among the reft did agree it thou!d be done fo and
fo. “Tis admitted the Prifoner was there; bur,
fay they, if you only prove that he fate by, while
there was a general Difcourle of fuch a Matter,
but do not prove that he {aid or did any Thing,
exprefling his Aflent, that will not amonnt to a
Proof of the Overt-Att laid ; and yer, if we go
about to prove further, any A& done that mani-
felts his Aflent, then they fay you go too far, and
prove an Overt-A& that is not mentioned in the
Inditment: Thus they grant, the Agreement is

a {uficient Overt-A&, but objed, that being pre-
fent barely 1s not a fufficient Proof of his Agree-

ment ; then when we go to make Proof of any
Thing that 1s a fufficient Proof of his Agreement,
they tell us 1t 15 nor proper upon this A& of Par-
liament, becaule not laid in the Indiltment, though
his Agreement be laid in the Indiiment: And fo
they would amufe us, rather than make any folid
Objeltion to our Evidence. This Doftrine is cer-
tainly very odd, my Lord, and we doubt not
will have little Weight with the Court or the
Jury.

Mr. Att. Gen. According to this Do&rine all the
Evidence muft be put in the Indiftment.

L. C. 5. They ask you what this giving this Lit
does prove ?

Mr. Att. Gen. His Agreeing at that Meeting to
the Confpiracy, and the Execution of it, by gi-
ving that Lift of the Names of them that were to
be of his Party, and his own Name as Command-
er of that Party, this he gives te one that was to
be of the Party, and particalarly was to be his
Aid du Camp, 1n order to get them ready for the
Execurion ; 1s not this an Evidence of the Agree-
ment, which 1s the Overt-A&? No Man in the

World can be convifled of Treafon, if this Doc-
trine be true,

My, Soh Gen My Lord, they have not exprefs'd
fomething in the {ndiGtment that has been read,
which will make 1t plain that chis ts the moft
proper Evidence of the Overt-A& laid in the In-
ditment, The Indiétment fays, they agrced there
fhould be forty Men or thereabouts armed, of which
a certain Number thould make an Affaule upon
the King’s Coach, while another Part thould fet
upon the Guards: Now the Proof we make:'is,
that Mr. Rookwood the Prifoner, was to command a
Party that was to {ec upon the Guards, and in or-
der toit, he givesa Lift of his Men to Harris who
was to be his Aid du Camp, and bids him pet
thofe Men ready; and this was upon the Day that
this Matter was to be a&ted: So that it proves
very plainly that Overt-A& that we {uggelt in the
IndiGment, that a certain Number of thofe Men
‘were to aflault the King’s Perfon, and another
Parc the Guards, And therefore they needed not
to have interrupted your Lordfhip; for this Lift
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that Harvis {peaks of, is a very good Proof of the
Overe- At that is lad in the Indi@ment. .

L. C. . Then, Gentlemen, as to this Matter
which they have objeied, that this Lift given on
the Day of the intended Aflaffination, onght not
to be allowed as Evidence to prove the Treafon,
becaufe it is not Ipecially laid in the IndiGment;
but 1s by the late Act of Parliament excluded from
being proved to conviét the Prifoner; now tho’ the

Alt doth exclude the giving in Evidence of any
Overt-Act that s not laid in the Indi@ment, yet

it doth not exclude fuch Evidence as is proper
and fit to prove that Overt-A& that is laid in the
Indittment. Therefore, the Queftion is, whether
this giving of the Lilt does nor prove fome Qvert-
A& that is alledged in the Indiétment?  There is
in the IndiGmenc an Agreement laid to kill the
Ring, and if that be proved, that’s an Qvert-
A& of this Treafon; now when the Confent and
Agreement of Mr. Rookwwood to thar Defign is pro-
ved, {urely the Proof of his giving a Lift of Men
1s a farther Proof that he did agree o it, and then
it is very proper to be given in Evidence; for if
by the new Statute no one A& can be given in
Evidence to prove another, then muft not only
the Overe-A&, but allo the Evidence of that A&
be exprefled in the Indilment.

Gentlemen, you have heard the Witnefles what
they {ay concerning this Matter. In the firft Place,
if you do believe that there was {uch Confults and
Meetings, where this intended Aflaflination of the
King was debated and refolved upon, and that
Mr. Rookwood was prefeat and did agree to ir,
that isan Overt-A& ; and again, if you are fatisfied
that there was an Agreement to prepare and pro-
vide a Number of Men to fer upon the King and
his Guards, in the Manner you have heard, and
he was concerned n making this Provifion, and
was to have a Poft, and command a Party in thac
Acttack, that is a further Proof of thar Confent
and Agreement, that is laid in the Indi&ment,

Gentlemen, I muft leave it to you, upon the

Evidence that you have heard; if you are {aris-

fied, upon the Teltimony of thefe two Witnefles
that have been produc’d, That Mr. Rockwoed is
guilty of this Treafon of which he is Indi&ed,
m Compaffing and Imagining the Death of the
King, then you will find him Guilty: If you

are not {atisfied that he is Guilty, you will acquit

him, -

Cl of Air. Cryer fwear an Officer to keep the
Juary. |
(IWhich was done,)

L.C 7. Now if you have any Thing to move
on Behalf of your other Clients pray do it.

Sir B. Shower. Yes, we have an Exception, but
never a one of falfe Spelling.

L. C . If fo be it be any fuch Matter as you
can move in Arreft of Judgment, it bad beft be
referv’d till after”the Verdid.

Sir B. Shower. Our Exceptions will ferve if Oc-
calion be for Mr. Rockwoed in Arreft of Judgmenr,
and they will {erve for the others alfo to prevenc
the Trouble of the "Trial, if we have your Lord-
fhip’s Opinion that they arc good Exceptions.

Then the Jury withdrew to confider of their Verdiéd,
> .
and after a Quarter of an Hour'’s flaying ont ve-
turitd, and gave in their Verdill,

Cl. of Arr« Gentlemen of the Jury, Anfiwer to
your INames. Swmnel Powel.
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